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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Report”), includj “Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiondaResults ¢
Operations,” contains forwardeoking statements within the meaning of the Pev@eécurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 regagdfnture
events and the future results of Juniper Netwdrks, (“we,” “us,” or the “Company”) that are based on our current expectations, ests
forecasts, and projections about our business,results of operations, the industry in which werape and the beliefs and assumptions of
management. Words such as “expects,” “anticipateddrgets,” “goals,” “projects,” “would,” “could,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“seeks,” “estimates,” variations of such words, asimilar expressions are intended to identify sémtward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements by their nature address matteas are, to different degrees, uncertain, and ¢h&mwardlooking statements are ol
predictions and are subject to risks, uncertaintiésd assumptions that are difficult to predicteféfore, actual results may differ materi
and adversely from those expressed in any ford@olling statements. Factors that might cause ottrilmute to such differences include,
are not limited to, those discussed in this Repoder the section entitled “Risk Factor#i Item 1A of Part | and elsewhere, and in o
reports we file with the U.S. Securities and ExdsarCommission ("SEC"). While forwalabking statements are based on reasor
expectations of our management at the time that #ne made, you should not rely on them. We unkient® obligation to revise or upd
publicly any forwarelooking statements for any reason, except as reduy applicable law.

" ow "o "o,

PART |

ITEM 1. Business
Overview

At Juniper Networks, we design, develop, and seltipcts and services for higierformance networks so customers can build higbatable
reliable, secure and costfective networks for their businesses, while aeing agility, efficiency and value through autoroat We sell oL
products in more than 100 countries in three gewgcaregions: Americas; Europe, Middle East, andicaf ("EMEA"); and Asia Pacifi
("APAC"). We sell our high-performance network puets and service offerings across routing, switghand security.

Our products address higierformance network requirements for global sergiceviders, cloud environments, enterprises, gavemnts, an
research and public sector organizations who vieev rietwork as critical to their success. Our siliceystems, and software repre
innovations that transform the economics and egped of networking, helping customers achieve sopperformance, greater choice,

flexibility, while reducing overall total cost ofwmership. In addition to our products, we offer austomers worldwide services, includ
technical support, professional services, educatiahtraining programs. Together, our hyggrformance product and service offerings hely
customers convert legacy networks providing comtimeti services into more valuable assets providiifigrentiation and value as well
increased performance, reliability, and securitgrid-users.

In 2014, we realigned our organization into a Oaeider structure which includes consolidating eatbur research and development and g
to-market functions to reduce complexity, increaseitglaof responsibilities, and improve efficiency.sfa result of these changes,
consolidated business is considered to be onetedpersegment. See Note Bgmentsin Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementseim

8 of Part Il of this Report, for further informatiocegarding the Company's segment reorganizat®med as revenue and other informa
regarding our one reportable segment.

We were incorporated in California in 1996 and cenporated in Delaware in 1998. Our corporate headgqrs are located in Sunnyv.
California. Our website address is www.juniper.net.

Strategy

We deliver highly scalable, reliable, secure anst-effective networks, while transforming the netwsrkyility, efficiency and value throu
automation. We focus on customers and partnerssaaor key verticals who view these network attebuas fundamental to their busin
including global service providers, enterpriseqjaficial services, cloud hosting providers, govemis)eresearch and public se:
organizations.

Our strategy stems from the importance of our hardwased innovation in achieving the routing, switghiand security performance that
customers require, while at the same time addrgssifiware innovation to achieve new levels ofiggfbr our customers.
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Maintain and Extend Technology Leadersh

We are recognized around the world as a leadereiwarking innovation. Our Junos OS, applicationesfie integrated circuit (“ASIC)
technology, and network-optimized product architeztwere key elements to establishing and maimtgiaur technology leadership.

Leverage Position as Supplier of Hi-Performance Network Infrastructure

From inception, we have focused on designing, dg@med, and building higlperformance network infrastructure for the world®s
demanding networking environments. We consisteudyiver groundbreaking, leading technologies thandform the economics &
experience of networkingsignificantly improving customer economics by loimgrthe capital expenditures required to build rerks and th
operating expenses required to manage and maihtain. We believe that many customers will deployvoeking equipment from only a fe
vendors, and that the scale, performance, relighdind security of our products will provide ugtwa competitive advantage, which is crit
to be selected as one of those vendors.

Be a Strategic Partner to Our Custome

In developing our solutions, we work very closelighacustomers to design and build bestlass products and solutions specifically desi
to meet their complex needs. Over time, we havarded our understanding of the escalating demamtisisks facing our customers, wh
has enabled us to design additional capabilitiés @ur products. We believe our close relationshiith, and constant feedback from,
customers have been key elements in our design andsrapid deployments to date. We plan to contitouesork with our customers
implement product enhancements, as well as to dgsigducts that meet the evolving needs of the atpl&ce, while enabling customer:
reduce costs. We are committed to investing inaeteand development at a level that drives ouovation agenda, enabling us to del
highly differentiated products and outstanding eaio our customers.

Enable New Internet Protocol ("IP"-Based Services

Our platforms have enabled network operators teldyibuild and secure networks caftectively and deploy new differentiated servite
drive new sources of revenue more efficiently tlegacy network products. By enabling newhi&sed services, we have broadened our si
provider business over the last several yearseveido expanding our presence in the enterpriskanar

Establish and Develop Industry Partnershi

Our customers have diverse requirements. Therefeedhelieve that it is important that we attractl dwild relationships with other indus
leaders with diverse technologies and services éhggnd the value of the network to our custom@&rsese partnerships ensure that
customers have access to those technologies awiteserwhether through technology integration, todevelopment, resale, or ot
collaboration, in order to better support a broaggrof our customers' requirements. In additiom believe an open network infrastructure
invites partner innovation provides customers wgitBater choice and control in meeting their eva@viusiness requirements, while enak
them to reduce costs.

Markets and Customers

We sell our high-performance network products asvise offerings through direct sales, distributoralueadded resellers ("VARs"), a
original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) partnersetadusers in the service provider and enterprise markl#e believe the network ne:
for service providers, such as carriers (wirelass$ wireline), cable, content and cloud service canigs are converging, as are those of
enterprises and national governments, as all aktiesastomers focus on high performance network$aitd cloud environments.
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Service Provider:

Service providers generally include wireline andeldss carriers, and cable operators, as well gernhaternet content and applicat
providers, including those that provide social regiing and search engine services. We support ofdse major service provider network
the world and our higlperformance network infrastructure offerings arsigieed and built for the performance, reliabiliagnd security th
service providers demand. We believe our networkifrgistructure offerings benefit our service pr®i customers by:

» Reducing capital and operational costs by runnindtiple services over the same network using ouous® high density, high
automated, and highly reliable platforms;

» Creating new or additional revenue opportunitiesebgbling new services to be offered to new maskgments, which includ
existing customers and new customers, based oproduct capabilities;

» Increasing customer satisfaction, while loweritagpts, by enabling customers to smdfect automatically provisioned sen
packages that provide the quality, speed, andngrittiey desire; and

» Providing increased asset longevity and higleturn on investment as our customers' networksscaie to multiterabit rate
based on the capabilities of our platforms.

While many of these service providers have histdisidoeen categorized separately as wireline, ea®l or cable operators, in recent year:
have seen increased convergence of these diffgnees of service providers through acquisitionsrgaes, and partnerships. We believe
convergence of offerings by service providers isiliftated by investment in the builokdt of high performance networks and cl
environments.

We believe that there are several other trendstaffe service providers for which we are well pasied to deliver products and solutic
These trends include: significant growth in IP ficabn service provider networks because of pegyeter interaction; broadband usage; vi
an increasing reliance on the network as a miggiitical business tool in the strategies of ouvser provider customers and of their enterg
customers; the advent of data center "clouds" thatentrate business applications in large, IP owtwonnected facilities; and growth
mobile traffic as a result of the increase in mekiévice usage including smartphones, tabletscandected devices of all kinds.

The infrastructure market for service providerdides: products and technology at the network citre;network edge to enable access
aggregation layer; the data center where many cEs\are created; security to protect from the esidt and the outside in; the applica
awareness and intelligence to optimize the netwmrkeet business and user needs; and the managememnte awareness, and control of
entire infrastructure.

Enterprise
Our highperformance network infrastructure offerings arsigieed to meet the performance, reliability, andusiéy requirements of ti
world's most demanding businesses. The enterprskeaingenerally is comprised of businesses; fedstate, and local governments; finan
services; and research and education institutiéngerprises and public sector organizations, sschowernments and research and educ
institutions, that view their networks as critidal their success are able to deploy our soluticns @owerful component in delivering
advanced network capabilities needed for theiritepddge applications. In addition, our solutions:

« Assist in the consolidation and delivery of exigtservices and applicatio

« Accelerate the deployment of new services and egiidns

« Offer network security across every environmefibm the data center to campus and branch envirntete assist in the protect
and recovery of services and applications; and

« Offer operational improvements that enable costicgdns, including lower administrative, trainirayistomer care, and labor co
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As with the service provider market, innovation townes to be a critical component in our stratemytiie enterprise market. Higlerformanc
enterprises require IP networks that are globatriduted, and always available. Network equipmasntdors serving these enterprises ne:
demonstrate performance, reliability, and secuwiyh best-inelass open solutions for maximum flexibility. Wefafenterprise solutions a
services for data centers, branch and campus afiphes, distributed and extended enterprises.

Customers

In 2014 and 2013, neingle customer accounted for 10% or more of ourreeenues. In 2012, Verizon Communications, IHge(izon")
accounted for 10.3% of our net revenues.

Products and Technology

Early in our history, we developed, marketed, aoldl she first commercially available purposeilt IP backbone router optimized for
specific highperformance requirements of service providers. lesrteed for core bandwidth continued to incredseneed for service ri
platforms at the edge of the network was created.

We have expanded our portfolio to address domaitise network: the core, the edge, access and gajie, data centers, WANs, and can
and branch. We have systematically focused on hewnmovate in silicon, systems, and software (lmih Junos OS as well as SDN
automation software) to provide a range of solimnhigh-performance networking that can solvequaiproblems for customers.

Our focus on higlperformance networking leads to focus in three pebdreas: routing, switching, and security. Inheaicthe past three fisc
years, sales of our routing, switching and secumiyducts, each accounted for more than 10% otonsolidated net revenues. The follow
is an overview of our major product families in 201

Routing Product:

* ACX SeriesOur ACX Series Universal Access Routers cost-éffelt address current operator challenges to rpmdploy new high-
bandwidth services. With industigading performance of up to 60Gbps and supportl@bE interfaces, the ACX Series is \
positioned to address the growing mobile backhae#ds of service providers. The platforms delivez tlecessary scale ¢
performance needed to support multi-generationicesy

* MX Series: Our MX Series is a family of higherformance, enterprise class and service protlsernet routers that functions &
Universal Edge platform capable of supporting bess mobile, and residential services in even dsée$tgrowing networks ar
markets. Powerful switching and security featuriee the MX Series 3D Universal Edge Routers unmeddtexibility, versatility, an
reliability to support advanced services and apgiims at the edge of the network. Using our grbueaking Trio chipset, the MV
platforms provide the carrier-class performancalescand reliability to enable service providers anterprises to support largeal
Ethernet deployments.

* M Series: Our M Series Edge Routers combine IP/mpittocol label switching ("MPLS") capabilities andn be deployed in sm
and medium core, multiservice edge, collapsed R&fing, peering, route reflector, and campus or Wgdteway applications.
Series provide reliability, stability, security, g broad array of services. Services include admray of VPNs, networkase!
security, real-time voice and video, bandwidth emdnd, rich multicast of premium content, IPv6 &&s, and granular accounting.

* PTX SeriesOur PTX Series Packet Transport Routers are desifprethe converged supercore. The system is tisé Supercol
packet system in the industry, and delivers powedipabilities based on innovative Express siliaod a forwarding architecture t
is focused on optimizing MPLS and Ethernet. The Priotv available in two form factors PTX5000 and PTX3000, delivers sevi
critical core functionalities and capabilities, luding marketleading density and scalability, cost optimizatibigh availability, an
network simplification. Our PTX Series products caadily adapt to today's rapidly changing traffatterns for video, mobility, al
cloud-based services.

* T SeriesOur T Series routers provide the leading featunesmultiterabit scale that service providers need to hamdissive grow!
in core bandwidth requirements. Our T Series rauieclude, among other features, the following: NdPDifferentiated Servici
(DiffServ-TE), point-to-multipoint label-switchedaths (P2MP LSPs), nonstop routing, unifieds@rvice software upgrades (unil
ISSUs), and hierarchical MPLS.
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Switching Products

 EX Series:Our EX Series Ethernet switches address the acaggsggation, and core layer switching requiremehtsicro branct
branch office, and campus and data center envirotengroviding a foundation for the fast, securad aeliable delivery ¢
applications able to support strategic businessgases. EX Series enterprise Ethernet switchedemigned to deliver operatio
efficiency, business continuity, and agility, ena@lcustomers to invest in innovative businessatiites that increase revenue and
them gain a competitive advantage.

e QFX Series Our QFX Series of products offers a revolutionapproach to switching that delivers dramatic imnproents in da
center performance, operating costs, and busirgBty dor enterprises, higlperformance computing systems, and cloud provi
Our QFX family, including the QFabric System (QHahXodes, Interconnect and Director) and QFX Se8estches (QFX510!
QFX3600, and QFX3500 Switch), combined with innoxatfabric and high availability software feature@s Junos, enabl
improvements in speed, scale, and efficiency byorény complexity and improving business agility.

Security Products

 SRX Series Services Gateways for the Data Ce@er:high-end SRX Series platforms delivers hggnformance, scalability, a
service integration in a chas$iased form factor ideally suited for medium to &enterprise and service provider data center
large campus environments where scalability, higifggmance, and concurrent services, are essemtial. SRX Series of dynan
services gateways provides firewall/VPN performaand scalability, and includes the AppSecure softeext-generation securi
capabilities that deliver greater visibility, endfement, control, and protection over the network.

 SRX Series Gateways for the Campus and Bra@ohsolidates proven security, next generation fe@NGFW") and broad UT!
services with routing and switching in a singlegtiperformance, costffective, network device. This consolidation ems
organizations to securely, reliably, and econonhicdéliver powerful new services and applicationsatl locations and users w
superior service quality. The SRX Series is powdngdlunos, the same industeading Operating System platform that keep:
world's largest networks available, manageable sacdre.

See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysiimancial Condition and Results of Operations,'Piart 1l of this Report, and Note
Segmentsin Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementteim 8 Part Il of this Report, for an analysis et nevenue by product and service.

Platform Strategy

In addition to our major product families, our sadre portfolio has been a key technology elemerdunstrategy to be the leader in high
performance networking.

Our Junos Platform enables our customers to expatvadork software into the application space, deglofgware clients to control delivery, ¢
accelerate the pace of innovation with an ecosystedevelopers. The Junos Platform includes theviohg products:

e Junos OSAt the heart of the Junos Platform is Junos OSbéleve Junos OS is fundamentally superior to otieéwork operatin
systems not only in its design, but also in itsedepment capabilities. The advantages of Junos@8de:

o One modular operating system with common base dé @nd a single, consistent implementation for eamitrol plan
feature;

o A highly disciplined and firmly scheduled developmherocess; ar

o One common modular software architecture thdesacross all Jundsased platform
Junos OS is designed to improve the availabiligrfgrmance, and security of business applicatiemsing across the netwo
Junos OS helps to automate network operations dyiging a single consistent implementation of feasuacross the network ii
single release train that seeks to minimize thepterity, cost, and risk associated with implemegtietwork features and upgrac

This operational efficiency allows network admiresbrs more time to

7
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innovate and deliver new revenue-generating appits, helping to advance the economics of higlegperance networking.

The security and stability of Junos OS, combinetth s modular architecture and common source ¢tade, provides a foundat
for delivering performance, reliability, securitgnd scale at a lower total cost of ownership thaidtiple operating code ba
environments. With an increasing number of ourfptais able to leverage Junos OS, including routswitching, and securi
products, we believe Junos OS provides us a cotiveetidvantage over other major network equipmentors.

e Junos SpaceOur Junos Space network management platform offeigpen, Service-Oriented Architectirased ("SOA") platfori
for creating organic and thingarty network management applications to drive nétvinnovation. Junos Space includes applica
for network infrastructure management and automatlat help customers reduce operational cost amdpkexity and sca
services. These include Network Director, Servisetivation Director, Security Director, Edge SemscDirector, Service Now, a
Service Insight.

e Contrail : Our Contrail cloud networking and service orchatstn solution offers an open-source, standdatsed platform fc
softwaredefined networks ("SDN") and network function vatization ("NFV"). This platform enables our custers to addre:
their key problems in the area of network autonmatagility, and time-teservice deployment by providing a mechanism tauairkze
the network over any physical network and autongathe provisioning and management of networkingises (such as secur
and load balancing). Contrail’s differentiation lumbes a distributed architecture that allows ubuibd in scale-out, higlavailability
and in-service upgrade capabilities; a muéiirdor solution familiar to our customers that whoContrail to seamlessly interope!
with equipment from major networking vendors; aemsource licensing model to provide a true freedbichoice without lockn,
and sophisticated granular analytics for networdt afrastructure performance, all fully driven bf8T APIs that can be used
customers to work with any provisioning and managensystem.

Significant Product Development Projects

In 2014, we continued to invest in innovation atr@rsgthening our product portfolio, which resuliachew product offerings across routi
switching, and security. In routing, we announcedrtualized version of our flagship MX Series 3niversal Edge Routing platform,
vMX 3D Universal Edge Router, to deliver the indy'st first full-featured, carriegrade virtualized router. The vMX 3D gives servizevider:
and enterprises the ability to seamlessly levethgdenefits of both virtual and physical netwogkin

In switching, to address the networking requireraaritlarge cloud providers and enterprise customas build large and massive scale
centers, we announced OCX1100, the first switcbatmbine Open Compute Project (OCP) hardware desgitinJunos OS, our carrietas:
network operating system. We also announced a mmmof EX4600 Ethernet switches to fulfill the irasing demands for highly availa
access to cloud services and applications acrdsspeise campus networks.

Additionally, we expanded our SDN portfolio withwmesoftware and hardware, including the NorthStant@iler, a new traffieengineerin
controller that leverages open, industry-standaodogols built to optimize service providetsansport networks, as well as the Junos Fi
software that controls thousands of independemtar&telements from a single management plane.

Our key strategic technology partnerships alsovdsdid new solutions to address the highformance network requirements of our sel
provider and enterprise customers. Through integratith Gainspeed’ technology and our MX Series 3D Universal EdgetBs and E.
Series Switches, we announced the Virtual Convegable Access Platform, allowing cable operatordbdtier automate and scale t
edge/access infrastructure while creating a platffor new cloudbased services. Additionally, we partnered with iddk advance the Tel
Cloud for mobile broadband and accelerate servieation by bringing together Nokia's leading Lig@dre solution and the Juniper Netwc
MetaFabric™ data center architecture, including t€oh Furthermore, we signed a go to market agergmvith Aruba to deliver an op
converged enterprise network solution by integoathmuba mobility solutions with Juniper enterprggitches and routers, delivering ongc
product innovation to enterprise customers.

For security, we announced Firefly Perimeter auairtversion of our SRX Series Services Gateway, agvancements in our Spotlight Se«
threat intelligence platform, Junos®ace Virtual Director, an application that autaesahe management and deployment of Firefly Peein
as well as Juniper Argon Secure, an advanced altirane service.
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Research and Development

We have assembled a team of skilled engineers exithnsive experience in the fields of highd computing, network system design, A
design, security, routing protocols, software aggilons and platforms, and embedded operating regst&s of December 31, 2014we
employed 3,797 people in our worldwide R&D orgatian.

We believe that strong product development cagadsiliare essential to our strategy of enhancingcous technology, developing additio
applications, integrating that technology, and rtaiting the competitiveness and innovation of owrdpct and service offerings. In «
products, we are leveraging our software, ASIC systems technology, developing additional netwotkrfaces targeted to our custorr
applications, and continuing to develop technoltmgupport the buildut of high performance networks and cloud envirents. We contint
to expand the functionality of our products to ilmye performance, reliability and scalability, angptovide an enhanced user interface.

Our R&D process is driven by the availability ofwnéechnology, market demand, and customer feedb&ekhave invested significant il
and resources in creating a structured processllfproduct development projects. Following an asseent of market demand, our R&D t¢
develops a full set of comprehensive functionaldpiai specifications based on inputs from the produgnagement and sales organizat
This process is designed to provide a frameworld&fining and addressing the steps, tasks, anditéegirequired to bring product conce
and development projects to market. Expenditure®&D were $1,006.2 million , $1,043.2 million ,&$1,101.6 million in 2014 , 2013anc
2012 , respectively.

Sales and Marketing

As of December 31, 2014 , we employed 2,3g€ople in our worldwide sales and marketing orzmion. These sales and marke
employees operate in different locations aroundatbgd in support of our customers.

Our sales organization, with its structure of sgiesfessionals, system engineers, and marketingchadnel teams, is generally split betw
service provider and enterprise customers. Witlaicheteam, sales team members serve the followirsg theographic regions: (i) Ameri
(including United States, Canada, Mexico, Caribbaash Central and South America), (i) EMEA, ang PAC. Within each region, there i
regional and country teams, as well as verticaketsiocused teams, to ensure we operate closer toustomers.

Our sales teams operate in their respective regindggenerally either engage customers directmamage customer opportunities througt
distribution and reseller relationships or chanslslescribed below.

In the United States and Canada, we sell to sewemlice providers directly and sell to other smevproviders and enterprise custor
primarily through distributors and resellers. AlrmaB of our sales outside the United States anth@a are made through our channel partner

Direct Sales Structure

Our sales team engages with ars#r customers with whom we have direct relatigmshirhe terms and conditions of these arrangenzee
governed either by customer purchase orders andakmowledgment of those orders or by purchaseractst The direct contracts with th
customers set forth only general terms of sale ganerally do not require customers to purchaseifsgeauantities of our products. \
directly receive and process customer purchasagsrde

Channel Sales Structure

A critical part of our sales and marketing effate our channel partners through which we condwectitajority of our sales. We utilize varit
channel partners, including but not limited to thkowing:

« A global network of strategic distributor retaiships, as well as region-specific or courgpgcific distributors who in turn sell
local VARs who sell to endser customers. Our distribution channel partnessit routing, switching and security products v
are purchased by both enterprise and service mpwdstomers. These distributors tend to be focusegarticular regions
countries within regions. For example, we have suti@l distribution relationships with Ingram Micm the Americas and Hitac
in Japan. Our agreements with these distributogsganerally norexclusive, limited by region, and provide produntaservic
discounts and other ordinary terms of sale. Thgseeaents do not require our distributors to pusehspecified quantities of ¢
products or services. Further, most of our distoksisell our competitor's products and serviced, some sell their own compet
products and services.




Table of Contents

« VARs and Direct valuedded resellers ("DVARs"), including our strategiorldwide resellers referenced below, that resat
products to endisers around the world. These channel partnersrditly our products and services through VARs,i@ctly from
us, and have expertise in designing, selling, aploying complex networking solutions in their resfive markets. Our agreeme
with these channel partners are generally exciusive, limited by region, and provide produotaservice discounts and ot
ordinary terms of sale. These agreements do neireethese channel partners to purchase specifiadtijies of our products
services. Increasingly, our service provider custianalso resell our products or services to thestamers or purchase our prodi
or services for the purpose of providing manageclaurd-based services to their customers.

« Strategic worldwide reseller relationships withadsished historical Juniper alliances, comprised\wkia Solutions Networks B.'
("NSN"), Ericsson Telecom A.B. (“Ericsson”Rimension Data, and International Business Mach{fil8M"). These companit
each offer services and products that complememnowa product and service offerings and act assaller, and in some instan
as an integration partner for our products. Ouarsgements with these partners allow them to reselproducts and services o
worldwide, nonexclusive basis, provide for product and servigealints, and specify other general terms of sdles& agreemel
do not require these partners to purchase specjtiadtities of our products or services.

Customer Service

In addition to our products, we offer support, pssfional, and educational services. We deliveretisesvices directly to our channel parti
and to end-users and utilize a multi-tiered suppoddel, leveraging the capabilities of our partpexsd thirdparty organizations,
appropriate.

We also train our channel partners in the deliargupport, professional, and educational servicensure these services are locally delive

As of December 31, 2014 , we employed 1,4@88ple in our worldwide customer service and suppaganization. We believe that a br
range of services is essential to the successiibmer deployment and ongoing support of our prtsduand we employ support engine
consultants, and educators with proven network ikepee to provide those services.

Manufacturing and Operations

As of December 31, 2014 , we employed P&dple in worldwide manufacturing and operation®phimarily manage relationships with
contract manufacturers, manage our supply chairsabétier suppliers, and monitor and manage proisting and quality.

Our manufacturing is primarily conducted througimttact manufacturers and outside design manufastirehe United States ("U.S."), Chi
Malaysia, Mexico, and Taiwan. As of December 311£20we utilize Celestica Incorporated, Flextronicketnational Ltd., Accton Technolo
Corporation, and Alpha Networks Inc. for the majordof our manufacturing activity. Our contract méauiurers and outside des
manufacturers in all locations are responsibleafbphases of manufacturing from prototypes to fuiduction and assist with activities suc
material procurement, final assembly, test, consioipment to our customers, and repairs. Togetiterour contract manufacturers and out
design manufacturers, we design, specify, and rootiie tests that are required for our producta¢et internal and external quality stande
These arrangements provide us with the followingetfiés:

e We can quickly deliver products to customerdwitrnkey manufacturing and drgpipment capabilitie

*  We gain economies of scale by leveraging our bupimger with our contract manufacturers and outdigiign manufacturers wt
we purchase large quantities of components;

« We operate with a minimum amount of dedicated spacmanufacturing operations; ¢
e We can reduce our costs by reducing what would athyrbe fixed overhead expens

Our contract manufacturers and outside design naatwrers build our products based on our rollingdpct demand forecasts. Each con
manufacturer procures components necessary to bksdhe products in our forecast and tests the ymtsdaccording to agreegsor
specifications. Products are then shipped to atridutors, VARs, or endsers. Generally, we do not own the componentte ftthe finishe
goods is generally transferred from the contrachufecturers to us when the products leave the achtmanufacturer's location. Custon
take title to the products upon delivery at a sipettidestination. If the components
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remain unused or the products remain unsold f@eaifed period, we may incur carrying chargeslmsalete materials charges for compon
that our contract manufacturers purchased to lmdducts to meet our forecast or customer orders.

Although we have contracts with our contract maotufigers and outside design manufacturers, thostam® merely set forth a framew
within which the contract manufacturer and outsidsign manufacturer, as applicable, may accepthpaecorders from us. The contract:
not require them to manufacture our products ang-term basis.

We also purchase and hold inventory for stratega&sons and to mitigate the risk of shortages dhicecritical component supplies. 1
majority of our inventory is production componems. a result, we may incur additional holding ccemtsl obsolescence charges, particu
resulting from uncertainties in future product dewha

Some of our custom components, such as applicapenific integrated circuits ("ASICs") are manutaed primarily by sole or limite
sources, each of which is responsible for all aspafcproduction using our proprietary designs.

By working collaboratively with our suppliers, wave the opportunity to promote socially responskhlsiness practices beyond our comj
and into our worldwide supply chain. To this end tave adopted a supplier code of conduct and geemmpliance with such code
conduct to our suppliers. One element of our seppiode of conduct is adoption and compliance whighElectronic Industry Code of Cond
(“EICC"). The EICC outlines standards to promote ethicaliass practices, eliminate human trafficking, angles that working conditions
the electronics industry supply chain are safe kexs are treated with respect and dignity, and rizewring processes are environmen
responsible. Our Corporate Citizenship Report amgpbfer Code of Conduct are available on our websit

Backlog

Our sales are made primarily pursuant to purcheder® under framework agreements with our customddrany given time, we have back
orders for products that have not shipped. Becaustomers may cancel purchase orders or changeedekchedules without significe
penalty, we believe that our backlog at any givatednay not be a reliable indicator of future opiegaresults. As of December 31, 2044c
December 31, 2013 , our total product backlog wagraximately $445.3 million and $470.7 millignrespectively. Our product back
consists of confirmed orders for products schedtodoe shipped to customers, generally within teet isix months, and excludes orders f
distributors as we recognize product revenue oessalade through distributors upon sell-throughngiesers. Backlog also excludes cer
future revenue adjustments for items such as ptodwenue deferrals, sales return reserves, sergignue allocations, and early payn
discounts.

Seasonality

We, as do many companies in our industry, expeeie@asonal fluctuations in customer spending pattétistorically, we have experien:
stronger customer demand in the fourth quarteneemker demand in the first quarter. This historfrzttern should not be considered a rel
indicator of our future net revenues or financiatfprmance.

Competition

We compete in the network infrastructure marketseese markets are characterized by rapid changeerging technologies, and a migral
to networking solutions that offer agility advantéagin the network infrastructure business, Cisgste®ns, Inc. ("Cisco") has historically b
the dominant player. However, our principal compesi also include Alcatdlucent, Arista Networks, Inc. ("Arista"), Broce
Communications Systems, Inc. ("Brocade"), Hewlettkard Company ("HP"), and Huawei Technologies Cul., ("Huawei").

Many of our current and potential competitors, sashCisco, Alcatel-ucent, HP, and Huawei, among others, bundle {miducts with othe
networking products in a manner that may discouragtomers from purchasing our products. In addjttmnsolidation among competitors
the acquisition of our partners and resellers bym&titors, can increase the competitive pressuredfdy us due to their increased size
breadth of their product portfolios. Many of ouri@nt and potential competitors have greater naegnition, marketing budgets, and n
extensive customer bases that they may leveragermete more effectively. Increased competitionldaasult in price reductions, few
customer orders, reduced gross margins, and lassuket share, negatively affecting our operatewults.

In addition, there are a number of other competitorthe security space, including Check Point\8afé Technologies, Ltd. ("Check Point"),
F5 Networks, Inc. ("F5 Networks"), Fortinet, In€F6rtinet"), and Palo Alto Networks, Inc. ("PalotéINetworks"), among others, who tend to
be focused on single product line solutions angkefore, may be considered specialized comparedrtbroader product line.
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In addition to established competitors, a numbeyuiflic and private companies have announced ftamew products to address the same
needs that our products address. We believe thathility to compete with Cisco and others depeaumatsn our ability to demonstrate that our
products are superior in meeting the needs of orent and potential customers.

We expect that over time, large companies withigmt resources, technical expertise, market Bgpee, customer relationships, and bi
product lines, such as Cisco, Alcakeieent, and Huawei, will introduce new productsigesd to compete more effectively in the mai
There are also several other companies that caimave products with greater capabilities thanpyaducts. Further, there has been signifi
consolidation in the networking industry, with stealcompanies being acquired by larger, establishgupliers of network infrastructt
products. We believe this trend is likely to coogn

As a result, we expect to face increased competitiothe future from larger companies with sigrafitly more resources than we hi
Although we believe that our technology and theppaebuilt features of our products make them unique waiitlenable us to compe
effectively with these companies, we cannot guaethat we will be successful.

Environment

We are committed to maintaining compliance witheailironmental laws applicable to our operatiomsdpcts and services and to redu
our environmental impact across our business apglgwehain. Our operations and many of our prodacessubject to various federal, st
local and foreign regulations that have been adbptieh respect to the environment, such as the g/B#ctrical and Electronic Equipm
(“WEEE") Directive, Directive on the Restriction tiie Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Etataind Electronic Equipment (“RoHS”
and Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, andstRetion of Chemicals (“REACH"yegulations adopted by the European Union and C
To date, compliance with federal, state, local, Bordign laws enacted for the protection of theiemment has had no material effect on
capital expenditures, earnings, or competitive tpmsi However, see the risk factor entitled "Regola of industry in general and f
telecommunications industry in particular couldrhasur operating results and future prospects" engéction entitled "Risk Factors” in It
1A of Part | of this Report for additional inforni@t concerning RoHS compliance.

We are also voluntarily participating in the CDPr(herly the Carbon Disclosure Project) and encaairagr direct material suppli¢
representing an aggregate of at least 80% of ousalimlated total direct expenditure to do the saBigP is a global standardized mechat
by which companies report their greenhouse gassionis to institutional investors. In fact, in 20k achieved a position on CBPS&P 501
Climate Disclosure Leadership Index, the S&P 50@m@le Performance Leadership Index, and the CDRpleupClimate Performan:
Leadership Index 2014. We continue to invest initfi@structure and systemesquired to be able to inventory and measure adrocefootprin
on a global basis. We believe we have made sigmifistrides in improving our energy efficiency arduhe world.

In addition, we are committed to the environmemnotigh our efforts to improve the energy efficieréykey elements in our higberformanc
network product offerings. In 2012, we launcheeiaos carrierelass MPLS switches, the PTX5000 series. In additicfilling the capacity ar
density requirement for Internet core growth, PTBG0which featured record energy efficiency of 1.p&f Gigabit of throughput. In 2014,
further enhanced the PTX5000 series and introdtleedrPC2 for the PTX5000 MPLS switches, which fesgienergy efficiency of 1.2W
Gigabit of throughput, and we also launched the BIREZ our MX2020 and MX2010 3D Universal Edge Rostevhich uses 2W per Giga
of full-duplex traffic. The environment will remainfocus area across multiple aspects of our bssine

Intellectual Property

Our success and ability to compete are substantejbendent upon our internally developed technoloyl expertise, as well as our abilit
obtain and protect necessary intellectual propeghts. While we rely on patent, copyright, tradecret, and trademark law, as well
confidentiality agreements, to protect our techgglave also believe that factors such as the tdolgiwal and creative skills of our person
new product developments, frequent product enhaepotsnand reliable product maintenance are esbkeémtestablishing and maintaining
technology leadership position. There can be narasse that others will not develop technologieat thre similar or superior to ¢
technology.

In addition, we integrate licensed thipasty technology into certain of our products afndm time to time, we license additional technol
from third parties to develop new products or pidenhancements. There can be no assurance ttikp#ity licenses will be available
continue to be available to us on commercially seable terms or at all. Our inability to maintainre-license any thirgharty licenses requir
in our products or our inability to obtain thip#rty licenses necessary to develop new productpesduct enhancements could require 1
obtain substitute technology of lower quality orfpemance standards or at a greater cost, any afhwtould harm our business, finan
condition, and results of operations.
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As of December 31, 201,4ve had over 2,400 patents worldwide and numepatent applications are pending. Patents gendraihg a term ¢
twenty years from filing. As our patent portfoli@$ been built over time, the remaining terms onildévidual patents vary. We cannot
certain that patents will be issued on the patpptieations that we have filed, that we will be@albd obtain the necessary intellectual prog
rights, or that other parties will not contest mtellectual property rights.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014 , we had 8,806 fifle employees. We have not experienced any woppsiges, and we consider our relations
our employees to be good. Competition for qualifiedsonnel in our industry is intense. We belidhat pur future success depends in pa
our continued ability to hire, motivate, and retgiralified personnel. We believe that we have Ismeessful in recruiting qualified employe
but there is no assurance that we will continueet@uccessful in the future.

Our future performance depends significantly ugendontinued service of our key technical, saled, senior management personnel, noi
whom are bound by an employment agreement requingice for any defined period of time. The lo®me or more of our key employ¢
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition, and results of operations.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following sets forth certain information regiaigiour executive officers as of the filing of tiReport:

Name Age Position

Rami Rahim 44 Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pradeep Sindhu 62 Chief Technical Officer and Vice Chairman of thealBa

Robyn M. Denholm 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial ane@pons Officer

Executive Vice President and General Manager, éuriygvelopment

Jonathan Davidson 41 :
and Innovation
Vince Molinaro 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Customer Officer
Mitchell Gaynor 55 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &agre
Terrance F. Spidell 46 Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Agtong Officer

RAMI RAHIMjoined Juniper in January 1997 and became Chietiike Officer of Juniper, and a member of our Bbaf Directors, il
November 2014. From March 2014, until he becamee=fClkecutive Officer, Mr. Rahim served as Executiliee President and Gene
Manager of Juniper Development and Innovation (“JIlHis responsibilities included driving strateglevelopment and business growth
routing, switching, security, silicon technologydathe Junos operating system. Previously, Mr. iRadgrved Juniper in a number of ra
including Executive Vice President and General Mgnaf Platform Systems Division for routing anditshing, Senior Vice President of 1
Edge and Aggregation Business Unit (EABU), and \Reesident and General Manager of EABU. Prior #i,tMr. Rahim spent the major
of his time at Juniper in the development orgaivratvhere he helped with the architecture, desigh implementation of many Juniper ct
edge, and carrier Ethernet products. Mr. Rahimsal@achelor of Science degree in Electrical Eregging from the University of Toronto a
a Master of Science degree in Electrical Enginggfriom Stanford University.

PRADEEP SINDHUfounded Juniper in February 1996 and served ad Ekexutive Officer and Chairman of the Board uBS@ptember 199
Since then, Dr. Sindhu has served as Vice Chairofidhe Board and Chief Technical Officer of Juniperom September 1984 to Febrt
1991, Dr. Sindhu worked as a Member of the Rese@taff, from March 1987 to February 1996, as thiadijpal Scientist, and from Februi
1994 to February 1996, as Distinguished EnginedteaComputer Science Lab at Xerox Corporationg Rdtlo Research Center, a technol
research center. Dr. Sindhu served as a membéedfdard of directors of Infinera Corporation, avider of optical networking equipme
from September 2001 to May 2008.

ROBYN M. DENHOLNoined Juniper in August 2007 as Executive Viceskient and Chief Financial Officer. In July 2013s.NDenholm we
promoted to Executive Vice President and Chief kaie@l and Operations Officer. Prior to joining Jusi, Ms. Denholm was at S
Microsystems, Inc. ("Sun") from January 1996 to Asig2007, where she served in executive assignnieaténcluded Senior Vice Presid
of Corporate Strategic Planning, Senior Vice Presicdbf Finance, Vice President and Corporate Chetr¢Chief Accounting Officer), Vic
President of Finance, Director of Service Divisiand Shared Financial Services APAC and ControMastralia/New Zealand. Prior to joini
Sun, Ms. Denholm served at Toyota Motor Corporafstralia for seven years and at Arthur AnderseG@@npany for five years in varic
finance assignments. Ms. Denholm is a Fellow of lh&itute of Chartered Accountants of Australiad amlds a Bachelor's degree
Economics from the University of Sydney
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and a Master's degree in Commerce from the UniyeodiNew South Wales. In addition, since Augusi£0Ms. Denholm has served ¢
member of the board of directors of Tesla Motans, |

JONATHAN DAVIDSOIjoined Juniper in March 2010 and became Executiee Yresident and General Manager of Juniper Dpusdait an
Innovation ("JDI") in January 2015. From July 20d4til he became Executive Vice President and Géméamager of JDI, Mr. Davidsc
served as Senior Vice President and General Marfagduniper Networks Security, Switching and Siolu$ Business Unit. Previously, |
Davidson was Junipex’Senior Vice President and General Manager o€tmapus and Data Center Business Unit and Vice d&meisiProdur
Line Management, where he was responsible for Rigging and Aggregation Business product manageettstrategy. Prior to joinil
Juniper, Mr. Davidson had a J®&ar career at Cisco Systems, Inc., where he sawdirector of Product Management and led therprise
routing product management team and service prolialger 4 through Layer 7 services team.

VINCE MOLINAROjoined Juniper in 2009 as Senior Vice PresidenSales, and served as Executive Vice Presidents S&kyvices ar
Support from July 2013 to February 2014, and culyeserves as our Executive Vice President and fGbiestomer Officer. Prior to joinir
Juniper, Mr. Molinaro held senior leadership pasi§i at a number of technology companies includiatj Baboratories, Lucent Technologi
AlcateldLucent and Internap Network Services. He has eiktendomestic and international experience havimgdi and managed lat
organizations throughout Europe and the U.S. Mrliddoo holds a Bachelor of Science degree in BiansdEngineering from Bostt
University and a Master of Science degree in HigatEngineering from University of Bridgeport.

MITCHELL GAYNOFjoined Juniper in February 2004 as Vice Presid@eneral Counsel, and Secretary and served as Séin®Presiden
General Counsel and Secretary from February 200Betwuary 2011 and is currently our Executive VRresident, General Counsel
Secretary. Prior to joining Juniper, Mr. Gaynor wése President, General Counsel, and Secretariyoofal Software, Inc., a provider
account management software that was subsequastglyirad by Oracle Corporation ("Oracle”), and Syhdsac., an enterprise and mol
software company that was subsequently acquireégA®y AG. In private practice, he was an associate thie law firm of Brobeck, Phleger
Harrison. Mr. Gaynor holds a Law degree from Unsitgrof California's Hastings College of the Lawdam Bachelor degree in History fri
the University of California, Berkeley.

TERRANCE F. SPIDELJoined Juniper in August 2011 as Vice Presidensigtant Corporate Controller, and has served as Riesiden
Corporate Controller, since November 2012. In 20MB, Spidell assumed the position of Chief AccongtOfficer of the Company. Befc
joining the Company, Mr. Spidell was at VeriSign¢l, a provider of Internet infrastructure servjcas Vice President, Corporate Contro
from June 2009 through July 2011 and as Vice PeasjdAccounting Operations, from March 2008 throdghe 2009. Prior to VeriSign, I
Spidell held various positions, most recently SeiManager, at PricewaterhouseCoopers, a regisparelic accounting firm, from Novemt
1993 through March 2008. Mr. Spidell is a Certifidblic Accountant and holds a Bachelor in Busingdministration, with degrees
Finance and Accounting, from Boise State University

Available Information

We file our annual reports on Form 10-K, quartedgorts on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Fo#hpRirsuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet, twe SEC electronically. The SEC maintains a welibat contains reports, proxy ¢
information statements, and other information rdoay issuers, including Juniper Networks that &lectronically with the SEC. The addres
that website is http://www.sec.gov.

You may obtain a free copy of our annual report&om 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmaports on Form &, and amendmer

to those reports on our website at http://www.jenipet, by contacting our Investor Relations Departt at our corporate offices by calling 1
408-936-5396, or by sending aneil message to investorrelations@juniper.net. Segtorts and other information are available on
website as soon as reasonably practicable aftgratteeelectronically filed with, or furnished thet SEC. Our Corporate Governance Stand
the charters of our Audit Committee, Compensatiom@ittee, Stock Committee, and Nominating and CajgoGovernance Committee,
well as our Worldwide Code of Business Conduct Btidcs are also available on our website. Inforaratin our website is not, and will not
deemed, a part of this Report or incorporated amy other filings the Company makes with the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Factors That May Affect Future Results

Investments in our securities involve significaisks. Even small changes in investor expectation®ar future growth and earnings, whe
as a result of actual or rumored financial or opegaresults, changes in the mix of the productd aervices sold, acquisitions, indu
changes, or other factors, could trigger, and hdggered in the past, significant fluctuationghie market price of our common stock. Inves
in our securities should carefully consider alltio¢ relevant factors disclosed by us, including, fmt limited to, the following factors, tt
could affect our business, operating results ancksprice.

Our quarterly results are unpredictable and subjdotsubstantial fluctuations; as a result, we maailfto meet the expectations of securi
analysts and investors, which could adversely affée trading price of our common stock.

Our revenues and operating results may vary sagmifly from quarter-t@uarter due to a number of factors, many of whighautside of ot
control and any of which may cause our stock piacuctuate.

The factors that may cause our quarterly resultsaty quarter by quarter and be unpredictable geldut are not limited to: limited visibili
into customer spending plans, changes in the mproducts and services sold, changes in the moeofjraphies in which our products
services are sold, changing market and economiditoms, current and potential customer consolagtcompetition, customer concentrat
long sales and implementation cycles, unpredictaldering patterns, changes in the amount and émsguof share repurchases or divide
regional economic and political conditions, andseeality. For example, we, and many companies inralustry, experience adverse seas
fluctuations in customer spending, particularlytie first quarter. Furthermore market trends, cditipe pressures, commoditization
products, seasonal rebates, increased componshipping costs, regulatory impacts and other factoay result in reductions in revenur
pressure on gross margins of certain segmentgivea period, which may necessitate adjustmentaitaoperations. Such adjustments ma
difficult or impossible to execute in the shortneedium term.

As a result of these factors, as well as otherabées affecting our operating results, we belidwg tuarter-taguarter comparisons of operat
results are not necessarily a good indication adtvatur future performance will be. It is likely tha some quarters, our operating results wi
below our guidance, our lortgfrm financial model or the expectations of se@sitinalysts or investors, in which case the mfagaur commo
stock may decline. Such a decline could occur,te®occurred in the past, even when we have meiuhlicly stated revenues and/or earn
guidance.

A limited number of our customers comprise a sigoént portion of our revenues and there is an onggitrend toward consolidation in tt
industry in which our customers and partners opegatAny decrease in revenues from our customers artipers could have an adver
effect on our net revenues and operating results.

A substantial majority of our net revenues depemdales to a limited number of customers and Higtion partners, particularly in our serv
provider market. Changes in the business requiresnerendor selection, project prioritization, fiméad prospects, capital resources,
expenditures, or purchasing behavior (includingdpad mix purchased) of our key customers could igamtly decrease our sales to s
customers or could lead to delays or cancellatminplanned purchases of our products or servicdschwincreases the risk of quarte
fluctuations in our revenues and operating resiélis; of these factors could adversely affect ousibess, financial condition, and result:
operations.

In addition, in recent years, there has been momenmvards consolidation in the telecommunicatiamdustry (for example, Vodafone’
acquisition of Spanish cable operator, Ono, NumabtEes purchase of SFR, France’s seclangdest telecommunications operator,
acquisition of TW Telecom by Level 3 CommunicatiopAS &T's proposed acquisition of DirectTV, and Coast's proposed acquisition
Time Warner Cable) and that consolidation trenddmaginued. If our customers or partners are patteconsolidation transactions they 1
delay, suspend or indefinitely reduce or cancel therchases of our products or other direct oirgat unforeseen consequences could |
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations.

Fluctuating economic conditions make it difficuliot predict revenues and gross margin for a particufgeriod and a shortfall in revenues
increase in costs of production may harm our openaf results.

Our revenues and gross margin depend significamtlgeneral economic conditions and the demandrfmayzts in the markets in which
compete. Economic weakness, customer financiatdiffes, and constrained spending on network esioanand enterprise infrastructure h
in the past resulted in, and may in the futureltesudecreased revenues and earnings. Such $aoboifd make it difficult to accurately forec
sales and operating results and could negativébgtadur ability to provide accurate
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forecasts to our contract manufacturers and mamagecontract manufacturer relationships and othgemses. In addition, econor
uncertainty, as well as continued turmoil in thep@itical environment in many parts of the wothdve, and may continue to, put pressut
global economic conditions, which has led, and daantinue to lead, to reduced demand for our mtsjdo delays or reductions in netw
expansions or infrastructure projects, and/or higiests of production. For example, if the U.S.lalotontinues to strengthen against ¢
currencies such as the Euro, our revenues reportedS. dollars would decline. In addition, for Ud&llar denominated sales, an increa:
the value of the U.S. dollar would increase thd oest to customers of our products in markets idatshe U.S., which could impact «
competitive position. More generalgpeaking, economic weakness may also lead to loogigction cycles for payments due from
customers, an increase in customer bad debt, césting initiatives and associated expenses, arghimment of investments. Furtherme
instability in the global credit markets may adedysmpact the ability of our customers to adeglyafiend their expected capital expenditu
which could lead to delays or cancellations of pksth purchases of our products or services. Ouratipgrexpenses are largely base(
anticipated revenue trends and a high percentageiroéxpenses is, and will continue to be, fixedhiea short and medium term. Theref
fluctuations in revenue could cause significantatayns in our operating results and operating nmagrffom quarter to quarter.

Uncertainty about future economic conditions alsakes it difficult to forecast operating results ananake decisions about future investme
Future or continued economic weakness, failurewfaustomers and markets to recover from such wesskrcustomer financial difficultic
increases in costs of production, and reductiorspeanding on network maintenance and expansiordgesult in price concessions in cer
markets or have a material adverse effect on denf@mdur products and consequently on our busin@&sancial condition, and results
operations.

Our success depends upon our ability to effectivelgn and manage our resources and restructure dwsiness through rapidly fluctuatin
economic and market conditions, and such actionsyteave an adverse effect on our financial and optmng results.

Our ability to successfully offer our products aseérvices in a rapidly evolving market requires dieotive planning, forecasting, a
management process to enable us to effectivelg scal adjust our business in response to flucmatiarket opportunities and conditions.

In periods of market expansion, we have increas@dstment in our business by, for example, incrgasieadcount and increasing
investment in R&D, sales and marketing, and ottegtspof our business. Conversely, in 2014, to efabe Companyg' strategy, optimize i
structure and improve operational efficienciesamreection with our integrated operating plan, oPJ@e implemented a new strategic fo
realigned our organization into a Odeniper structure, reduced our workforce, constdidiaand closed facilities, made changes to enl
efficiency, improved cost management measures astituted new capital allocation plan. In connettiwith cost management,
implemented a substantial cost reduction plan aptished through various restructuring activitiesoss research and development, sale:
marketing and general and administrative. We rembia goodwill impairment charge of $850.0 millionthe fourth quarter of 2014 due to
underperformance of our Security reporting unit @noduct rationalizations. Further strategyated pivots could lead to delays in achie
revenue and profit forecasts and result in additiompairment. Some of our expenses are fixed dbatscannot be rapidly or easily adjuste
response to fluctuations in our business or numbémmployees. Rapid changes in the size, alignmerdgrganization of our workforc
including sales account coverage, could adverdédgteour ability to develop and deliver productalaservices as planned or impair our ak
to realize our current or future business and fiferobjectives. Our ability to achieve the antatipd cost savings and other benefits from
restructuring initiatives within the expected tirframe is subject to many estimates and assumptiimsse estimates and assumption:
subject to significant economic, competitive ankdeotuncertainties, some of which are beyond outrobrif these estimates and assumpt
are incorrect, if we are unsuccessful at implenmgnthanges, or if other unforeseen events occurbasiness and results of operations c
be adversely affected.

The long sales and implementation cycles for ourogducts, as well as our expectation that some custimwill sporadically place larg
orders with short lead times, may cause our revemaad operating results to vary significantly froquarter-to-quarter.

A customer's decision to purchase certain of oadpets, particularly new products, involves a digant commitment of its resources ar
lengthy evaluation and product qualification praceAs a result, the sales cycle may be lengthypdrticular, customers making criti
decisions regarding the design and implementatfdarge network deployments may engage in verytlengrocurement processes that |
delay or impact expected future orders. Throughbetsales cycle, we may spend considerable timeatidg and providing information
prospective customers regarding the use and bgra#fibur products. Even after making the decismpurchase, customers may deploy
products slowly and deliberately. Timing of deplaymh can vary widely and depends on the skill seahefcustomer, the size of the netw
deployment, the complexity of the customer's nekwemvironment, and the degree of hardware and tpgrsystem configuration necessar
deploy the products. Customers
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with large networks usually expand their netwonkdarge increments on a periodic basis. Accordinglg may receive purchase orders
significant dollar amounts on an irregular basisede long cycles, as well as our expectation tstomers will tend to sporadically place le
orders with short lead times, both of which mayelacerbated by the impact of continued global ecoceveakness, may cause revenues
operating results to vary significantly and unexpdty from quarter-to-quarter.

We face intense competition that could reduce oawenues and adversely affect our business and friahresults.

Competition is intense in the markets that we sefbe network equipment market has historicallynbdeminated by Cisco, with competit
coming from other companies such as Alcaiatent, Brocade, Hewlett Packard Company, and Hudwé¢he security market, we face inte
competition from these same companies as well agpanies such as Check Point, F5 Networks, Fortaret, Palo Alto Networks. Further
number of other small public and private compahiege products or have announced plans for new ptedo address the same challenge:
markets that our products address.

In addition, actual or speculated consolidation aghocompetitors, or the acquisition of our partreard/or resellers by competitors, can incr
the competitive pressures faced by us as, customaysdelay spending decisions or not purchase mdugts at all. For example, in rec
years, Oracle acquired Acme Packet, Inc., and Cémpired Meraki Networks, Inc. and Sourcefire,. Inehich further consolidated ¢
market. A number of our competitors have substiytipeater resources and can offer a wider rarfggraducts and services for the ove
network equipment market than we do. If we are isntdcompete successfully against existing anaréutompetitors on the basis of proc
offerings or price, we could experience a loss arkat share and revenues and/or be required t@egaiices, which could reduce our gi
margins, and which could materially and adverséflgch our business, financial condition, and resolt operations. Our partners and rese
generally sell or resell competing products on a-exclusive basis and consolidation could delay sipgndr require us to increase discoun
compete, which could also adversely affect ourress.

We expect our gross margins and operating margios/ary over time, and the level of product grossrgias achieved by us in recent yei
may not be sustainable.

We expect our product gross margins to vary frorargu-toguarter, and the gross margins we have achievedcent years may not
sustainable and may be adversely affected in thediby numerous factors, including customer, pebd@nd geographic mix shifts, increa
price competition in one or more of the marketsvirich we compete, increases in material, laboineentory carrying costs, excess prot
component or obsolescence charges from our contranufacturers, increased costs due to changesnipanent pricing or charges incur
due to component holding periods if we do not aatgly forecast product demand, warranty relategeissor our introduction of new prodt
or entry into new markets with different pricingdacost structures. For example, in the third quant€012, our margins declined as a rest
an inventory charge resulting from inventory wedhiel excess of forecasted demand. We determinemenating expenses largely on the k
of anticipated revenues and a high percentage pferpenses are fixed in the short and medium tésna result, a failure or delay
generating or recognizing revenue could cause fgigni variations in our operating results and afiag margin from quarter-tquarter
Failure to sustain or improve our gross marginsiced our profitability and may have a material askwesffect on our business and stock price

Further, in early 2014, we announced our IOP, whitlsombination with our new cost reduction initi@ announced in October 2014
intended to reduce our operating expenses andctes fon cost controls. We expect that our margitls adcordingly, vary with our ability 1
achieve the goals of the IOP as supplemented bgetecost reduction initiative, as well as our igptio maintain or increase our revenues.
can provide no assurance that we will be able kieze all of the goals of these plans or meet omoanced expectations, in whole or in |
or that our plans will have the intended effecinoproving our margins on the expected timelineatoall.

To the extent we receive product orders late inumder, we may be unable to recognize revenue fuese orders in the same period, wh
could adversely affect our quarterly revenues.

Generally, our network equipment products are taitked by distributors or resellers due to thest@nd complexity and the custom natut
configurations required by our customers; we gdlyebaild such products as orders are receivedetent years, the volume of orders rece
late in any given fiscal quarter has generally ifitwa but remains unpredictable. If orders fortagr products are received late in any que
we may not be able to recognize revenue for theder®s in the same period, which could adverselgcafbur ability to meet our expec
revenues for such quarter. Additionally, we deteemdur operating expenses largely on the basistafipated revenues and a high percer
of our expenses are fixed in the short and mediemm.t As a result, a failure or delay in generatimgrecognizing revenue could ca
significant variations in our operating results aperating margin from quarter-to-quarter.
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Conversion of key internal systems and processestiqularly our ERP system, and problems with thegign or implementation of the
systems and processes could interfere with, anddfere harm, our business and operatior

We have underway a mulbhase project to convert certain key internal systand processes, including our customer relatipmehnageme
(“CRM") system and enterprise resource planning ("ERP1gBysSince 2012, we have been implementing majan@és to our ERP syste
which activities we expect to continue into 201%.the third quarter of 2014, we implemented the ufacturing, fulfilment, and invento
portion of this ERP project and we are now reliapbn dual ERP systems until completion of the cogiva. The next major change to
ERP program is projected for the third quarter @12 when we plan to eliminate the dual ERP Syst#emelay past this time could resuli
postponement of this systems change until thedinsirter of 2016. We have invested, and will cargito invest, significant capital and hur
resources in the design and implementation of tegseems and processes. Any problems, disrupta®iays or other issues in the design
implementation of the new systems or processedicpiarly any that impact our operations, could ebely affect our ability to proce
customer orders, ship products, provide service support to our customers, bill and track our constis, collect cash from our custom
maintain our DSO measure, fulfill contractual obligns, record and transfer information in a timahd accurate manner, recognize reve
file SEC reports in a timely manner, or otherwise our business. Even if we do not encounter thdserse effects, as noted above, the d
and implementation of these new systems and presesay be much more costly than we anticipatedratite event of lengthy project dels
we may experience issues with retention of the é@mgntation team. If we are unable to successfigthh and implement these new syst
and processes as planned, or if the implementatichese systems and processes is more lengthgstly ¢than anticipated, our busine
financial condition, and results of operations doo¢ negatively impacted.

We are dependent on sole source and limited sowwepliers for several key components, which makessusceptible to shortages or pr
fluctuations in our supply chain, and we may facedreased challenges in supply chain managementhia future.

We rely on single or limited sources of certairoaf components. During periods of high demand Fecteonic products, component shorte
are possible, and the predictability of the avalitybof such components may be limited. Any futuggike in growth in our business, or m
likely in IT spending and the economy in generdiksly to create greater shagrm pressures on us and our suppliers to accyrimtedcas
overall component demand and to establish optimalponent inventories. If shortages or delays persie price of these components 1
increase, or the components may not be availatdd. alVe may not be able to secure enough comperameasonable prices or of accepi
quality to build new products in a timely mannendaour revenues and gross margins could suffet otfter sources can be developed.
example, from time to time, we have experienced pmment shortages that resulted in delays of prodbigments. We currently purch.
numerous key components, including ASICs, fromlsirg limited sources. The development of alterisaigrces for those components is time
consuming, difficult, and costly. In addition, thead times associated with certain components ergtthy and preclude rapid change
quantities and delivery schedules. Also, ldagn supply and maintenance obligations to custerimarease the duration for which spe«
components are required, which may further incrahserisk of component shortages or the cost ofycay inventory. In the event of
component shortage or supply interruption from ¢h&gppliers, we may not be able to develop alteroasecond sources in a timely manng
we are unable to buy these components in quansitificient to meet our requirements on a timelgibawe will not be able to deliver prodc
and services to our customers, which would seryoaffiect present and future sales, which wouldfuim, adversely affect our busine
financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, the development, licensing, or acdigsiof new products in the future may increasedbtmplexity of supply chain managem:
Failure to effectively manage the supply of key poments and products would adversely affect ouinless.

We rely on valueadded and other resellers, as well as distributipartners, to sell our products, and disruptions tor our failure to
effectively develop and manage, our distributionarinel and the processes and procedures that supjiarduld adversely affect our abili
to generate revenues from the sale of our products.

Our future success is highly dependent upon estdabfi and maintaining successful relationships waitliariety of valuexdded and oth
reseller and distribution partners, including owrldwide strategic partners such as Ericsson, IBM} NSN. The majority of our revenues
derived through value-added resellers and diswitsutmost of which also sell our competitopsbducts, and some of which sell their «
competing products. Our revenues depend in patherperformance of these partners. The loss okduation in sales to our resellers
distributors could materially reduce our revenuest example, in 2011 and 2012, one of our OEM pastnDell, acquired ForcelO ¢
SonicWall, both competitors of ours. As a resultjibecame increasingly competitive in certain arélaeir resale of our products declined,
we ultimately terminated our OEM relationship wiitell. Our competitors may in some cases be effedtivleveraging their market sh
positions or in providing incentives to currentpmtential resellers and distributors to favor thminducts or to prevent or reduce sales o
products. If we fail to develop and maintain relaships with our partners, fail to develop new tiefeships with valuexdded resellers a
distributors in new markets, fail to expand the bemof distributors and resellers in existing méské&il to manage, train or motivate existing
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value-added resellers and distributors effectively, datee that we cannot continue to do business wigsdtpartners for any reason or if t
partners are not successful in their sales effedtes of our products may decrease, and our kassifimancial condition, and results
operations would suffer.

In addition, we recognize a portion of our revenbased on a selhrough model using information provided by ourtiditors. If thos
distributors provide us with inaccurate or untimieifformation, the amount or timing of our revengesld be adversely impacted.

Further, in order to develop and expand our digtidm channel, we must continue to offer attractitiaannel programs to potential partners
scale and improve our processes and proceduresuppbrt the channel. As a result, our programscgeses and procedures may bec
increasingly complex and inherently difficult to nzege. We have previously entered into OEM agreesngitih partners pursuant to which tl
rebrand and resell our products as part of theidyct portfolios. These types of relationshipsamaplex and require additional processes
procedures that may be challenging and costly tpldment, maintain and manage. Our failure to sisfalg manage and develop «
distribution channel and the programs, processdspeocedures that support it could adversely affectability to generate revenues from
sale of our products.

System security risks, data protection breachesd arybe-attacks could compromise our proprietary informatip disrupt our interna
operations and harm public perception of our prods¢ which could cause our business and reputatiensuffer and adversely affect o
stock price.

In the ordinary course of business, we store deaditata, including intellectual property, our priepary business information and that of
customers, suppliers and business partners onetworks. The secure maintenance of this informagaritical to our operations and busir
strategy. Increasingly, companies, including us, subject to a wide variety of attacks on theinoeks on an ongoing basis. Despite
security measures, our information technology arfthstructure may be vulnerable to penetrationttacks by computer programmers
hackers, or breached due to employee error, malfeasor other disruptions. Any such breach coufdpromise our networks, creating sys
disruptions or slowdowns and exploiting securitynesabilities of our products, and the informati&iored on our networks could be acces
publicly disclosed, lost or stolen, which could gab us to liability to our customers, suppliersisimess partners and others, and cau
reputational and financial harm. In addition, sapibated hardware and operating system softwareapptications that we produce or proc
from third parties may contain defects in desigmanufacture, including "bugs" and other problehat tould unexpectedly interfere with
operation of our networks.

If an actual or perceived breach of network segwitcurs in our network or in the network of a cusér of our products, regardless of whe
the breach is attributable to our products, theketaperception of the effectiveness of our prodectsid be harmed. Because the techni
used by computer programmers and hackers, manyhofmare highly sophisticated and wiihded, to access or sabotage networks ct
frequently and generally are not recognized ufitdrahey are used, we may be unable to anticipatemediately detect these techniques.
could impede our sales, manufacturing, distributorother critical functions. In addition, the eoomic costs to us to eliminate or allevi
cyber or other security problems, bugs, virusesmego malicious software systems and security valniities could be significant and may
difficult to anticipate or measure because the dgnmaay differ based on the identity and motivehef programmer or hacker, which are o
difficult to pinpoint.

Regulation of industry in general and the telecommigations industry in particular could harm our ogating results and future prospect

We are subject to laws and regulations affectimgsile of our products in a number of areas. Famgke, some governments have regula
prohibiting government entities from purchasinguség products that do not meet specified indigenoertification criteria, even though th
criteria may be in conflict with accepted interoatl standards. Other regulations that may nedstiwgact our business include countr
origin regulations. These types of regulationsiamffect or under consideration in several juitidns where we do business.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerédetimn Act includes disclosure requirements regaydhe use of “conflict minerals”
mined from the Democratic Republic of Congo andguipg countries (“DRC"and procedures regarding a manufacturer's efforfgdver
the sourcing of such “conflict mineralsThese minerals are present in our products. SEES iimiplementing these requirements may hav
effect of reducing the pool of suppliers who capmy DRC “conflict free”components and parts, and we may not be able &wnobiRC
conflict free products or supplies in sufficientantities for our operations. Since our supply chaitomplex, we may face reputatic
challenges with our customers, stockholders andrattakeholders if we are unable to sufficientlyifyehe origins for the "conflict minerals”
used in our products.
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In addition, environmental laws and regulation®vaht to electronic equipment manufacturing or afi@ns, including laws and regulatic
governing the hazardous material content of oudpets and laws relating to the collection of andycting of electrical and electror
equipment, may adversely impact our business aaohdial condition. These laws and regulations iskelthe European Union (EU) Restrict
on the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances inrkelgicand Electronic Equipment Directive (RoHS).eTBEU RoHS and the similar laws
other jurisdictions limit the content of certainzhadous materials such as lead, mercury, and canmuthe manufacture of electri
equipment, including our products. Currently, owoducts comply with the EU RoHS requirements. Hosvevt is possible that cert:
exemptions may be revoked in the future, includamg exemption for lead in network infrastructure ipquent upon which we and ¢
competitors rely, and which is currently scheduleeéxpire in July 2016. Revocation of this exemptio further changes to this or other I
or passage of new similar laws in other jurisdicsiomay require us to cease selling wompliant products in the EU or reengineer
products to use components compatible with thegeladons. This reengineering and component suibistit could result in additional costs
us, disrupt our operations or logistics and resulin adverse impact on our operating results. thaflly, EU and China have adopted
WEEE directive, which requires producers of eleetriand electronic equipment to assume resporigilidi collecting, treating, recycling a
disposing of products when they have reached tkeoénheir useful life, as well as REACH regulaiomwhich regulate handling of cert
chemical substances that may be used in our preduct

The traditional telecommunications industry is hygregulated, and our business and financial camditould be adversely affected by char
in regulations relating to the Internet telecomneatipbns industry. Currently, there are few lawsegulations that apply directly to access t
commerce on IP networks, but future regulationddcmclude sales taxes on products sold via therhat and Internet service provider ac
charges. We could be adversely affected by reguadf IP networks and commerce in any country wiezanarket equipment and service
service providers or cloud provider companies. Re@mns governing the range of services and businezdels that can be offered by ser
providers or cloud provider companies could adugraéfect those customers' needs for products desigo enable a wide range of s
services or business models. For instance, the Ré@eral Communications Commission is consideriey regulations governing aspect:
fixed broadband networks and wireless networksutjnoproposals regarding net neutrality and govemmegulation of the Internet. The
regulations and regulations resulting from thesgppsals might impact service provider and cloudvigler business models and as s
providers' needs for Internet telecommunicationsiggent and services. Also, many jurisdictions eweluating or implementing regulatic
relating to cyber security, supply chain integrifyrivacy and data protection, any of which can cfftne market and requirements
networking and security equipment.

The adoption and implementation of such regulatiomsld reduce demand for our products, increasectis¢ of building and selling ¢
products, result in product inventory writdfs, impact our ability to ship products into affed areas and recognize revenue in a timely m
and require us to spend significant time and expéasomply, and we could face fines and civil bminal sanctions or claims if we were
violate or become liable under such regulationsy hthese impacts could have a material adverfeetedn our business, financial conditi
and results of operations.

Governmental regulations affecting the import or part of products or affecting products containingieryption capabilities could negative
affect our revenues.

The United States and various foreign governmeanwe limposed controls, export license requirememtd,restrictions on the import or exg
of, among other things, encryption technology. &arbf our products contain or use encryption tetbgy. In addition, from time to tim
governmental agencies have proposed additionalaggu of encryption technology, such as requirgagtification, notifications, review
source code, or the escrow and governmental reg@ieprivate encryption keys. For example, Russid &€hina recently have implemen
new requirements relating to products containingrystion and India has imposed special warranty aifer obligations associated w
technology deemed critical. Governmental regulatbrencryption or IP networking technology and de¢jon of imports or exports, or ¢
failure to obtain required import or export approfest our products, or export sanctions, includiegent restrictions on exports to Russia, ¢
harm our international and domestic sales and adleaffect our revenues. In addition, failure tanply with such regulations could resul
harm to our reputation, penalties, costs, andictisins on import or export privileges or adversalfect sales t@overnment agencies
government-funded projects.

Our ability to process orders and ship productsantimely manner is dependent in part on our busisesystems and performance of

systems and processes of third parties such asammtract manufacturers, suppliers, or other partreras well as the interfaces between
systems and the systems of such third parties.ulf systems, the systems and processes of those plairties, or the interfaces between th
experience delays or fail, our business processed aur ability to build and ship products could mpacted, and our financial results cou
be harmed.

Some of our business processes depend upon oumation technology ("IT") systems, the systems prmtesses of third parties, and
interfaces of our systems with the systems of tharties. For example, our order entry system f@gdsmation into the
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systems of our contract manufacturers, which esablem to build and ship our products. If thosdesys fail or are interrupted, our proce:
may function at a diminished level or not at ahid could negatively impact our ability to ship duats or otherwise operate our business
our financial results could be harmed. For examgltbough it did not adversely affect our shipmeats earthquake in late December of 2
disrupted our communications with China, wheregmificant part of our manufacturing occurs. In dida, as discussed earlier in this "F
Factors" section, beginning in 2012 and continudirg 2015, we have been implementing major changesur enterprise resource planr
system. Any failure of the new system or interrapsi during the transition may impair communicatioith our manufacturers, and, therefi
adversely affect our ability to build and ship puoducts.

We also rely upon the performance of the systemspaocesses of our contract manufacturers to tawitl ship our products. If those syst
and processes experience interruption or delayability to build and ship our products in a timehanner may be harmed. For example
have experienced instances where our contract metumérs were not able to ship products in the per@ods expected by us, which preve
us from meeting our commitments to our customérael are not able to ship our products or if prddsldpments are delayed, our ability
recognize revenue in a timely manner for those yetedwould be affected and our financial resuligidde harmed.

Telecommunications and Cloud service provider comigs and our other large customers generally recqaimnerous terms and conditions
our contracts with them. As we seek to sell moregurcts to such customers, we may be required teagdo terms and conditions that col
have an adverse effect on our business or abildy&cognize revenues.

Telecommunications and cloud service provider carigg which comprise a significant portion of owstmmer base, and other la
companies, generally have greater purchasing pthaersmaller entities and, accordingly, often retjaad receive more favorable terms f
suppliers. For example, our customers, France ®eig@range and Deutsche Telekom AG have formed a coynfanthe purpose
purchasing products from, and negotiating more rf@vie@ contractual terms with, suppliers. As we seekell more products to this clas:
customer, we may be required to agree to such tandsonditions, which may include terms that dffee timing of our ability to recogni
revenue and have an adverse effect on our busiiremscial condition, and results of operationsn€alidation among such large customers
further increase their buying power and abilityéquire onerous terms.

In addition, service providers have purchased petsdfrom other vendors who promised but failed étiveer certain functionality and/or h
products that caused problems or outages in thveonles of these customers. As a result, these cus®may request additional features f
us and require substantial penalties for failurdeativer such features or may require substangahfiies for any network outages that ma
caused by our products. These additional requestpeanalties, if we are required to agree to thaay require us to defer revenue recogn
from such sales, which may negatively affect owimess, financial condition, and results of operegi

If we do not successfully anticipate technologicshifts, market needs and opportunities, and deveprpducts and product enhanceme
that meet those technological shifts, needs and anynities, or if those products are not made awadile in a timely manner or do not ga
market acceptance, we may not be able to compdé&tdfely and our ability to generate revenues vsilffer.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to ardteiguture technological shifts, market needs gombdunities or be able to develop r
products or product enhancements to meet suchdkadioal shifts, needs or opportunities in a timelgnner or at all. For example, the m
from traditional network infrastructures towardsgtaare-defined networking, or SDN, has been receiving itarable attention. In our view
will take several years to see the full impact BN and we believe the successful products andisokiin this market will combine hardwi
and software elements. If we fail to anticipate kearequirements or fail to develop and introdueg rproducts or product enhancemen
meet those requirements in a timely manner, ite¢@aluse us to lose customers, and such failurel culdstantially decrease or delay me
acceptance and sales of our present and futureugdwhich would significantly harm our businefisancial condition, and results
operations. Even if we are able to anticipate, hgyeand commercially introduce new products andaecements, there can be no assui
that new products or enhancements will achieve sycead market acceptance.

In addition, in the past two years, we have annedntew products, including the QF5100, T4000 Carat&, EX9200 Ethernet Switch, N
Series Routers, PTX 3000 Packet Transport RouterJaniper Networks Contrail. If these or other mraducts do not gain market accept:
at a sufficient rate of growth, our ability to mdature financial targets and aspirations may beeeskly affected. In addition, if we fail
deliver new or announced products to the markattimely manner, it could adversely affect the neadcceptance of those products and |
our competitive position and our business and fir@mesults.
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Our ability to develop, market, and sell producisutd be harmed if we are unable to retain or hirek personnel.

Our future success depends upon our ability toure@nd retain the services of executive, engimegrsales and marketing, and sup
personnel. The supply of highly qualified individsiain particular engineers in very specializechtécal areas, or sales people specializir
the service provider and enterprise markets, igduinand competition for such individuals is intenslone of our officers or key employee
bound by an employment agreement for any speefiv.t The loss of the services of any of our key legges, the inability to attract or ret
personnel in the future or delays in hiring reqdipersonnel, engineers and sales people, and thplexity and time involved in replacing
training new employees, could delay the developnat introduction of new products, and negativelpact our ability to market, sell,
support our products.

We are a party to lawsuits, investigations, procieed, and other disputes, which are costly to defesnd, if determined adversely to
could require us to pay fines or damages, undertakenedial measures or prevent us from taking centaictions, any or all of which coul
harm our business, results of operations, financabndition or cash flows.

We, and certain of our current and former officansl current and former members of our Board of dins, have been or are subject to vai
lawsuits. We have been served with lawsuits relate@mployment matters, commercial transactions @aient infringement, as well
securities laws. As noted in Note XBommitments and Contingencieis Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementshisf Report, under tl
heading of “Legal Proceedingshe U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEQ}tee U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) are cotinly
investigations into possible violations by the Camyp of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCRA a number of countries. T
investigations relate to whether the Company or #nind party on behalf of the Company gave monayamything else of value to a
government official in violation of the FCPA. Theo@panys Audit Committee, with the assistance of indepanhdmlvisors, has be
investigating and conducting a thorough review o$gible violations of the FCPA, and has made recenuations for remedial measu
including employee disciplinary actions in foreigmisdictions, which the Company has implemented eontinues to implement. Litigati
and investigations are inherently uncertain. Weretfoge cannot predict the duration, scope, outcameonsequences of litigation ¢
government investigations. In connection with aoyernment investigations, including those in whied are currently involved as descri
above, if the government takes action against useoagree to settle the matter, we may be requorqzhy substantial fines and incur o
sanctions, which may be material, and suffer ramrtal harm. The lawsuits and investigations arnpessive and timeonsuming to defen
settle, and/or resolve, and may require us to impla certain remedial measures that could provéycos disruptive to our business ¢
operations. The unfavorable resolution of one oremof these matters could have a material adveffeeteon our business, results
operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We are a party to litigation and claims regardingtellectual property rights, resolution of which nyabe time- consuming and expensive,
well as require a significant amount of resources prosecute, defend, or make our products non-infging.

Our industry is characterized by the existence lafrge number of patents and frequent claims aladeg litigation regarding patent and of
intellectual property rights. We expect that infrlfment claims may increase as the number of predunct competitors in our market incre:
and overlaps occur. Third parties have assertedvadin the future assert claims or initiate litiga related to patent, copyright, tradem
and other intellectual property rights to technadsgand related standards that are relevant t@muagiucts. The asserted claims and/or initi
litigation may include claims against us or our mfaeturers, suppliers, partners, or customersgialdethat our products or services infril
proprietary rights. Regardless of the merit of éhelgiims, they have been and can be timesuming, result in costly litigation, and mayuie
us to develop nomfringing technologies, enter into license agrertaeor cease engaging in certain activities oeraffy certain products
services. Furthermore, because of the potentidiiffr awards of damages or injunctive relief that@ot necessarily predictable, even argt
unmeritorious claims may be settled for significantounts of money. If any infringement or otheellectual property claim made agains
by any third-party is successful, if we are reqdite settle litigation for significant amounts obney, or if we fail to develop noinfringing
technology or license required proprietary rigltscommercially reasonable terms and conditions boginess, financial condition, and res
of operations could be materially and adverselgaéd.

Our financial condition and results of operationsoald suffer if there is an additional impairment afoodwill or other intangible assets w
indefinite lives.

We are required to test intangible assets withfinde lives, including goodwill, annually and on énterim basis if an event occurs or there
change in circumstance that would more likely thahreduce the fair value of reporting units artdrigible assets below their carrying val
As of December 31, 2014 , our goodwill was $2,981illion and there were no intangible assets with indefihres. When the carrying val
of a reporting unis goodwill exceeds its implied fair value of gooliwa charge to operations is recorded. If the ydiag amount of a
intangible asset with an indefinite life exceedsfair value, a charge to operations is recogniggther event would result in incremet
expenses for that quarter, which would reduce amgiegs or increase any loss for the period in Whihe impairment was determined to
occurred.
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In the fourth quarter of 2014, we rationalized &ercurity product portfolio, including developinghaw product roadmap and exiting cer
point products, including our Junos® Pulse prodilibese factors decreased our short-term andteearrevenue and profitability forecasts
our Security reporting unit. During our fiscal ye2014 annual goodwill impairment test, the carryirmjue of our Security reporting un
goodwill exceeded its fair value, resulting in adwill impairment charge of $850.0 million.

In recent years, economic weakness has contritotetreme price and volume fluctuations in glosimick markets that have reduced
market price of many technology company stockduiling ours. Declines in our level of revenues tlueestructuring or cost reductions
declines in our operating margins, as well as sustlhdeclines in our stock price, increase the tiiglt goodwill and intangible assets v
indefinite lives may become impaired in future péds.

Our goodwill impairment analysis is sensitive t@aobes in key assumptions used in our analysis, asieixpected future cash flows, the de
of volatility in equity and debt markets, and otiock price. If the assumptions used in our analgses not realized, it is possible thai
impairment charge may need to be recorded in theduWe cannot accurately predict the amount amithg of any impairment of goodwiill
other intangible assets. However, any such impaitmeuld have an adverse effect on our resultpefations.

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomesilting from examination of our income or otheax returns could adversely affect o
results.

Our future effective tax rates could be subjecvatatility or adversely affected by the followingarnings being lower than anticipater
countries where we have lower statutory rates agigelh than anticipated earnings in countries whexéhave higher statutory rates; chang:
the valuation of our deferred tax assets and ltadsl expiration of, or lapses in, the researcd development (“R&D”)tax credit law
applicable to us; transfer pricing adjustmentsteeldo certain acquisitions, including the licen$acquired intangibles under our intercomg
R&D cost sharing arrangement; costs related tadotapany restructuring; tax effects of shbesed compensation; or changes in tax
regulations, accounting principles, or interpretasi thereof. The Organisation for Economic @p@ration and Development ("OECD"),
international association of 34 countries includithge U.S., is contemplating changes to numeroug-$tanding tax principles. The
contemplated changes, if finalized and adopteddynties, will increase tax uncertainty and mayeadely affect our provision for incol
taxes. In addition, we are subject to the contisuexamination of our income tax returns by therhieRevenue Service (“IRSgnd other ta
authorities. We regularly assess the likelihoodadferse outcomes resulting from these examinationdetermine the adequacy of
provision for income taxes. There can be no asser#imt the outcomes from these continuous exaioirgawill not have an adverse effeci
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations.

If we fail to accurately predict our manufacturingequirements, we could incur additional costs orperience manufacturing delays, whi
would harm our business.

We provide demand forecasts to our contract matwrfas, who order components and plan capacity doase these forecasts. If
overestimate our requirements, our contract mahwfacs may assess charges, or we may have liabifitir excess inventory, each of wt
could negatively affect our gross margins. For eplamin the third quarter of 2012, our gross masgirere reduced as a result of an inver
charge resulting from inventory we held in excelsrecasted demand. Conversely, because lead fonesquired materials and compon
vary significantly and depend on factors such assibecific supplier, contract terms, and the denfanéach component at a given time,
because our contract manufacturers are théndy manufacturers for numerous other companiese iunderestimate our requirements, a:
did in the third quarter of 2010 with respect totam components, our contract manufacturers mase ma@adequate time, materials, an
components required to produce our products, wbiehd increase costs or delay or interrupt manufawgy of our products resulting in del:
in shipments and deferral or loss of revenues.

We are dependent on contract manufacturers with winave do not have longerm supply contracts, and changes to those relasioips
expected or unexpected, may result in delays orugisons that could cause us to lose revenues aathdge our customer relationships.

We depend on independent contract manufacturech (@awhich is a thirgearty manufacturer for numerous companies) to natufe ou
products. Although we have contracts with our cacttmanufacturers, these contracts do not reghem to manufacture our products ¢
long-term basis in any specific quantity or at apgcific price. In addition, it is timeensuming and costly to qualify and implement addé!
contract manufacturer relationships. Thereforaaffail to effectively manage our contract manufiaet relationships, which includes failing
provide accurate forecasts of our requirementsf one or more of them experiences delays, disomgti or quality control problems in «
manufacturing operations, or if we had to changedu additional contract manufacturers or contraghufacturing sites, our ability to s
products to our customers could be
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delayed. Also, the addition of manufacturing losas or contract manufacturers would increase thmptexity of our supply cha
management. Moreover, an increasing portion ofreanufacturing is performed in China and other coestand is therefore subject to ri
associated with doing business outside of the driiates. Each of these factors could adversescaffur business, financial condition
results of operations.

We may face difficulties enforcing our proprietamjghts which could adversely affect our ability tbmpete.

We generally rely on a combination of patents, ciybhys, trademarks, and trade secret laws and acio@l restrictions on disclosure
confidential and proprietary information, to estsibland maintain proprietary rights in our techiggi@nd products. Although we have b
issued numerous patents and other patent applisatice currently pending, there can be no assuthat@ny of our patent applications
result in issued patents or that any of our patentgher proprietary rights will not be challengét/alidated, infringed or circumvented or 1
our rights will, in fact, provide competitive adwages to us or protect our technology, any of whiobld result in costly product redes
efforts, discontinuance of certain product offesrmmd other competitive harm. Furthermore, the lafasome foreign countries may not pro
our proprietary rights to the same extent as ddaws of the United States. The outcome of anyoastiaken in these foreign countries ma
different than if such actions were determined urie laws of the United States. Although we aredependent on any individual patent
group of patents for particular segments of therass for which we compete, if we are unable tdgmtoour proprietary rights in a market,
may find ourselves at a competitive disadvantagethers who need not incur the substantial expetise, and effort required to cre
innovative products that have enabled our success.

We are subject to risks arising from our internatial operations, which may adversely affect our busss, financial condition, and results
operations.

We derive a majority of our revenues from our inggional operations, and we plan to continue exjpanadur business in international marl
in the future. We conduct significant sales andtamer support operations directly and indirectlyotigh our distributors and VARs
countries throughout the world and depend on theraijpns of our contract manufacturers and supptieat are located outside of the Un
States. In addition, a portion of our R&D and o@ngral and administrative operations are conduotedide the United States. In sc
countries, we may experience reduced intellectraggrty protection.

As a result of our international operations, weaffected by economic, business regulatory, soaiad, political conditions in foreign countri
including the following:

* changes in general IT spendi
» the imposition of government controls, inclusivecdfical infrastructure protectio

» changes or limitations in trade protection lawsothrer regulatory requirements, which may affect alitity to import or export ol
products from various countries;

» varying and potentially conflicting regulatio
» fluctuations in local economie
« wage inflation or a tightening of the labor marlaatr

» the impact of the following on service provider aga/ernment spending patterns: political considanat unfavorable changes in
treaties or laws, natural disasters, epidemic dieselbor unrest, earnings expatriation restristionisappropriation of intellectt
property, military actions, acts of terrorism, pickl and social unrest and difficulties in staffiand managing international operatic

Any or all of these factors could have a materiblease impact on our business, financial conditiomd results of operations.

Moreover, local laws and customs in many countliéfer significantly from or conflict with those ithe United States or in other countrie
which we operate. In many foreign countries, patéidy in those with developing economies, it isrtoon for others to engage in busir
practices that are prohibited by our internal peicand procedures or U.S. regulations applicablest There can be no assurance tha
employees, contractors, channel partners, and sigéhtnot take actions in violation of our polisiend procedures, which are designe
ensure compliance with U.S. and foreign laws anitigs. Violations of laws or key control policiéy our employees, contractors, cha
partners, or agents could result in terminationwfrelationship,
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financial reporting problems, fines, and/or pemsltior us, or prohibition on the importation or esption of our products, and could hay
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchamgées, which could negatively affect our financiabndition and results of operations.

Because a majority of our business is conductedidritthe United States, we face exposure to advamseements in nokt.S. currenc
exchange rates. These exposures may change oweasirhusiness practices evolve and could have erialaidverse impact on our finan
condition and results of operations.

The majority of our revenues and expenses aredcsas in U.S. Dollars. We also have some transatibat are denominated in fore
currencies, primarily the British Pound, Euro, BmliRupee, and Japanese Yen related to our saleseande operations outside of the Un
States. An increase in the value of the U.S. Daltauld increase the real cost to our customersuofpooducts in those markets outside
United States in which we sell in U.S. Dollars, andieakened U.S. Dollar could increase the cokiaafl operating expenses and procurel
of raw materials to the extent we must purchasepoorants in foreign currencies.

Currently, we hedge only those currency exposusssaated with certain assets and liabilities dénatad in nonfunctional currencies
periodically hedge anticipated foreign currencyhcliews. The hedging activities undertaken by wesiatended to offset the impact of curre
fluctuations on certain nonfunctional currency &ssed liabilities. However, such attempts to dffée impact of currency fluctuations
costly and no amount of hedging can be effectivere all circumstances, including lotgrm declines in the value of the U.S. Dollar. Ui
attempts to hedge against these risks are not ssfateor if longterm declines in the value of the U.S. Dollar pgrsdur financial conditic
and results of operations could be adversely inggact

Integration of acquisitions could disrupt our buséss and harm our financial condition and stock pe@nd may dilute the ownership of ¢
stockholders

We have made, and may continue to make, acquisitioorder to enhance our business. For examp0Q1id, we acquired WANDL, Inc. a
in 2012, we acquired Contrail Systems Inc. ("Cadhjraand Mykonos Software, Inc. ("Mykonos"). Acgitisns involve numerous risk
including problems combining the purchased opematitechnologies or products, unanticipated casddiabilities, diversion of manageme;
attention from our core businesses, adverse eftecexisting business relationships with suppléerd customers, risks associated with ent
markets in which we have no or limited prior expade, and potential loss of key employees. Thanédeano assurance that we will be ab
integrate successfully any businesses, produatbntdogies, or personnel that we might acquire. iflbegration of businesses that we |
acquire is likely to be a complex, tineensuming, and expensive process and we may nlizerdbe anticipated revenues or other ber
associated with our acquisitions if we fail to sessfully manage and operate the acquired busiifes®. fail in any acquisition integratic
efforts and are unable to efficiently operate ammbined organization utilizing common informatiand communication systems, opera
procedures, financial controls, and human resoupcastices, our business, financial condition, aesults of operations may be adver
affected.

In connection with certain acquisitions, we mayeggto issue common stock or assume equity awaatiglilate the ownership of our curr
stockholders, use a substantial portion of our casburces, assume liabilities, record goodwill antbrtizable intangible assets that will
subject to impairment testing on a regular basid potential periodic impairment charges, incur amation expenses related to cer
intangible assets, and incur large and immediattewffs and restructuring and other related expersésf which could harm our financ
condition and results of operations.

The divestiture of our Junos Pulse product portfolcould disrupt our business and may not yield fhéended benefits.

We recently completed the sale of our Junos Pulsdygt portfolio to an affiliate of Siris Capital, private equity firm, for total considerat
of $230.7 million , of which $105.7 million was @ash, net of a $19.3 million working capital adimsnht, and $125.0 milliowas in the forr
of an 18-month non-contingent interest bearing pesory note issued to the Company. Since approrim&125.0 millionof the transactic
consideration is in the form of an 18-month remmtingent seller promissory note, there is alsoribk that we may not receive the ame
owed to us by the buyer under the note and thegadsthe Junos Pulse assets will return to us.

If we fail to adequately evolve our financial andanagerial control and reporting systems and processour ability to manage and grc
our business will be negatively affected.

Our ability to successfully offer our products dantblement our business plan in a rapidly evolvingriet depends upon an effective plan
and management process. We will need to continuagoove our financial and managerial control and o
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reporting systems and procedures in order to maoagbusiness effectively in the future. If we faileffectively implement improved syste
and processes, our ability to manage our busifiessicial condition, and results of operations rbaynegatively affected.

Our products are highly technical and if they contaundetected defects errors or malware or do natehcustomer quality expectations,
business could be adversely affected, and we magutgect to additional costs or lawsuits or be régua to pay damages in connection w
any alleged or actual failure of our products an@wices.

Our products are highly technical and complex,caitical to the operation of many networks, andtba case of our security products, pro
and monitor network security and may protect valkiabformation. Our products have contained and m@aytain one or more undetec
errors, defects, malware, or security vulnerab#itiSome errors in our products may only be digeavafter a product has been installed
used by endiustomers. Any errors, defects, malware or secutityerabilities discovered in our products aftemenercial release could res
in monetary penalties, loss of revenues or delagwenue recognition, loss of customers, loss tfreubusiness and reputation, penalties
increased service and warranty cost, any of whatliccadversely affect our business, financial ctbadj and results of operations. In addit
in the event an error, defect, malware, or vulniditghs attributable to a component supplied byhad-party vendor, we may not be able
recover from the vendor all of the costs of remiainathat we may incur. In addition, we could fadaims for product liability, tort, or brea
of warranty or indemnification. Defending a lawsu#gardless of its merit, is costly and may diveenagemens’ attention. If our busine
liability insurance coverage is inadequate, or fetcoverage is unavailable on acceptable terms alt, aur financial condition and results
operations could be harmed. Moreover, if our prosldail to satisfy our customers' quality expectasi for whatever reason, the perceptic
and the demand for our products could be adveedfédygted.

If our products do not interoperate with our custare’ networks, installations will be delayed or canted and could harm our business.

Our products are designed to interface with outarusrs’existing networks, each of which have differentcéfpeations and utilize multipl
protocol standards and products from other venddagy of our customersietworks contain multiple generations of produbtst have bee
added over time as these networks have grown aolezls Our products must interoperate with manyalbrof the products within the
networks as well as future products in order to tnoeg customerstequirements. If we find errors in the existingtaafre or defects in tl
hardware used in our customengtworks, we may need to modify our software odiare to fix or overcome these errors so that ooduyct:
will interoperate and scale with the existing safitevand hardware, which could be costly and coelgatively affect our business, finan
condition, and results of operations. In additidnur products do not interoperate with those of oustomershetworks, demand for ¢
products could be adversely affected or order@fwrproducts could be cancelled. This could hurtaperating results, damage our reputa
and seriously harm our business and prospects.

Our products incorporate and rely upon licensed rithiparty technology, and if licenses of thirdarty technology do not continue to
available to us or are not available on terms actaye to us, our revenues and ability to developdantroduce new products could
adversely affected.

We integrate licensed thingarty technology into certain of our products. Fribmme to time, we may be required to license adddl technolog
from third-parties to develop new products or pidenhancements. Thigghrty licenses may not be available or continuee@vailable to
on commercially reasonable terms. The failure tmgly with the terms of any license, including frggen source software, may result in
inability to continue to use such license. Our iligbto maintain or re-license any thiqgarty licenses required in our products or our ilitst
to obtain thirdparty licenses necessary to develop new producpesduct enhancements, could require us, if pssib develop substitL
technology or obtain substitute technology of lowjaality or performance standards or at a greaist, @any of which could delay or prev
product shipment and harm our business, finanoiadlition, and results of operations.

We sell our products to customers that use thosedorcts to build networks and IP infrastructure, aniflthe demand for network and |
systems does not continue to grow, our busineswritial condition, and results of operations coulie adversely affecte:

A substantial portion of our business and revemgg®ends on the growth of secure IP infrastructncean the deployment of our products
customers that depend on the continued growth e&fRices. As a result of changes in the econoapital spending or the building of netw
capacity in excess of demand, all of which havethie past particularly affected telecommunicatiomsvise providers, spending on
infrastructure can vary, which could have a matexitverse effect on our business, financial coadjtand results of operations. In additio
number of our existing customers are evaluatingbihitd-out of their next generation networks. Dgrithe decisiomnaking period when o
customers are determining the design of those
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networks and the selection of the equipment thdlyuse in those networks, such customers may greatluce or suspend their spending
secure IP infrastructure. Such delays in purcheaasmake it more difficult to predict revenues freoch customers can cause fluctuatiol
the level of spending by these customers and, ewssre our products are ultimately selected, care hmmaterial adverse effect on
business, financial condition, and results of ofiens.

We are required to evaluate the effectiveness of imtiernal control over financial reporting, and ay adverse results from such evaluati
may adversely affect investor perception, our stacice and cause us to incur additional expense.

Section 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002 requires our management to reportand our independent auditors to attest toetfestivenes
of our internal control over financial reporting.e/fave an ongoing program to perform the systenpamckss evaluation and testing nece:
to comply with these requirements. We have and eudititinue to incur significant expenses and dewa@agement resources to Section
compliance on an ongoing basis. In the event thatG@hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officeor independent registered pul
accounting firm determine in the future that, auiernal controls over financial reporting are nié¢etive as defined under Section 404, inve
perceptions may be adversely affected if our fitglrstatements are not reliable and could causechng in the market price of our stock
otherwise negatively affect our liquidity and fircéad condition.

Failure to maintain our credit ratings could adveedy affect our cost of funds and related margingdidity, competitive position and acce
to capital markets.

The major credit rating agencies routinely evaluaie indebtedness. This evaluation is based onnmgbau of factors, which include financ
strength as well as transparency with rating agesnaind timeliness of financial reporting. There bamo assurance that we will be abl
maintain our credit ratings and failure to do saldeadversely affect our cost of funds and relatedgins, liquidity, competitive position a
access to capital markets.

We may be unable to generate the cash flow to seraur debt obligations, including the Senior Notasd the Revolving Credit Facility.

In February 2014, we issued $350.0 million aggregmincipal amount of 4.50% senior unsecured ndtes2024 (the “2024 Notesgnd ir
March 2011, we issued $1.0 billion aggregate ppalcamount of senior unsecured notes (the “Senae® and together with the 2024 Not
the “Notes”), and (see discussion in Note 10, Ldegm Debt and Financing, in the Notes to Consatiddtinancial Statements of this Rep:
As of December 31, 2014 , we had $1,349.0 millioroutstanding longerm debt. In June 2014, we entered into a Crediedment wit
certain institutional lenders that provides foiefyear $500.0 million unsecured Revolving Créditility, with an option to increase the cr
facility, up to a maximum of $700.0 million. The &tfit Agreement will terminate in June 2019, at Wwhioint all amounts borrowed must
repaid. As of December 31, 2014 , no amounts wetgtanding under the Credit Agreement.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flowenable us to service our indebtedness, inojuthie Notes and the Revolving Crt
Facility (if drawn upon) or to make anticipated itapexpenditures. Our ability to pay our expenard satisfy our debt obligations, refina
our debt obligations and fund planned capital egjiares will depend on our future performance, Wwhidgll be affected by general econon
financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory aatther factors beyond our control. Based upon otilevels of operations, we believe cash
from operations and available cash will be adeqi@ti¢he foreseeable future to meet our anticipageplirements for working capital, cap
expenditures and scheduled payments of principadliaterest on our indebtedness, including the Natas the Revolving Credit Facility
drawn upon). However, if we are unable to genesatiicient cash flow from operations or to borroufficient funds in the future to service «
debt, we may be required to sell assets, redudeatagpenditures, refinance all or a portion of enisting debt (including the Notes) or ob
additional financing. There is no assurance thatwillebe able to refinance our debt, sell assetb@row more money on terms acceptab
us, or at all.

The indentures that govern the Notes contain vargmvenants that limit our ability and the abilifyour subsidiaries to, among other things:
e incur liens
* incur sale and leaseback transactions

» consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substdiytall of our assets to, another per:
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The Credit Agreement contains two financial covésafong with customary affirmative and negativeertants that include the following:
e maintenance of a leverage ratio no greater than&h@ an interest coverage ratio no less thar

e covenants that limit or restrict the ability of tiempany and its subsidiaries to, among other fhigeant liens, merge or consolid
dispose of all or substantially all of its assetsange their accounting or reporting policies, gwatheir business and incur subsid
indebtedness, in each case subject to customaeptans for a credit facility of this size and type

As a result of these covenants, we are limitethénrhanner in which we can conduct our businessywnhay be unable to engage in favor
business activities or finance future operationsapital needs. Accordingly, these restrictions firayt our ability to successfully operate
business. A failure to comply with these restristi@ould lead to an event of default, which co@lslit in an acceleration of the indebtedr
Our future operating results may not be sufficientenable compliance with these covenants to rena@gysuch default. In addition, in -
event of an acceleration, we may not have or be tbbbtain sufficient funds to make any accelerqgayments, including those under
Senior Notes, any notes issued in connection vhighrecentlyannounced capital return program discussed abogettan Revolving Crec
Facility (if drawn upon).

Ouir failure to pay quarterly dividends to our stole&lders or the failure to meet our commitments teturn capital to our stockholders cou
have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

In October 2014, we announced a cash dividend dftifer share of common stock payable on Decenthe2@ 4 to stockholders of recorc
of the close of business on December 2, 2014. @ilityato pay quarterly dividends will be subject among other things, our financial posi
and results of operations, available cash and ftash capital requirements and other factors. Aaijuire to pay or increase future dividend
announced, reduction or discontinuation of quartdividends could have a material adverse effeaanstock price.

In addition, our Board of Directors recently auired a $1.1 billion increase to our current capiglirn plan, which includes a planned ¢
billion of share repurchases before the end ofstend quarter of 2015. The capital return plah lvélfunded by a combination of onsh
cash, previously issued debt and potentially, &mtil debt financing, to preserve our financialxitality to invest in future growt
opportunities and maintain our investment gradeitrating. Any failure to meet our commitmentsréturn capital to our shareholders cc
have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

The investment of our cash balance and our invesihitsein government and corporate debt securities atébject to risks, which may cau
losses and affect the liquidity of these investrreent

At December 31, 2014 , we had $1,639.6 million astc and cash equivalents and $1,465.3 million artsland longterm investments. W
have invested these amounts primarily in abseked securities, certificates of deposit, comiakgaper, corporate debt securities, for
government debt securities, government- sponsareigise obligations, money market funds, mutuab§, publiclytraded equity securitie
time deposits and U.S. government securities. @edfathese investments are subject to generalitcieglidity, market, sovereign debt, ¢
interest rate risks. Our future investment inconeagy fall short of expectations due to changes iaregt rates or if the decline in fair value
our publicly traded debt or equity investmentauidged to be other-thaemporary. These market risks associated with mwestment portfoli
may have a material adverse effect on our liqujdibancial condition, and results of operations.

Uninsured losses could harm our operating results.

We selfinsure against many business risks and expensas,asuintellectual property litigation and our meadibenefit programs, where
believe we can adequately self-insure against tiieipated exposure and risk or where insurancstiger not deemed costfective or is nc
available. We also maintain a program of insuracmeerage for various types of property, casualtyl ather risks. We place our insura
coverage with various carriers in numerous jurisolis. The types and amounts of insurance that bvtairo vary from time to time and frc
location to location, depending on availability,stoand our decisions with respect to risk retentibhe policies are subject to deductit
policy limits, and exclusions that result in outergion of a level of risk on a sdlisurance basis. Losses not covered by insurande &e
substantial and unpredictable and could adverdédgteour financial condition and results of opéras.
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable

ITEM 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located on 80 atmsned land in Sunnyvale, California and includeproximately 0.7 million square fee
owned buildings. In addition to our owned faciitjeve lease approximately 0.4 milli@yuare feet in buildings as part of our corpc
headquarters.

In addition to our leased offices in Sunnyvale, algo lease offices in various locations througtbetUnited States, Canada, South Ame
EMEA, and APAC regions, including offices in Audisa China, Hong Kong, India, Ireland, Israel, Japthe Netherlands, Russia, United £
Emirates, and the United Kingdom. We lease apprateély 2.1 million square feet worldwide, with apyiroately 36 percent in Nort
America. Each leased facility is subject to anvitlial lease or sublease, which could provide werioptions to renew/terminate the agreel
or to expand/contract the leased space.

Our leases expire at various times through Oct8heR024. We believe that our current offices are in gooddition and appropriately supp
our business needs.

For additional information regarding obligationsden our operating leases, see Note C6mmitments and Contingenciesn Notes t
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Raot this Report, which is incorporated by refece herein. For additional informat
regarding properties by geographic region, see W8t8egment Informationin Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementgeim 8 of Part |
of this Report, which is incorporated by refereheeein.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

The information set forth under the heading “LeBabceedings” in Note 18Commitments and Contingenciesn Notes to Consolidat
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of thispRrt, is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

29




Table of Contents
PART Il
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Price Range of Common Stock

The principal market in which our common stock riaded is the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSEiyler the symbol JNPR. T
following table sets forth the high and low saleggs forour common stock for each full quarterly periodhaitthe two most recent fis
years as reported on the NY¢

2014 2013
High Low High Low
First quarter $ 28.7F  $ 2228 % 22.9¢ $ 18.4%
Second quarter $ 26.8¢ % 2381 $ 1962 $ 15.6-
Third quarter $ 25.1¢ $ 21.9C $ 2228 % 18.71
Fourth quarter $ 23.1C $ 18.41 % 2271 $ 18.3¢

Stockholders

As of February 13, 2015 there were 943 stockholders of record of our comratock and we believe a substantially greater barno
beneficial owners who hold shares through brokmasks or other nominees.

Dividends

We paid quarterly cash dividends in the third amatth quarter of 2014 of $0.10 per share totali@§.8 million, and paid no cash dividend
fiscal 2013. The declaration and amount of anyrfuttash dividends are at the discretion of the @adrDirectors and will depend on «
financial performance, economic outlook, and artyeptrelevant considerations. See Note 38bsequent Eventisy Notes to Consolidat
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of thispRrt for our dividend declaration subsequent todbgber 31, 2014 .

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

The following table provides share repurchase #gtigiuring the three months ended December 31, 2@1i4nillions, except per she
amounts):

Total Number

of Shares Maximum Dollar
Purchased as Value of Shares
Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
Total Number Average Announced Purchased
of Shares Price Paid Plans or Under the Plans
Period Purchased® per Share® Programs® or Programs @
October 1 - October 31, 2014 1.2 $ 20.3¢ 1.2 $ 1,650.(
November 1 - November 30, 2014 14€ % 21.1¢ 14€ $ 1,340.¢
December 1 - December 31, 2014 7€ $ 22.0F 7.5 $ 1,175.(
Total 235 g 21.4( 23.¢

@ Amounts include repurchases under our stock repsectprograms and repurchases of our common stecBufoemployees in connection with
issuances of shares to satisfy minimum tax withingldbligations for the vesting of certain stockaads. The amount of shares of common ¢
repurchased from our employees in connection witimum tax withholdings was not significant duritige three months endDecember 31, 201.

@ Shares were repurchased under our stock repurphageam approved by the Board in February 2014Getdber 2014, which authorized us to purc
an aggregate of up to $3.4 billimf our common stock. Future share repurchases umgiercapital return plan will be subject to a revief the
circumstances in place at that time and will be enfadm time to time in private transactions or opegrket purchases as permitted by securities laa
other legal requirements. This program may be diicoed at any time
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Company Stock Performance

The graph below shows the cumulative total stodidioieturn over a fivgear period assuming the investment of $100 on Deee 31, 200!
in each of Juniper Networks' common stock (with teieavestment of all dividends), the Standard & 0600 Stock Index (“S&P 500"}he
NYSE Dow Jones Industrial Averag“DJI"), and the NASDAQ Telecommunications IndexXTC”). The graph shall not be deemed tc
incorporated by reference into other SEC filings; deemed to be soliciting material or filed witle tCommission or subject to Regulation
or 14C or subject to Section 18 of the Exchange Aoe comparisons in the graph below are based hjsborical data and are not indica
of, or intended to forecast, future performancewfcommon stock.

Stock Performance Graph
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--Juniper Networks, Inc.("JNPR") S&P 500 <DJI -4 IXTC
As of December 31,
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
IJNPR $ 100.0C $ 210.8¢ $ 116.5¢ $ 112.3:  $ 128.9( $ 128.6(
S&P 500 $ 100.0¢ $ 1455. $ 1485¢ $ 172.37 % 228.1¢ $ 259.4!
DJI $ 100.0C $ 139.8: $ 151.47 $ 166.8° $ 216.2( $ 237.8¢
IXTC $ 100.0¢ $ 154.0¢ $ 1346 $ 137.3. % 170.2¢ $ 185.4¢
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dateould be read in conjunction with Item Md&dnagement's Discussion and Analysi
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” @hd Consolidated Financial Statements and thesntitereto in Item 8, Financia
Statements and Supplementary Data,” of this Repahith are incorporated herein by reference.

The information presented below reflects the immdatertain significant transactions and the adwptf certain accounting pronounceme
which makes a direct comparison difficult betweanteof the last five fiscal years. For a complegsatiption of matters affecting the result
the tables below during the three years ended Dieeef81, 2014 , see “Notes to Consolidated Finar@tialementsin Iltem 8 of Part Il of thi
Report.

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Years Ended December 31,
2014(a) 2013(b) 2012(c) 2011(d) 2010(e)
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net revenues $ 4,627.. $ 4,669.. $ 4,365.. $ 4,448 $ 4,093.
Cost of revenues 1,768.¢ 1,727 1,656.¢ 1,580.: 1,351t
Gross margin 2,858.: 2,941 .. 2,708.¢ 2,868.¢ 2,741.¢
Operating expenses 3,277.¢ 2,375k 2,400." 2,250.: 1,974..
Operating (loss) income (419.%) 565.¢ 308.1 618.5 767.¢
Other income (expense), net 333.¢ (40.9 (16.€ (46.8) 10.€
(Loss) income before income taxes and

noncontrolling interest (86.%) 525.¢ 291.t 571.7 778.2
Income tax provision 248.( 85.7 105.( 146.7 158.¢
Consolidated net (loss) income (334.9) 439.¢ 186.t 425.( 619.¢
Adjust for net loss (income) attributable to

noncontrolling interest — — — 0.1 (1.0
Net (loss) income attributable to Juniper Networks $ (334.9) $ 439.¢ $ 186.f $ 425.1 $ 618.

Net (loss) income per share attributable to Juniper
Networks common stockholders:

Basic $ 0.79) $ 0.8¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.8C $ 1.1¢

Diluted $ (0.79) $ 08¢ $ 03 $ 0.7¢ % 1.1%
Shares used in computing net income

per share:

Basic 457 .4 501.¢ 520.¢ 529.¢ 522.¢

Diluted 457 .4 510.: 526.2 541.¢ 538.¢
Cash dividends declared per common stock $ 0.2 $ — % — % — $ —
(@ Includes the following significant pre-taxrits: Impairment of goodwill of $850.0 million , restturing and other charges of $208.5 milliagein on th

(b)

(©
(d)
(e)

sale of equity investments of $163.0 million , gaiet of legal fees in connection with the litigetisettlement with Palo Alto Networks, Inc.,%#96..
million , gain on sale of Junos Pulse of $19.6 ionil] and interest expense on debt (net of amomniiad:ized? of $57.5 million Income tax has be
provided on the pre-tax loss primarily due to the-deductible goodwill charge. In addition, incled&52.8 millionof significant tax items related to
gain on the sale of Junos Pulse offset by the seleithe Compar's valuation allowance attributable to investmersés

Includes the following significant ptex items: restructuring and other charges of $41ilkon, interest expense on debt (net of amouwafsitalized) ¢
$45.2 million, and an increase in depreciation espewithin research and development of $28.3 milfilatedo a change in estimate of the useful |
of certain computers and equipment . In additioc|udes $64.2 million of significant tax items farmultiyear claim related to the U.S. produc
activities deduction, a tax settlement with the |RB8d the reinstatement of the U.S. federal R&Dd@edit on January 2, 2013 retroactive to Janug
2012.

Includes the following significant ptex items: restructuring and other charges of $84llfon, interest expense on debt (net of amowafsitalized) ¢
$40.0 million, and a net gain on prival-held investments of $25.5 millio

Includes the following significant ptex items: restructuring and other charges of $&flBon and interest expense on debt (net of ant®uapitalizec
of $37.7 million.

Includes pre-tax restructuring charges of &Xfillion . In addition, includes a narcurring income tax benefit of $54.1 million reded in the firs
guarter from a change in estimate of unrecogniardénefits related to sh-based compensatio
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In millions)

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 3,104¢ $ 4,097.¢ $ 3,837.. $ 4292.: $ 2,821.¢
Working capital 1,444.. 2,262.% 2,178.° 2,973.( 1,742«
Goodwill 2,981t 4,057.7 4,057.¢ 3,928.; 3,927.¢
Total assets 8,403.: 10,326.( 9,832.: 9,983.¢ 8,467.¢
Long-term debt 1,349.( 999.¢ 999.2 999.( —
Total long-term liabilities

(excluding long-term debt) 607.: 583.1 411.¢ 428.4 387.1
Total Juniper Networks stockholders' equity $ 4919.. $ 7,302 $ 6,999.C $ 7,089.. $ 6,608.:
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read with thesididated Financial Statements and the relate@siat Item 8, of this Report.

The following discussion is based upon our Constéid Financial Statements included elsewhere sRleport, which have been prepare
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accourgiimciples (“U.S. GAAP”).In the course of operating our business, we rolytineake
decisions as to the timing of the payment of ingsjahe collection of receivables, the manufactuend shipment of products, the fulfillm
of orders, the purchase of supplies, and the mgldi inventory and spare parts, among other nsatkach of these decisions has some in
on the financial results for any given period. Iakimg these decisions, we consider various faétmtsiding contractual obligations, custor
satisfaction, competition, internal and externakficial targets and expectations, and financiahrptey objectives. For further informati
about our critical accounting policies and estimasze “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimatesttion included in thisManagement
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations.”

To aid in understanding our operating results ffier periods covered by this Report, we have provatedxecutive overview and a summar
the business and market environment. These secsiomgld be read in conjunction with the more dethitliscussion and analysis of
consolidated financial condition and results of raiens in this ltem 7, our “Risk Factorséction included in Item 1A of Partl, and
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereltieded in Item 8 of Part Il of this Report.

Business and Market Environmer

At Juniper Networks, we design, develop, and seldpcts and services for higierformance networks to enable customers to bugdly
scalable, reliable, secure and ceective networks for their businesses, while agng agility, efficiency and value through autoioat We
focus on customers and partners across our keicatsrivho view these network attributes as funddaidn their business; including glo
service providers, enterprises, financial servicds)d hosting providers, governments, researct,pblic sector organizations. Product
solution differentiation, with a relentless custarfexus, will allow us to achieve our primary gadlgrowing revenue faster than the market.

We sell our products in more than 100 countrieghire geographic regions: Americas; Europe, Midgst, and Africa ("EMEA"); and As
Pacific ("APAC"). We sell our higiperformance routing, switching, and security netjmoducts and service offerings to service proviale
enterprise markets. Our silicon, systems, and soéiwepresent innovations that transform the ecawand experience of networking, helf
customers achieve superior performance, greatecehand flexibility, while reducing overall totalost of ownership. In addition to ¢
products, we offer technical support and professisarvices, as well as education and training amog to our customers. Together, our higt
performance product and service offerings helpaustomers convert legacy networks that provide coditized services into more valua
assets that provide differentiation, value, andaéased performance, reliability, and security td-asers.

During 2014, we saw a slight decline in net revengmar-overyear, primarily due to reduced spending by U.Sri€ex, however the divers
in our business across verticals such as Cloud Gatile Providers helped to partially offset the ohecl We expect the overall revel
environment to be challenging over the next seveuarters, as market dynamics, including consabidatare impacting demand from 1
largest U.S. service provider customers. We belmwueproduct gross margins may continue to vartha future due to competitive prici
pressures, which may be offset by additional opamat efficiencies. Nevertheless, we are focuse@xetuting our strategy that is focuset
designing, developing and selling products andisesfor highperformance networks. We believe our product pbeotfoontinues to be stror
and we remain focused on operational excellencst,discipline and targeted growth initiatives.

In 2014, we continued to invest in innovation atr@érsgthening our product portfolio, which resuliachew product offerings across routi
switching, and security. In routing, we announcedrtualized version of our flagship MX Series 3hildersal Edge Routing platform,
vMX 3D Universal Edge Router, to deliver the indy'st first full-featured, carriegrade virtualized router, giving service provideunsc
enterprises the ability to seamlessly leveragebieefits of both virtual and physical networking. dwitching, to address the network
requirements of large cloud providers and entegptisstomers who build large and massive scale aatters, we announced OCX1100,
first switch to combine Open Compute Project (O@R)dware design with a carrielass network operating system, Junos OS. We
announced a new line of EX4600 Ethernet switchesulfill the increasing demands for highly availabhccess to cloud services
applications across enterprise campus networks.

Additionally, we expanded our SDN portfolio withwmesoftware and hardware, including the NorthStant@wdler, a new traffieengineerin
controller leveraging open, industry-standard prot® built to optimize service providergansport networks, as well as the Junos Fi
software that controls thousands of independentar&telements from a single management plane.
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Key strategic technology partnerships also delidenew solutions to address the hjggrformance network requirements of our sel
provider and enterprise customers. Through integratith Gainspeed’ technology and our MX Series 3D Universal EdgetBs and E.
Series Switches, we announced the Virtual Convegable Access Platform, allowing cable operatordbdtier automate and scale t
edge/access infrastructure while creating a platffor new cloudbased services. Additionally, we partnered with iddk advance the Tel
Cloud for mobile broadband and accelerate servieation by bringing together Nokia's leading Lig@dre solution and the Juniper Netwc
MetaFabric™ data center architecture, including t€oh Furthermore, we signed a go to market agergmvith Aruba to deliver an op
converged enterprise network solution by integoathmuba mobility solutions with Juniper enterprggitches and routers, delivering ongc
product innovation to enterprise customers.

For security, we announced Firefly Perimeter auairtversion of our SRX Series Service Gateway, adwancements in our Spotlight Sec
threat intelligence platform, Junos Space VirtuaeBtor, an application that automates the manageared deployment of Firefly Perimeter
well as Juniper Argon Secure, an advanced anti-aralwervice.

Due to the recent underperformance of our secpribglucts and efforts to refocus our security offgsi, we recorded a goodwill impairm
charge of $850.0 million in the fourth quarter 6fl2. We intend to focus on stabilizing revenuesunsecurity reporting unit in 2015, and, :
result, we are pivoting our security strategy touf® on building integrated solutions that focusnetwork resiliency and business contin
across cloud, data center, branch, campus, andcsepvovider mobile infrastructure, by taking adiege of the existing and ongo
innovation of our Junos-based SRX platform.

In 2014, we implemented a series of initiativesiglesd to streamline our organization, improve ofpenal efficiencies, rationalize our prod
portfolios, and return capital to our sharehold&tsese actions were largely completed by the er’Dbd.

In the first quarter of 2014, we realigned our migation into a On&uniper structure, which included consolidatingheatour research a
development ("R&D") and go-to-market functions éaluce complexity, increase clarity of responsik#it and improve efficiency.

To improve operational efficiency, in 2014, we implented various restructuring activities and stmadtcost saving actions across rese
and development, sales and marketing, and genedah@ministrative expenses. We completed the 28&#ucturing plan through workfol
reductions, facility consolidations or closuresseaswritedowns, contract terminations and other actions.aA®sult, we recorded a tc
restructuring charge of $207.7 milliam cost of sales and restructuring and other ctgargeconnection with the rationalization of oupguc
portfolio, we completed the sale of Junos Pulsetdtal consideration of $230.7 million which resdtin a gain of $19.6 milliom othe
income (expense), net in the Consolidated Staterobf@perations. As a result of these cost managemaetions, we achieved our tc
annualized operating expense savings commitme$2@d.0 million compared to the fourth quarter 0120

In addition to these cost reduction activities, wgoduced a capital allocation program to retuapital to our stockholders through st
repurchases and dividends. In 2014, we returnegl [§ifion of capital to our stockholders througte tbompletion of a $1.2 billion accelers
share repurchase program ("ASR") and the repurcbia$2.1 billion of our common stock subsequenth® ASR. We also paid two quarte
cash dividends of $0.10 per share for an aggregaieunt of $86.0 million and issued $350.0 milliaygeegate principal amount df50%
senior notes due 2024 ("2024 Notes"), which allowsdto partially fund the ASR. We intend to ret@h.0 billion of aggregate sh:
repurchases by the end of the second quarter & 2@ject to raising additional debt financing.
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Financial Results and Key Performance Metrics Oviw

The following table provides an overview of our Keancial metrics for the years ended Decembe814 , 2013, and 2012 (in millions,
except per share amounts, percentages, days saanaling ("DSO"), and book-to-bill):

As of and for the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Net revenues $4,627.1 $4,669.1 $4,365.4 $(42.0) ()% $303.7 7%
Gross Margin $2,858.2 $2,941.4 $2,708.8 $(83.2) (3)% $232.6 9%
Percentage of net revenues 61.8% 63.0% 62.1%
Operating (loss) income $(419.7) $565.9 $308.1 $(985.6) (174)% $257.8 84%
Percentage of net revenues (9.1)% 12.1% 7.1%
Net (loss) income $(334.3) $439.8 $186.5 $(774.1) (176)% $253.3 136%
Percentage of net revenues (7.2)% 9.4% 4.3%
Net (loss) income per share

Basic $(0.73) $0.88 $0.36 $(1.61) (183)% $0.52 144%

Diluted $(0.73) $0.86 $0.35 $(1.59) (185)% $0.51 146%
Cash dividends declared per

common stock $0.20 $— $— $0.20 —% $— —%

Stock repurchase plan activity $2,250.0 $570.6 $645.6 $1,679.4 294% $(75.0) (12)%
Operating cash flows $763.4 $845.9 $637.7 $(82.5) (10)% $208.2 33%
DSO® 49 41 35 8 20% 6 17%
Book-to-bill © >1 >1 >1
Deferred revenue $1,075.7  $1,069.3 923.4 $6.4 1% $145.9 16%

®  DSO and book-tdill are for the fourth quarter ended December281.4, 2013, and 201

* Net RevenuesDuring 2014, net revenues were slightly down, camgao 2013, as a result of a decline in net regsrfiom U
carriers, partially offset by growing demand frotoud providers in the Americas, as well as imprgvilemand among serv
provider in EMEA. The year-overear decline in our net revenues was primarily thug decrease in net revenues from our routiny
security products, partially offset by an increaseur switching products revenue and service ragen

During 2013, compared to 2012, we experiencedenatrmue growth in the Americas, in both service jglewvand enterprise, offset
a decline in revenue in APAC and EMEA. The yearrexear increase in our net revenues during 2013 wiesly due to increas
in edge routing, switching, and service revenuetjally offset by a decline in our security prodsicevenue.

* Gross Margin:Our gross margin as a percentage of net revenugeatded during 2014, compared to 2013, as a rekiiighe
inventory charges driven by product rationalizasiom connection with our 2014 Restructuring Plad eharges related to an industry
wide memory product quality defect for a comporfenin a third party supplier.

During 2013, compared to 2012, our gross margia psrcentage of net revenues increased primardytalinigher restructuring a
other charges recorded in 2012, partially offsehigher inventory provisions in 2013 for legacytfdams.

» Operating (Loss) Incoméuring 2014, compared to 2013, we experienced dndein operating (loss) income as a percentageel
revenues, primarily due to an $850.0 million godtlimpairment charge related to the Security reipgrt
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unit recorded in the fourth quarter of 2014, restiting and other charges of $207.7 milliprrelated to severance, faci
consolidations and closures, asset-woitks; and contract terminations in connection witlr 2014 Restructuring Plan, as well i
component remediation charge of $20.7 million fetato the memory product quality defect.

Our operating income as a percentage of revenwesased in 2013, compared to 2012, primarily dugréevth in net revenues. Al
contributing to the increase in operating incomeenNewer restructuring and other charges of $521Rom compared to 2012.

e Cash Dividends Declared per Common Stdalring 2014, we declared two quarterly cash divittenf $0.10 per share, payable
September 23, 2014 and on December 23, 2014 t&hsiloters of record as of the close of business eptesnber 2, 2014 a
December 2, 2014, respectively, in the aggregatmuatof $86.0 million . We had not previously pa#sh dividends.

e Stock Repurchase Plan Activitignder our stock repurchase program, we repurchagedoximately 96.1 milliorshares of ot
common stock in the open market at an average pfi§23.41 per share for an aggregate purchasg,268.0 millionduring the ye:
ended December 31, 2014 .

e Operating Cash FlowsOperating cash flows decreased in 2014, comparezDi@, primarily due to lower cash collections f
customers, higher payments primarily related to 204 restructuring plans, higher taxes paid, ameel prepayments comparec
prior year.

Operating cash flows increased in 2013, compare2Di®, primarily due to the timing of payments ur @endors, higher deferr
revenue, and lower taxes paid, partially offseth®y/timing of payments for incentive compensatmoir employees and the timing
receipts from our customers.

e DSO: DSO is calculated as the ratio of ending accoueteivable, net of allowances, divided by averagéy deet sales for tF
preceding 90 days. DSO for the quarter ended Deeer@b, 2014 increased by 8 days, or 20&tnpared to the quarter eni
December 31, 2013. During 2014, we transitionedagerdistribution partners from a third party fimémg program to Junipe
commercial payment terms. Going forward, we exp0 to be in the range of 45 to 55 days.

DSO increased by 6 days or 17% for the quarter ceiEcember 31, 2013 compared to the quarter enéedrbber 31, 2012. T
increase was primarily due to large muykiar service renewals at the end of the period lwhicreased our outstanding receiva
compared to the same period in 2012.

« Bookto-Bill : Book-tobill represents the ratio of product orders booledded by product revenues during the respectiegop
Book-to-bill was greater than one for the quartarded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012, indicatiogg product demand.

» Deferred RevenucTotal deferred revenue increased slightly by $6iltan to $1,075.7 millionas of December 31, 2014, compare
$1,069.3 million as of December 31, 204&imarily due to an increase in deferred serveaenue of $25.8 million, primarily driv:
by the execution of several mujtear support agreements and annual agreement risn@lea increase in deferred service revenue
partially offset by a decrease in deferred prodesenue of $19.4 millioras a result of lower distributor inventory and rip
revenue releases in relation to previously defepreduct revenue.

As of December 31, 2013 compared to December 312,20tal deferred revenue increased by $145.9amill primarily due to a
increase in deferred service revenue driven byexeeution of several muliiear support agreements, and to a lesser extenti@as
in annual agreement renewals, slightly offset loerease in deferred product revenue.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements anatedldisclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP ragsius to make judgments, assumpt|
and estimates that affect the amounts reportederConsolidated Financial Statements and the acaoyiy notes. On an ongoing basis
evaluate our estimates, including those relateshtes returns, pricing credits, warranty costgvwaince for doubtful accounts, impairmen
longterm assets, especially goodwill and intangibleessscontract manufacturer exposures for carryind absolete material charg
assumptions used in the valuation of sHameed compensation, and litigation. We base oumatds and assumptions on current fi
historical experience, and various other factoet the believe are reasonable under the circumsiatite results of which form the basis
making judgments about the carrying values of asaptl liabilities that are not readily apparentifrother sources. For further informai
about our significant accounting policies, see Nlyte
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Significant Accounting Policies in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementdtém 8 of Part Il of this Report, which describd&
significant accounting policies and methods usetthénpreparation of the Consolidated Financiale®t&nts. The accounting policies descr
below are significantly affected by critical accting estimates. Such accounting policies requigniicant judgments, assumptions,
estimates used in the preparation of the Conselilginancial Statements and actual results codifdrdnaterially from the amounts repor
based on these policies. To the extent there aterialadifferences between our estimates and theahoesults, our future consolidated res
of operations may be affected.

« Goodwill. We make significant estimates, assumptions, atghjents when valuing goodwill and other intangésets in connecti
with the initial purchase price allocation of argaired entity, as well as when evaluating impairtr@frgoodwill and other intangik
assets on an ongoing basis. These estimates ae bpsn a number of factors, including historicadarience, market conditions, ¢
information obtained from the management of theuaed company. Critical estimates in valuing certatangible assets include,
are not limited to, historical and projected custometention rates, anticipated growth in revermaenfthe acquired customer ¢
product base, and the expected use of the acqaseets. These factors are also considered in detegrthe useful life of tr
acquired intangible assets. The amounts and ulefslassigned to identified intangible assets icipéhe amount and timing of futi
amortization expense.

Gooduwill represents the future economic benefiisirag from other assets acquired in a business gwtibn or an acquisition that ¢
not individually identified and separately record@the excess of the purchase price over the estdrfair value of net assets
businesses acquired in a business combinatiorcdgnized as goodwill. We evaluate our goodwillifapairment on an annual ba:
as of November 1, or more frequently if an event occurs or factd eincumstances change that would more likely thatreduce tr
fair value of our reporting units below their camy amount.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportingjt level, which is one level below our operatsggment level, by comparing
reporting unit's carrying value, including goodwilh the fair value of the reporting unit. The repa units are determined basec
the components of our operating segment that d¢atesia business for which discrete financial imfation is available and segm
management regularly review the operating restltseocomponent.

The provisions of the accounting standard for gdtbdmd other intangibles allows us to first assqsalitative factors to determi
whether it is necessary to perform the tstep quantitative goodwill impairment test. While are permitted to conduct a qualita
assessment to determine whether it is necessggriorm a twostep quantitative goodwill impairment test, for amual goodwi
impairment test in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20tve performed a quantitative test for all of ceporting units.

Our goodwill impairment test involves a tvebep process to identify goodwill impairment andaswee the amount of goodv
impairment loss to be recognized, if any. The fitsp tests for potential impairment by comparhmeg fair value of reporting units w
the reporting unit's net asset values. If the Yailue of the reporting units exceeds the carryialye of the reporting ung’net asset
goodwill is not impaired and no further testingeasjuired. If the fair value of the reporting unitses not exceed the carrying valu
the net assets assigned to the reporting unit, weeperform the second step of the impairmentitestder to determine the impli
fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill. Thecead step requires an assignment of the reportiiysufair value to the reportil
unit's assets and liabilities, using the relevant adiipisaccounting guidance, to determine the impliail value of the reportir
unit's goodwill. The implied fair value of the regimg unit's goodwill is then compared with the carrying antooithe reportin
unit’s goodwill, and if the carrying value of a repogtinnit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair valueg \iecord an impairment Ic
equal to the difference.

In the first step, the fair value of each of oysaging units is determined using both the income market valuation approaches.
believe the income approach and the market appragelequally representative of the reporting sniiir value. Under the incot
approach, the fair value of the reporting unit &sdd on the present value of estimated future flasls that the reporting unit
expected to generate over its remaining life. Urtlermarket approach, the value of the reportinig isrbased on an analysis t
compares the value of the reporting unit to valoiepublicly-traded companies in similar lines of businesshk application of tr
income and market valuation approaches, we ardreshjto make estimates of future operating tremisjadgments on discount ra
and other variables. Determining the fair valueaaieporting unit is highly judgmental in nature @ndolves the use of significe
estimates and assumptions. We base our fair valirmaes on assumptions we believe to be reasobabkhat are unpredictable ¢
inherently uncertain. Actual future results relatecassumed variables could differ from these e In addition, we make cert
judgments and assumptions in allocating sharedsaasd liabilities to determine the carrying valémseach of our reporting units.
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Under the income approach, we calculate the fdirevaf a reporting unit based on the present vafuestimated future cash flov
Cash flow projections are based on managemeniraatss of revenue growth rates and operating margéking into considerati
industry and market conditions. The discount raeduis based on the weightagerage cost of capital adjusted for the relevisk
associated with businesgecific characteristics and the uncertainty reldatethe business's ability to execute on the ptegk cas
flows. Under the market approach, we estimate Hie alue based on market multiples of revenue eacdhings derived fro
comparable publiclfraded companies with similar operating and investitcharacteristics as the reporting units, and tyaply
control premium which is determined by considerwogtrol premiums offered as part of the acquisgitmt have occurred in mar
segments that are comparable with our reportintsuihe income approach and the market approachcualy weighted to deri
the fair value of the reporting unit.

Prior to the second step, the lolnggd assets, such as property, plant, and equipna purchased intangible assets subje
amortization, are reviewed for impairment. Recobéity of assets to be held and used is measured bgmparison of the carryi
amount of an asset, or asset group, to estimatdidagunted future cash flows expected to be gepetitay the asset, or asset grou
needed, an impairment charge is recognized bynmiat by which the carrying amount of the assefsset group, exceeds its
value.

In the second step, the reporting unit's fair vatuellocated to all of the assets and liabilitiegluding any unrecognized intangi
assets; such as, existing technology, backlogcastbmer relationships, in a hypothetical analyfsi calculates the implied fair va
of goodwill in the same manner as if the reportimit was being acquired in a business combinatfotiie implied fair value of tr
reporting unit's goodwill is less than the carryinglue, the difference is recorded as an impairniess. Assumptions used
measuring the fair value of these assets anditiabiincluded the discount rates, customer reneatal, and technology obsolesce
rates used in valuing intangible assets, and mriofrcomparable transactions in the market in vajdhe tangible assets.

During our fiscal year 2014 annual goodwill impaémh test, our reporting units were: Routing, Switghand Security.

The fair value of the Routing and Switching repagtunits significantly exceeded their carrying altiowever the fair value of t
Security reporting unit did not exceed its carrywm@ue and therefore we determined the Securitprigqg unit's goodwill wa
impaired. In 2014, we re-aligned our gortarket and research and development resourcesofects with the highest potential
growth and continued to leverage our engineerifgrtsfacross our Routing, Switching, and Securitydpcts. In the fourth quarter
2014, we began to implement a new Security strategysed on network resiliency and performance dasethe SRX platform. As
result, we rationalized our Security product pditfancluding developing a new product roadmap awiling certain point produc
including the divestiture of Junos Pulse. Thes#ofacdecreased our short-term and rieam revenue and profitability forecasts of
Security reporting unit.

As a result, the carrying value of the Securityoréipg unit's goodwill exceeded the implied fairluea of goodwill, resulting in
goodwill impairment charge of $850.0 million whialas recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Gpasa

Refer to Item 8 of Part I, Note 7, Goodwill andréhased Intangible Assets, of the notes to the @imtaded Financial Statements,
further information.

* Inventory Valuation and Contract Manufacturer Libiéés. Inventory consists primarily of component partshie used in tf
manufacturing process and is stated at lower ofagecost or market. A provision is recorded wherentory is determined to be
excess of anticipated demand or obsolete, to adjushtory to its estimated realizable value. Inedmining the provision, we al
consider estimated recovery rates based on theenaftthe inventory. As of December 31, 2014 andddeber 31, 2013, our inventt
balances were $62.5 million and $52.7 million pesstively.

We establish a liability for non-cancelable, naturnable purchase commitments with our contraabufacturers for quantities
excess of our demand forecasts or obsolete matatrges for components purchased by the comrantifacturers based on
demand forecasts or customer orders. We also tstkmated recoveries of aged inventory into consitien when determining t
liability. As of December 31, 2014 and December&113, our contract manufacturer liabilities wegs$ millionand $22.9 millior
respectively.

Significant judgment is used in establishing oue@asts of future demand, recovery rates basedeonature and age of inventory,
obsolete material exposures. We perform a detaitedysis and review of data used in establishirrgdemand forecasts. If the aci
component usage and product demand are significknwier than forecast, which may be caused by faotathin and outside of o
control, or if there were a higher incidence ofeéntory obsolescence
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because of rapidly changing technology and ourotnist requirements, we may be required to increasén@entory writeedowns an
contract manufacturer liabilities, which could hareadverse impact on our gross margins and pbdfita We regularly evaluate o
exposure for inventory writdewns and adequacy of our contract manufactureilities. Inventory and supply chain manager
remains an area of focus as we balance the ristatdrial obsolescence and supply chain flexibititprder to reduce lead times.

 Revenue recognition Revenue is recognized when all of the followingtecia have been met: (1) persuasive evidence
arrangement exists, (2) delivery has occurredséBs price is fixed or determinable, and (4) otdibility is reasonably assured.
enter into contracts to sell our products and sessiand while some of our sales agreements cost@itard terms and conditic
there are agreements that contain multiple elenmmtenstandard terms and conditions. As a result, sicgnifi contract interpretati
may be required to determine the appropriate adomynincluding whether the deliverables specified a multiple elemel
arrangement should be treated as separate uniscofinting for revenue recognition purposes, ansl,i how the price should
allocated among the elements and wheretmgnize revenue for each element. Changes ialtbeation of the sales price betw:
elements may impact the timing of revenue recogmiiut will not change the total revenue recognimedhe contract.

Under our revenue recognition policies, we allocateenue to each element based on a selling pigcarbhy. The selling price fol
deliverable is based on our vendor-specific obyecgvidence (“VSOE”) if available, thirdarty evidence ("TPE") if VSOE is r
available, or estimated selling price (“ESH"heither VSOE nor TPE is available. We estabM3$0OE of selling price using the pr
charged for a deliverable when sold separately. ®PEelling price is established by evaluating édyginterchangeable competi
products or services in staatbne sales to similarly situated customers. Waatouse TPE as we do not consider our productg
similar or interchangeable to our competitors' pieid in standalone sales to similarly situated arusts. ESP is establist
considering internal factors such as margin objesti pricing practices and controls, customer segimecing strategies and prod
life cycle. Consideration is also given to markenditions such as industry pricing strategies achrology life cycles. Wht
determining ESP, we apply management judgment tabksh margin objectives and pricing strategiesl &am evaluate mark
conditions and product life cycles. Revenue fromntemance service contracts is deferred and rezedmiatably over the contract
support period, which is generally one to threeayea

* Income Taxes We are subject to income taxes in the United Stael numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significardgment is require
in evaluating our uncertain tax positions and deteing our taxes. Although we believe our reseresreasonable, no assurance
be given that the final tax outcome of these msitteitl not be different from that which is refledtén our historical income ti
provisions and accruals. We adjust these reservighit of changing facts and circumstances, sictha closing of a tax audit or
refinement of an estimate. To the extent that thal ftax outcome of these matters is different title@m amounts recorded, si
differences will affect the provision for incomexés in the period in which such determination islea

Significant judgment is also required in determinany valuation allowance recorded against defeaedssets. In assessing the |
for a valuation allowance, we consider all ava#ablidence, including past operating results, egésof future taxable income, i
the feasibility of tax planning strategies. In #heent that we change our determination as to theuatrof deferred tax assets that
be realized, we will adjust our valuation allowandgéh a corresponding impact to the provision fazdme taxes in the period in wh
such determination is made.

Our provision for income taxes is subject to vdilgtiand could be adversely affected by earningmdéower than anticipated

countries that have lower tax rates and higher #mitipated in countries that have higher taxsiay changes in the valuation of
deferred tax assets and liabilities; by expiratidror lapses in the R&D tax credit laws; by tramgfeicing adjustments, including t
effect of acquisitions on our intercompany R&D esBaring arrangement and legal structure; by tarceff of nondeductil
compensation; by tax costs related to intercompaalignments; by changes in accounting principted)y changes in tax laws &
regulations, including possible U.S. changes totdlation of earnings of our foreign subsidiaritee deductibility of expens
attributable to foreign income, or the foreign tagdit rules. In addition, OECD’s contemplated a@sto numerous lonstanding ta
principles, if finalized and adopted by countried] increase tax uncertainty and may adverselgafbur provision for income tax
Significant judgment is required to determine theognition and measurement attributes prescribatiédraccounting guidance

uncertainty in income taxes. The accounting guiddnc uncertainty in income taxes applies to albime tax positions, including t
potential recovery of previously paid taxes, whitlsettled unfavorably could adversely affect ouwoyision for income taxes

additional paidin capital. In addition, we are subject to the ammus examination of our income tax returns byl&® and other t¢
authorities. We regularly assess the likelihoodaferse outcomes resulting from these examinatmdstermine the adequacy of
provision for income taxes. There can be no asser#imt the outcomes from these continuous examirgawill not have an advel
effect on our operating results and financial ctodi
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e Loss Contingencie: We use significant judgment and assumptions tionast the likelihood of loss or impairment of asets or th
incurrence of a liability, in determining loss cimgfencies. An estimated loss contingency is accwueeh it is probable that an as
has been impaired or a liability has been incuered the amount of loss can be reasonably estimétedecord a charge equal to
minimum estimated liability for litigation costs a loss contingency only when both of the followingnditions are me
(i) information available prior to issuance of auonsolidated financial statements indicates that firobable that an asset had |
impaired or a liability had been incurred at théedaf the financial statements and (ii) the ranfjoss can be reasonably estima
We regularly evaluate current information availatdeus to determine whether such accruals shoulddpgsted and whether n
accruals are required.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2Significant Accounting Policiesin Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemantsem 8 of Part Il of this Report, for a f
description of recent accounting pronouncemendpdling the expected dates of adoption and estinetiects on financial condition a
results of operations, which is incorporated hebgimeference.

Results of Operations

The following table presents product and servideeeenues (in millions, except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Routing 2,223.¢ $ 2,318.( 2,037.¢ $ (94.)) 4% $ 280.¢ 14%
Switching 721.% 638.( 554.¢ 83.2 13% 83.2 15%
Security 463.€ 563.¢ 669.7 (200.9) (18)% (105.¢) (16)%
Total Product 3,408.° 3,519.¢ 3,262.. (111.9 3% 257.¢ 8%
Percentage of net revenues 73.7% 75.4% 74.7%
Total Service 1,218.« 1,149.; 1,103.: 69.2 6 % 45.¢ 4%
Percentage of net revenues 26.3% 24.6% 25.3%
Total net revenues $ 4,627.: $ 4,669.: $ 4,365. $ (42.0) (1)% $ 303.% 7%

2014 Compared to 2013

Routing product net revenues decreased in 2014pad to 2013, as a result of weaker demand far cauting, partially offset by stro
growth of our PTX series products. Edge routingregenues increased as a result of strong demamdifdViX series products, partly offset
older edge routing platforms. The yaarer year decline was driven by weakness from l&l§ecarriers, partially offset by strength from @
Providers.

Switching product net revenues increased in 20bMmpared to 2013, reflecting growth from both oura@fic system and our EX sei
products. During the year we saw strong adoptio@Bébric data center switches by a growing numbeustomers, with especially strc
demand from Cloud Providers in the Americas.

Security product net revenues decreased in 20dpaced to 2013, primarily due to a continuing dexlin our legacy Screen OS products
the divestiture of our Junos Pulse product linedeSof our SRX platform declined slightly year-oyear, due to lower demand from L
Carrier customers.

The increase in service revenue in 2014, compar@®13, was primarily driven by new service corsamnd strong contract renewals. Ser
revenues are largely correlated with product reeentherefore if product net revenues declinaarititave an impact on future service rever
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2013 Compared to 2012

Routing product net revenues increased in 2013 paoed to 2012, due to an increase in volume oksafl@ur edge routing products to k
service provider and enterprise customers reflgatirstomer demand for the MX platform in particular

Switching product net revenues increased in 20d3pared to 2012, as a result of an increase inEXQ@Fabric product lines for both sen
provider and enterprise markets. Also contributinghe increase in net revenues were new prodtrodiactions for the enterprise campus
data center infrastructure.

Security product net revenues decreased in 20h3paed to 2012, primarily due to a decline in lgg&creen OS and our SRX platform.

The increase in service revenue in 2013, compar@012, was primarily driven by strong contractawals from our installed base across
routing, switching and security products.

Net Revenues by Geographic Regi

The following table presents net revenues by ggadcaregion (in millions, except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Americas:
United States $ 2,410.¢ $ 2,381t $ 2,067t $ 29.1 1% $ 314.( 15%
Other 219.7 232.( 218.¢ (12.9) 5)% 13.€ 6%
Total Americas 2,630.: 2,613t 2,285.¢ 16.¢ 1% 327.¢ 14%
Percentage of net revenues 56.8% 56.0% 52.4%
EMEA 1,263.: 1,256.¢ 1,266.: 6.4 1% (9.9) (1)%
Percentage of net revenues 27.3% 26.9% 29.0%
APAC 733.t 798.7 813.2 (65.2) (8)% (24.5) (2)%
Percentage of net revenues 15.9% 17.1% 18.6%
Total net revenues $ 4,627. $ 4,669.: $ 4,365 $ (42.0) (1)% $ 303.i 7%

2014 Compared to 2013

The increase in net revenues in the Americas id20dmpared to 2013, was primarily due to an irseda net revenues from service prov
markets, partially offset by a decline in the eptise market. The increase in net revenues in éndce provider market was due to str
demand from cloud and cable providers, partialfigeif by a decrease in demand from carriers. Théngeim the enterprise market resul
from a decline in net revenues due to recognitioreeenue from a large U.S. federal governmentremhin 2013.

Net revenues in EMEA slightly increased in 2014npared to 2013, primarily due to stronger demandhfservice providers partially offt
by a decrease in net revenues from the enterpigskaty although demand from the public sector regthstrong.

Net revenues in APAC decreased in 2014, compar2818, primarily due to a decline in net revenuemfboth the service provider a
enterprise market.

2013 Compared to 2012
Net revenues in the Americas increased in 2013 peoed to 2012, primarily due to an increase inmeres from both the service provider
enterprise markets. The increase in service provielenues was due to an increase in sales to gomdders and cable providers, parti

offset by a slight decrease in sales to carrieng ificrease in enterprise revenues in 2013, compgar2012, was primarily attributable t
broad-based improvement in customer demand asawélie recognition of a large U.S. federal govemtroentract.
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Net revenues in EMEA decreased in 2013, compare2D1@, primarily due to a decline in revenues i@ é&mterprise market attributable
certain large sales in 2012.

Net revenues in APAC decreased in 2013, compar@@18, primarily due to lower revenues in entegrissulting from weaker conditions
the China enterprise market. Service provider ragerwere relatively flat as a decline in sales wéftain large service providers in Japan
offset by higher revenue with certain large casrierChina. Additionally, the recognition of revenfrom a large service provider in Singaj
was offset by declines in revenues from other serproviders in APAC.

Net Revenues by Market and Custorn

The following table presents net revenues by mgikenillions, except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Service Provider $ 3,100 $ 3,054. $ 281l1. $ 46.2 2% $ 243.( 9%
Percentage of net revenues 67.0% 65.4% 64.4%
Enterprise 1,526. 1,614.¢ 1,554.; (88.2) (5)% 60.7 4%
Percentage of net revenues 33.0% 34.6% 35.6%
Total net revenues $ 4,627.: $ 4,669.: $ 4,365. $ (42.0 (1)% $ 303.% 7%

We sell our highperformance routing, switching, and security netwaroducts and service offerings to two primary ke#s: service provid
and enterprise. Determination of which market dipalar revenue transaction relates to is baseohgrily upon the customer's indust
classification code, but may also include subjectig@ctors such as the intended use of the proding. service provider market gener
includes wireline and wireless carriers, and calgerators, as well as major Internet content argliGgiion providers, including those t
provide social networking and search engine sesvidde enterprise market generally is comprisethusfinesses; federal, state, and |
governments; research and education institutiamd fiaancial services.

2014 Compared to 2013

Net revenues from sales to the service provideketancreased in 2014, compared to 2013, with gnowtthe Americas and EMEA. T
increase in service provider net revenues in theegas was driven by increased revenues from céouticable providers, partially offset
decreased revenues from large carriers. The ineri@aservice provider net revenues in EMEA wasdhattable to growth with large carrie
while in APAC net revenues in the service providerket declined as a result of lower demand witth Ismall and large carriers. In additi
service provider demand for switching products ta&d to be strong.

Net revenues from sales to the enterprise marketedsed in 2014, compared to 2013, primarily due tecline in sales in all geograr.
regions, however, revenue demand from public sextstomers was higher for all three regions.

2013 Compared to 2012

Net revenues from sales to the service provideketancreased in 2013, compared to 2012, primatilg to an increase in sales to cl
providers and cable providers in the Americas,igiéyrtoffset by a slight decrease in sales to veisslcarriers, while the service provider me
in EMEA and APAC was relatively flat. In additioservice provider demand for switching and dataereswlutions in 2013 was stronger t
in 2012.

Net revenues from the enterprise market increas@®i3, compared to 2012, primarily due to b-based growth in the Americas enterg
market, as well as recognition of a large U.S. faedgovernment contract, partially offset by weattemand in APAC and EMEA.

Customer

No customer accounted for greater than 10% of etirevenues during the year endDecember 31, 201d4nd 2013. During the year ent
December 31, 2012 , Verizon accounted for 10.3%uofnet revenues.
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Gross Margins

The following table presents gross margins (inionk, except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Product gross margin $ 2,121.¢ $ 2,243.¢ $ 2,058. $ (1219 B)% $ 185.c 9%
Percentage of product revenues 62.2% 63.7% 63.1%
Service gross margin 736.3 698.1 650.7 38.2 5% 47.4 7%
Percentage of service revenues 60.4% 60.7% 59.0%

Total gross margin $ 2,858 $ 2941 $ 2,708.¢ $ (83.2) 3)% $ 232¢ 9%

Percentage of net revenues 61.8% 63.0% 62.1%

2014 Compared to 2013

Product gross margin decreased as a percentagediigb net revenues in 2014, compared to 2013, apiyndue to an increase in cosi
revenues. The increase in cost of revenues wasaplymidue to asset writdewns of $41.5 million for product rationalizatioits connectio
with our 2014 Restructuring Plan and $20.7 milliorconnection with an industiyide memory product quality defect in a componeoirf
third-party supplier. Excluding the costs of the restitioy and component defect, product gross margia gercentage of net reven
improved slightly primarily due to the favorability product mix in the 2014 period.

Service gross margin as a percentage of serviceenehues decreased slightly in 2014, compare®18,2primarily due to an increase in la
and logistics delivery costs to support new congraad product introductions.

2013 Compared to 2012

Product gross margin percentage increased slightp13, compared to 2012, primarily due to higtestructuring and other charges reco
in 2012, partially offset by higher inventory preigns in 2013 for legacy platforms. Product grossgim benefited from cost reductions in
supply chain in 2013, which more than offset thpawt of higher pricing discounts.

Service gross margin as a percentage of serviceemehues increased in 2013, compared to 2012 apitndue to higher service revenues

greater efficiency in the delivery of services.
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Operating Expenses

The following table presents operating expensem(ilions, except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Research and development $ 1,006 $ 1,043.. $ 1,101.¢ $ (37.0) (D)% $ (58.9) B5)%
Percentage of net revenues 21.7% 22.3% 25.2%
Sales and marketing 1,023.¢ 1,075.¢ 1,045t (52.9) (5)% 30.4 3%
Percentage of net revenues 22.1% 23.0% 23.9%
General and administrative 231.1 217.: 206.¢ 13.¢ 6% 10.t 5%
Percentage of net revenues 5.0% 4.7% 4.7%
Restructuring and other charge 167.C 39.1 46.¢ 127.¢ 327% (7.7) (16)%
Percentage of net revenues 3.6% 0.8% 1.1%
Impairment of goodwiill 850.( — — 850.( —% — —%
Percentage of net revenues 18.4% —% $ —

Total operating expenses  $ 3,277¢ $ 2375¢ $ 2,400 $ 902. 38% $ (25.2) ()%

Percentage of net revenues 70.8% 50.9% 55.0%

Our operating expenses have historically been drimdarge part by personnedfated costs, including wages, commissions, bausenefits
sharebased compensation, and travel, particularly witbpect to research and development and sales athk@ting activities. Facility ar
information technology (“IT")departmental costs are allocated to each departbes®d on usage and headcount. Facility and ITen
headcount was 366, 396, and 368, as of Decemb&034, 2013, and 2012, respectively. We had a tftd|806, 9,483, and 9,234, employ
as of December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respébctive

2014 Compared to 2013
Research and developme

Research and development expense decreased in @irhpared to 2013, primarily due to lower personeited expenses as a resu
restructuring actions and divestiture of our JuRosse product lines. Research and development beatidecreased 8% from 4,135 a
December 31, 2013 to 3,797 as of December 31, 2Z¥d.decrease in research and development perserpehse was partially offset
higher shardsased compensation expense as a result of oursitauiof WANDL, Inc. in the first quarter, and @ngering program costs
2014, compared to 2013.

Sales and marketing

Sales and marketing expense decreased in 2014,acethfp 2013, primarily due to lower personredated expenses and other discretio
expenses due to our cost reduction efforts andiogeafficiency in our sales activities. The de@@an personnalelated expenses is prima
due to headcount reductions. Sales and marketiadcloent decreased 11% from 2,626 as of Decembe&t(3dB, to 2,348 as of December
2014.

General and administrative

General and administrative expense increased id,26dmpared to 2013, primarily due to higher litiga and investigation related cc
incurred in the current period in connection withiéstigation into possible violations of the U.8réign Corrupt Practices Act and, to a le
extent, our patent litigation case with Palo AltetiNorks, Inc. ("PAN"), as well as other litigatiomatters. This increase was partially offse
personnelkelated expenses as a result of headcount redaaiio8% from 513 as of December 31, 2013 to 476fd3ecember 31, 2014. C
patent litigation with PAN was settled in 2014.

Restructuring and other charg
Restructuring and other charges increased in 26ddpared to 2013, due to higher charges recordé&®14 in connection with our 20
Restructuring Plan. During 2014, we implemented28&4 Restructuring Plan and incurred restructucharges of $166.2 million related

workforce reductions, contract terminations, profamcellations, and facility closures. The 2014
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Restructuring Plan has been substantially complatedf December 31, 2014 and we do not expectdardesignificant future charges. ¢
Note 9, Restructuring and Other Charges, in Nag3ansolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Paf this Report, for further discussi
of our restructuring activities.

Impairment of goodwil

In the fourth quarter of 2014, we began to implehg&new security strategy focused on network essily and performance based on the
platform. As a result, we rationalized our Secuptpduct portfolio including developing a new protduoadmap and exiting certain pc
products, including the divestiture of Junos Puldeese factors decreased our short term and nearézenue and profitability forecasts of
security reporting unit. During our fiscal year 20annual goodwill impairment test, the carryingueabf our security reporting unit's good
exceeded the implied fair value of goodwill, remgtin a goodwill impairment charge of $850.0 nailli which was recorded in t
Consolidated Statement of Operations in Part thi&of this report. See Note 7, Goodwill and Puseltbintangibles, in Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of thisp®rt, for further discussion on the impairmengoddwill.

2013 Compared to 2012
Research and developmt

Research and development expense decreased in @dtpared to 2012, primarily due to lower depreécratexpense of $28.3 millic
attributable to the extended useful lives of coremuind equipment in 2013 as well as lower pro®tygvelopment costs of $18.6 million
addition, outside services, facilities, and IT sodécreased related to the cancellation of cepwijects and facility closures. The decreas
research and development expense was partiallgtdffs increases in personnel-related expenses piynadtributable to higher shafgase:
compensation expense, and to a lesser extent,rhighiable compensation. Research and developnestdount increased 1% from 4,08,
of December 31, 2012 to 4,135 as of December 313.28dditionally, we continued to shift headcoumtdwer cost regions.

Sales and marketing

Sales and marketing expense increased in 2013, arechpo 2012, primarily due to higher persome¢hted expenses related to an increa
commission expense driven by improved sales achiewg partially offset by lower shabmsed compensation expense and lower ol
service and travel due to our cost reduction effartd creating efficiency in our sales activiti®ales and marketing headcount decrease
from 2,680 as of December 31, 2012 to 2,626 asemkinber 31, 2013 as a result of our restructuritigies.

General and administrative

General and administrative expense increased i8,28dmpared to 2012, primarily due to higher litiga costs. The increase in general
administrative expense was partially offset by Iowersonnel-related expenses, primarily shmged compensation expense. Genera
administrative headcount increased 6% from 486faSezcember 31, 2012 to 513 as of December 31, 2018upport our financeslater
initiatives, including our ERP implementation.

Restructuring and other charg

Restructuring and other charges decreased in 2@if3pared to 2012, due to higher charges recordé®1? in connection with our 20
Restructuring Plan. During 2013, we implemented 28&3 Restructuring Plan and incurred restructuohgrges of $39.1 million related
workforce reductions, contract terminations, proancellations, and facility closures in connettwith our plans. See Note Bestructurini
and Other Chargesin Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsamI8 of Part Il of this Report, for further disciossof our restructurin
activities.
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Share-Based Compensation

Sharebased compensation expense associated with equigntive awards ("awards"), which include stockia, restricted stock un
("RSUSs"), restricted stock awards ("RSAs") and perfance share awards ("PSAs"), as well as our Brapl&tock Purchase Plan ("ESF
was recorded in the following cost and expensegeaies (in millions, except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Cost of revenues - Product $ 5 % 47 % 4€ $ 0.2 6% $ 0.1 2%
Cost of revenues - Service 14.2 15.4 17.C 1.2 (8)% (1.6) (9)%
Research and development 134.5 127.€ 109.1 6.S 5% 18.t 17%
Sales and marketing 60.2 70.¢ 81.t (20.7) (15)% (10.9) (13)%
General and administrative 26.1 26.C 31.1 0.1 —% (5.7 (16)%
Total $ 240.C $ 244¢ $ 243..  $ (4.6) (2)% $ 1.z — 0

2014 Compared to 2013

Sharebased compensation expense remained consiste@ili) 2ompared to 2013. The increase in expensedela RSUs, RSAs, and P<
assumed in connection with our acquisition of WANIDI2014 and the increase in grant date fair vatluesto higher stock prices was offse
a decrease in actual shares vested.

2013 Compared to 2012
Sharebased compensation expense remained consiste@18) 2ompared to 2012. Offsetting increases in expeelated to RSAs assume

connection with our acquisition of Contrail at #rd of 2012 were decreases in actual shares vasted decline in grant date fair values dt
our lower stock prices.

Other Income (Expense), Net and Income Tax Provisio
The following table presents other income (expensef)and income tax provision (in millions, excpptcentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change

Interest income $ 10.C $ 8.7 $ 11.C $ 1.3 15% $ 2.3 (21)%
Interest expense (66.9) (58.9 (52.9 (8.5 15% (5.5 10%
Net gain on legal settlement 196.1 — — 196.1 —% — —%
Gain on investments 167.¢ 11.2 26.7 156.¢ 1,386% (15.9 (58)%
Gain on sale of Junos Pulse 19.€ — — 19.€ —% — —%
Other 6.7 (2.0 (1.4 8.7 435% (0.€) 43%

Total other income (expense)

net $ 333.2 $ (40.9) $ (16.€) $ 373.¢ 925% $ (23.) 143%

Percentage of net revenues 7.2 % (0.9)% (0.4)%
Income tax provision $ 248.( $ 85.7 $ 105.( $ 162.: 189% $ (19.9) (18)%
Effective tax rate (287.4)% 16.3 % 36.0 %

Other Income (Expense), Net
Interest income primarily includes interest incofren our cash, cash equivalents, and investmemtstdst expengarimarily includes interes

net of capitalized interest expense from our ltanga debt and customer financing arrangements.r@yipécally consists of foreign exchar
gains and losses and other non-operational income®gpense items.
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2014 Compared to 2013

Interest Incom:

Interest income increased in 2014 compared to 20dr@arily due to a higher balance of longer tenveistments yielding higher interest.
Interest Expens

Interest expense increased in 2014, compared t8, 20imarily due to the issuance of our 2024 Narnethe first quarter of 2014. See Note
Long-Term Debt and Financingin Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementitam 8 in Part Il of this report for additional ormatior
regarding our 2024 Notes.

Gain on Legal Settlement

During the year ended December 31, 20Me entered into a settlement agreement with PAdblving patent litigation between the -
companies, which resulted in a realized gain oallegttiement and subsequent sale of related siesusf $196.1 million , net of legal fees.

Gain on Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , we redoedgain of $163.0 million primarily related to the sale of investments vahvere
converted from privately-held investments to puplitaded equity upon IPO and subsequently soldririguthe year ende®ecember 3:
2013 , net gain on investments was primarily cosgatiof a gain of $7.1 million related to the Comparprivatelyheld investments ai
publicly traded-equity investments.

Gain on Sale of Junos Pulse

The sale of our Junos Pulse product portfolio wamgleted on October 1, 2014 and we recorded a @a#$19.6 millionin other incom
(expense), net in the Consolidated Statement ofalipas. This sale was driven by product ratiorsdion in connection with our initiative
focus on projects with the highest potential foovgth. See Note 8. Other Financial Information, iot& to Consolidated Financial Statem
in Item 8 of Part Il of this Report for further disssion on the sale Junos Pulse.

2013 Compared to 2012

Interest Incomt

Interest income decreased in 2013, compared to,20i to lower cash balances and interest ratewellsas a shift to certain investme
yielding lower interest

Interest Expens

Interest expense increased in 2013, compared 8, 20inarily due to higher capitalized interesidil2 resulting from our phased Sunny
campus build-out.

Gain on Investments

Gain on investments decreased in 2013, compar2018d, due to higher net gains recorded in 2012e@lto our privatehreld investmen
which included a $14.7 million gain from the acdpias of our privately-held investment in Contrail.

Income Tax Provisio

The effective rate for 2014 differs from the fedestatutory rate of 35% primarily due to the impatthe nondeductible goodwill charge a
tax gain on sale of Junos Pulse offset by the litefief release of the Comparsyvaluation allowance attributable to investmeissés, th
federal R&D credit, recognition of domestic prodantactivities deductions, and earnings in foregigmsdictions, which are subject to lov
tax rates. The passage of Tax Increase Preventivbof’2014 on December 19, 2014 retroactively teies the U.S. federal R&D tax cre
from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014
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The effective rate for 2013 was lower than the fadetatutory rate of 35% primarily due to the Wénef the federal R&D credit, a t:
settlement with the IRS, recognition of domestioduction activities deductions, and earnings ireifgm jurisdictions, which are subject
lower tax rates.

The effective tax rate for 2012 was substantiailiyilar to the federal statutory rate of 35%. Théeefive rate for 2012 does not reflect
benefit of the federal R&D credit which expired Dacember 31, 2011.

Our effective tax rate could fluctuate significantn a quarterly basis and could be adversely &ffeto the extent earnings are lower
anticipated in countries that have lower statutatgs and higher than anticipated in countrieshibgae higher statutory rates. Our effective
rate could also fluctuate due to changes in theatan of our deferred tax assets or liabilities,bg changes in tax laws, regulations
accounting principles, as well as certain discitet@ms. As a result of the expiration of the fedeeslearch and development credit on Dece
31, 2014, we expect our effective tax rate to iaseesin 2015 See Item1A of Part |, "Risk Factorsthid Report for a description of relev
risks which may adversely affect our results.

For a complete reconciliation of our effective tate to the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% &amther explanation of our income -
provision, see Note 14ncome Taxesin Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementseim 8 of Part Il of this Report.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have funded our business primattisough our operating activities, the issuancewfcommon stock, and the issuance o
long-term debt. The following table shows our calpiesources (in millions, except percentages):

As of December 31,

2014 2013 $ Change % Change
Working capital $ 1444 $ 2,262 $ (818.9) (36)%
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,639.¢ $ 2,284.( $ (644.9 (28)%
Short-term investments 332.2 561.¢ (229.9) (41)%
Long-term investments 1,133.: 1,251.¢ (118.9) (9)%
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments 3,104.¢ 4,097.¢ (992.9 (24)%
Long-term debt 1,349.( 999.: 349.7 35%
Net cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 1,755.¢  § 3,098: § (1,342.9 (43)%

The significant components of our working capitaed aash and cash equivalents, shemn investments, and accounts receivable, redhy
accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and shaonttdeferred revenue. Working capital decreased &8% million during the year end
December 31, 2014 primarily due to a decrease in cash and cashvalguits as a result of our stock repurchase aetiyitax payment
dividends, and purchase of capital equipment, dsase decline in short term investments.

Summary of Cash Flow

As of December 31, 2014 , our cash and cash eguitsatiecreased by $644.4 million from Decembe®2813primarily due to purchases ¢
retirement of our common stock in connection with stock repurchase program, capital expenditdeeeral estimated tax payment, divid
payout and higher payments related to all restrirgplans, partially offset by the issuance of 2024 Notes in February 2014, cash rece

from the sale of certain equity investments, casleived from the patent litigation settlement, prateeds from the sale of Junos Pulse.

The following table summarizes cash flows from Gansolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in milli@xsept percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
$ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Net cash provided by operating activities$ 763« $ 845¢ $ 6377 $ (825 (100% $ 208.: 33%
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities $ 434 $ (5610 $ (595.€ $ 995.( a7n% $ 34.¢ (6)%
Net cash (used in) financing
activities $ (1,824 $ (401.5) $ (548.9) $ (1,422} 354% $  146.¢ (27)%
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Operating Activities
2014 Compared to 2013

Cash flow from operations decreased by $82.5 millio 2014, compared to 2013, primarily due to lowash collections from custome
higher payments related to our restructuring plaigher taxes paid, and lower prepayments comparpdor year.

2013 Compared to 2012

Cash flows from operations increased by $208.2ignilh 2013, compared to 2012, primarily due to highetr income, the timing of payme
to our vendors, higher deferred revenue, and Idaxes paid, partially offset by the timing of payrteefor incentive compensation to
employees and the timing of collections on our aunding receivables.

Investing Activitie:
2014 Compared to 2013

Net cash provided by investing was $434.0 millior2D14, compared to net cash used in investings61® million in 2013. The increase
net cash provided by investing activities was primalue to higher proceeds from sale of investraartd fewer purchases of investment
well as proceeds received from the sale of JuntsePu

2013 Compared to 2012

Net cash used in investing activities decrease$34.6 millionin 2013, compared to 2012, primarily due to lowgereding on acquisitions a
asset purchases as well as lower capital experditas we completed our phased Sunnyvale campud-dutjl partially offset by high
purchases of investments.

Financing Activities
2014 Compared to 2013

Net cash used in financing activities increase®byl22.5 million in 2014, compared to 2013, prifyatdiue to purchases and retirement of
common stock and payment of cash dividends, plyrtifiiset by the issuance of the 2024 Notes.

2013 Compared to 2012

Net cash used in financing activities decrease$146.6 millionin 2013, compared to 2012, primarily due to lowerghases and retiremen
our common stock, partially offset by an increasprioceeds from employee stock option exercisegelisas proceeds from customer financ
arrangements.

Stock Repurchase Activitie

In February 2014, the Board approved a stock réqase program that authorized us to repurchase $2.fo billion of our common stoc
("2014 Stock Repurchase Program™). In October 2@1elBoard authorized a $1.3 billiamcrease to the 2014 Stock Repurchase Progran
total of $3.4 billion. As of December 31, 2014, rthevas $1.2 billiorof authorized funds remaining under the 2014 S®egurchase Progra
We intend to repurchase $1.0 billion of our comnstock by the end of the second quarter of 2015aas5 g our three year capital ret
program, subject to raising additional debt finagciFuture share repurchases will be subject vew of the circumstances at that time
will be made from time to time in private transaos or open market purchases as permitted by sesudws and other legal requireme
Our stock repurchase programs may be discontinuadyatime.
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The following table summarizes our stock repurctedivities (in millions, except per share amounts)

Shares Average price Amount
Repurchased per share Repurchased

2014

Repurchases under stock repurchase programs 46.¢ 3 22.4; % 1,050.(

Accelerated share repurchége 49.: % 243 $ 1,200.(

Repurchases for tax withholding 0€ $ 19.6¢ $ 12.5
2013

Repurchases under stock repurchase programs 28¢ §$ 19.7¢  $ 570.¢

Repurchases for tax withholding 04 $ 20.20 % 7.2
2012

Repurchases under stock repurchase programs 3B.E $ 18.0¢ % 645.¢

Repurchases for tax withholding 0z $ 23.4C $ 5.C

(1) As part of the 2014 Stock Repurchase Program, weremhinto two separate accelerated share rep@wamsements (collectively, the "ASR") witvo
financial institutions to repurchase $1.2 billichooir common stock. We made an up-front paymerdilo? billion pursuant to the ASR to repurchase
common stock. The aggregate number of shares wétiynpurchased was determined based on a volunghteei average repurchase price, less an @
upon discount. The shares received with respeatietd\SR have been retired. Retired shares retuanttworized but unissued shares of common s

Dividends

On July 22, 2014, we declared a quarterly cashddivd of $0.10 per share of our common stock, or.843llion in the aggregate,
stockholders of record on September 2, 2014 whiak paid on September 23, 2014. On October 23, 2@d4jeclared a cash dividenc
$0.10per share of common stock, or $42.2 million, on @waber 23, 2014 to stockholders of record as otlkbse of business on Decembe
2014. Any future dividends, and the establishmémnécord and payment dates, are subject to applyvalr Board or an authorized commi
thereof. See Note 1&ubsequent Eventsn Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementseim 8 of Part Il of this Report for further dissimr
on our dividend declaration subsequent to Decer®bg2014 .

Restructuring

As of December 31, 2014 , our restructuring ligpivas $17.0 million of which $9.4 milliois related to severance, which are expected
paid in full by the first quarter of 2015, $7.4 ligih related to facility closures, expected to laédthrough March 2018, and $0.2 millicglatec
to contract and other charges. See NoteeXktructuring and Other Charge in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementteim 8 of Part |
of this Report for further discussion on our restoiing plans.

Deferred Revenu:

Deferred product revenue represents unrecognizeenve related to shipments to distributors thatehawt sold through to endsers
undelivered product commitments, and other shipm#rdt have not met all revenue recognition ceteieferred product revenue is recol
net of the related costs of product revenue. Defeservice revenue represents customer payments imadlvance for services, which incl
technical support, hardware and software maintemgmofessional services, and training.

The following table summarizes our deferred produnt service revenues (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013

Deferred product revenue:
Undelivered product commitments and other prodettmals $ 180.2 $ 184.¢
Distributor inventory and other sell-through items 103.% 118.%
Deferred gross product revenue 284.( 303.¢
Deferred cost of product revenue (58.9) (58.6)
Deferred product revenue, net 225.¢ 245.(
Deferred service revenue 850.1 824.:
Total $ 1,075." $ 1,069.
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As of December 31, 2014 , net deferred product meeedecreased $19.4 million to $225.6 million , paned to $245.0 millioras o
December 31, 2013as a result of lower distributor inventory andltiple revenue releases in relation to previousdfedred product revent
As of December 31, 2014 , the increase in defesegdice revenue of $25.8 million attributed to theecution of several muljiear suppo
agreements, and an increase in annual agreementakmn

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014 and 201®e did not have any relationships with unconsaéd entities or financial partnerships, such dsies
often referred to as structured finance or spemiapose entities, which would have been establisbethe purpose of facilitating offalanc
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrolimited purposes. It is not our business pradticenter into offbalance sheet arrangeme
However, in the normal course of business, we enter contracts consisting of guarantees of produnt service performance, guaran
related to third-party customénancing arrangements, customs and duties guasnénd standby letters of credit for certain Idasdities
See "Guarantees" below and Note €C&mmitments and Contingencie Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementiteim 8 of Part Il ¢
this Report for additional information regarding guarantees.

Contractual Obligations
Our principal commitments consist of obligationstsbanding under operating leases, purchase commismeebt, and other contracl

obligations. The following table summarizes oumpipal contractual obligations as of December 3 42and the effect such obligations
expected to have on our liquidity and cash floviuture periods (in millions):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating leased $ 137.1  $ 412 % 52.1 $ 21.6 $ 22.(

Purchase commitments with contract manufactureds an

suppliers® 476.2 476.2 — — —
Long-term debf 1,350.( — 300.( — 1,050.(
Interest payment on long-term débt 881. 62.7 111.C 106.% 601.C
Other contractual obligatiors 19.2 13.1 6.1 — —
Total $ 2863¢ $ 5932 $ 469.. $ 1285 $ 1,673

@ See Note 16Commitments and Contingenciés,Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementseémIB of Part Il of this Report for additional infeatior
regarding our contractual commitments.

@ See Note 10L.ong-Term Debt and Financingn Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementseémI8 of Part Il of this Report for additional infoatior
regarding our debt.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $177.5 millionluded in longterm income taxes payable in the Consolidated BalaBheets fi
unrecognized tax positionat this time, we are unable to make a reasonabighie estimate of the timing of payments relatedhis amour
due to uncertainties in the timing of tax auditamumes. As a result, this amount is not includetthétable above.

Revolving Credit Facility

On June 27, 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreémih certain institutional lenders that provides a five year $500.0 milliomnsecure
revolving credit facility, with an option to increa the amount of the credit facility by up to amitidnal $200.0 million, subject to certa
conditions. Proceeds from borrowing made undetGieglit Agreement may be used by us for working tedpind general corporate purpo
Revolving loans may be borrowed, repaid and relvgetbuntil June 27, 2019, at which time all amoldsowed must be repaid. We will ¢
to each lender a facility fee on a quarterly bdsised on the amount of each lender's commitmentatce loans, of between 0.100%
0.250% depending on our public debt rating. RevmMibans may be prepaid without penalty, subjeatustomary breakage costs for Ic
bearing interest at the Eurocurrency rate. We laeabligated to pay customary fees for a crediilifg of this size and type.

The Credit Agreement includes customary events edaudt that, include among other things, m@ayment of principal, interest or fe
inaccuracy of representations and warranties, tiwlaof covenants, cross default to certain otmglebtedness, bankruptcy and insolve
events involving the Company or its material sulasids, material judgments, change of control amdain ERISA events. The occurrenci
an event of default could result in the acceleratibthe obligations under the Credit Agreement.
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A default interest rate shall apply, at the requdghe required lenders, on all obligations dursngayment event of default under the Ci
Agreement at a rate per annum equal to 2.000% athevapplicable interest rate.

The Credit Agreement requires us to maintain arbgye ratio no greater than 3.0 x and an interegtrage ratio no less than X@uring the
term of the credit facility. In addition, the Credigreement contains customary affirmative and tiegacovenants, including covenants
limit or restrict the ability of the Company and isubsidiaries to, among other things, grant liemstge or consolidate, dispose of al
substantially all of its assets, change their anting or reporting policies, change their businasd incur subsidiary indebtedness, in each
subject to customary exceptions for a credit fgcibif this size and type. As of December 31, 2014e Company was in compliance with
covenants in the Credit Agreement, and no amouetg wutstanding. See Note 1@ng-term Debt and Financingin Notes to Consolidat
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of thispRrt.

Guarantees

We have entered into agreements with customersctimatin indemnification provisions relating to @otial situations where claims could
alleged that our products infringe the intellectpadperty rights of a thirgharty. We also have financial guarantees consisifrguarantees
product and service performance, guarantees retatddrd-party customefinancing arrangements, custom and duty guaranssesstandk
letters of credit for certain lease facilities. @natertain thirdearty customer financing arrangements that corgaarantee provisions, whi
have terms of up to four years, we are liable ffer aggregate unpaid payments to the tpady financing company in the event of custc
default. As of December 31, 2014 , we have not neadepayments under these arrangements. As of Dexe®d, 2014 an®ecember 3:
2013 , we had $26.2 million and $40.1 millipnespectively, in financing guarantees, bank guaes, and standby letters of credit relate
these financial guarantees of which $22.2 milliodimancing guarantees was recorded in other addrakilities and other longerm liabilities
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemh&(34 .

Liquidity and Capital Resource

Liquidity and capital resources may be impactedbyoperating activities as well as acquisitiond aivestments in strategic relationships
we have made or we may make in the future. Additignin 2014, we indicated that we intend to raté#.1 billion to our stockholders in 1
form of stock repurchases and dividends from Falr@2@14 through the end of 2016. To the extent emurchase additional shares of
common stock under our stock repurchase prograpayrcash dividends on our common stock, our lidquidiay be impacted.

In August 2013, we filed an automatic shelf regitm statement with the SEC enabling us to offersile, from time to time, an unspeci
amount of securities in one or more offerings anihiended to give us flexibility to take advantagjefinancing opportunities as needec
deemed desirable in light of market conditions. @024 Notes were issued under the automatic ségi$tration statement which was iss
pursuant to a prospectus filed with the SEC on Gefyr 28, 2014. Any other offerings of securitieslenthe automatic shelf registrat
statement will be made pursuant to a prospectuadtition, the revolving credit facility under o@redit Agreement will also provi
additional flexibility for future liquidity needs.

We have been focused on managing our annual egeédge as a percentage of our common stock outstardialign with peer grot
competitive levels and have made changes in rg@ars to reduce the number of shares underlyingdliy awards we grant. Our intent
for 2014 was to target the number of shares uniberlgquity awards granted on an annual basis &9%2.6r less of our common stc
outstanding on a pure share basis (where eachnpg@8U, RSA or PSA granted is counted as one shBesed upon shares underly
options, RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs granted during 20&4yere at or below this target.

Based on past performance and current expectativasbelieve that our existing cash and cash ecgmis| short-term, and lortgsrr
investments, together with cash generated fromatipers and access to capital markets and the riegobredit facility under the Crel
Agreement will be sufficient to fund our operatipmsanned stock repurchases and dividends, andigatied growth for at least the n
twelve months. We believe our working capital iffisient to meet our liquidity requirements for dgb expenditures, commitments, and o
liquidity requirements associated with our existogerations during the same period. However, oturéuliquidity and capital requireme
may vary materially from those now planned depegdin many factors, including, but not limited to:

» level and mix of our product, sales, and grossipnoérgins

* our business, product, capital expenditures and RE&Ds

* repurchases of our common stc
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e payment of dividend
* incurrence and repayment of debt and related istefgigations
« litigation expenses, settlements, and judgmentsingitar items related to resolution of tax aut
e volume price discounts and customer reb
» accounts receivable levels that we main
» acquisitions and/or funding of other businessesgtasproducts, or technologi
» changes in our compensation polic
» capital improvements for new and existing faciil
» technological advance
* our competitors' responses to our products andicng;
e our relationships with suppliers, partners, andausrs
e possible future investments in raw material angfiad goods inventorie
e expenses related to future restructuring p
e tax expense associated with shbased award

e issuance of shateased awards and the related payment in cash tbhelding taxes in the current year and possiblsindufuture
years;

» level of exercises of stock options and stock pasels under our equity incentive plans;

» general economic conditions and specific conditimneur industry and markets, including the effeatslisruptions in global cret
and financial markets, international conflicts, aathted uncertainties.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Interest Rate Risk

We maintain an investment portfolio of various hiog$, types, and maturities. The value of our itmests is subject to market price volatil
In addition, as of December 31, 20185% of our cash, cash equivalents, and markesstlerities were held outside of the U.S., whicly e
subject to U.S. taxes if repatriated. Our marketalgicurities are generally classified as availédiiesale and, consequently, are recorded o
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value with alimed gains or losses reported as a separate e@npof accumulated other comprehen
income. These investments are also reviewed tdifdeand evaluate indications of potential otheasthemporary impairments as discusse
Note 4,Cash Equivalents and InvestmeitsNotes to Consolidated Financial StatementseamI8 of Part Il of this Report.

At any time, a rise in interest rates could havaaderial adverse impact on the fair value of owegiment portfolio. Conversely, a declins
interest rates could have a material impact onrésteincome from our investment portfolio. We dd oarrently hedge these interest

exposures. We recognized immaterial gains and $odgeng the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2@h8 2012 related to the sales
certain investments.

The following tables present hypothetical changefair value of our available-for-sale fixed incorsecurities held as december 31, 20:
and 2013 that are sensitive to changes in inteagss (in millions):

Valuation of Securities Given an Interest Rate Fair Value Valuation of Securities Given an Interest Rate
Decrease of X BPS as of Increase of X BPS
December 31,
(150 BPS) (100 BPS) (50 BPS) 2014 50 BPS 100 BPS 150 BPS
Available-for-sale fixed income
securities $ 1,487. $ 1481« $ 1476. $ 14706 $ 1,465. $ 1,459.¢ $ 1,454
Valuation of Securities Given an Interest Rate Fair Value Valuation of Securities Given an Interest Rate
Decrease of X BPS as of Increase of X BPS
December 31,
(150 BPS) (100 BPS) (50 BPS) 2013 50 BPS 100 BPS 150 BPS
Available-for-sale fixed income
oS $ 1,741¢ $ 1,734 $ 1,727. $ 1,719¢ $ 1,712¢ $ 1,705% $ 1,698

These instruments are not leveraged and are helguiposes other than trading. The modeling tecknigsed measures the changes ir
value arising from selected potential changes terast rates. Market changes reflect immediate tingtical parallel shifts in the yield curve
plus or minus 50 basis points (“BPS”), 100 BPS, 48d BPS, which are representative of the histbonmaements in the Federal Funds Rate.

Foreign Currency Risk and Foreign Exchange ForwardContracts

Periodically, we use derivatives to hedge agaihgttdations in foreign exchange rates. We do ndereimto derivatives for speculative
trading purposes.

We use foreign currency forward contracts to miggeariability in gains and losses generated from riemeasurement of certain monet
assets and liabilities denominated in rionetional currencies. These derivatives are cdmiefair value with changes recorded in other ine
(expense), net in our Consolidated Statements ef&@ions in the same period as the changes irathedlue from the reneasurement of tl
underlying assets and liabilities. These foreigchaxge contracts have maturities of one year er les

Our sales and costs of product revenues are phym@ghominated in U.S. Dollars. Our cost of serviegenue and operating expenses
denominated in U.S. Dollars as well as other faretmirrencies including the British Pound, the Euradian Rupee, and Japanese '
Approximately 78% of such costs and operating ezpsrare denominated in U.S. Dollars. Periodicallyuse foreign currency forward anc
option contracts to hedge certain forecasted fareigrency transactions to reduce variability istanf service revenue and operating expe
caused by not).S. Dollar denominated operating expense and .cbstdesigning a specific hedging approach, we icensseveral factor
including offsetting exposures, significance of espres, costs associated with entering into aquéati hedge instrument, and poter
effectiveness of the hedge. These derivatives esgdated as cash flow hedges and have maturftiesothan one year. The effective por
of the derivative's gain or loss is initially refea as a component of accumulated other comprelensiome and, upon occurrence of
forecasted transaction, is subsequently recladsifito the line item in the Consolidated Statemerft<Operations to which the hed
transaction relates. We record the ineffectiveiéske hedging instruments, which was immaterialrduthe years ended December 31, 201+
2013, and 2012,
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respectively, in other income (expense), net on@amsolidated Statements of Operations. The changperating expenses including cos
service revenue, research and development, satemarketing, and general and administrative experdige to foreign currency fluctuatic
was a reduction to operating expenses of 2.1% 14 2@&nd an increase of 0.8%, and 1.5% in 2018 2842 , respectively.

We have performed a sensitivity analysis as of Demx 31, 2014 and as of December 31, 20049ng a modeling technique that measure
change in the amount of n&hS. dollar cash, cash equivalents and marketaddargies arising from a hypothetical 10% movemienthe
levels of foreign currency exchange rates relativethe U.S. dollar, with all other variables helehstant. The foreign currency exchange |
we used were based on market rates in effect oerbleer 31, 2014 and December 31, 2018spectively. The sensitivity analysis indici
that a hypothetical 10% movement in foreign curyeagchange rates would change the amount of cash equivalents and markete
securities we would report in U.S. Dollars as ot®maber 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 by lessltRan.

Equity Price Risk

Our portfolio of publicly-traded equity securitiesd our non-qualified deferred compensation (“NQP@lan, which may also hold publicly-
traded equity securities, are inherently exposeshtaty price risk as the stock market fluctuates.

We do not purchase our publicly-traded equity séesr classified as available-feale securities on our Consolidated Balance Shéw
speculative purposes. As of December 31, 2014 awdidber 31, 2013, our portfolio of publidhgded equity securities had an estimatec
value of $2.0 million and $114.6 million , respeety. A hypothetical 30% adverse change in theksgices of our publiclytraded equit
securities would result in a loss in the fair valole$0.7 million and $34.5 million as of Decembdr;, 2014 and December 31, 2013
respectively.

Investments under the NQDC plan are consideredhiyagkcurities and are also reported at fair valueur Consolidated Balance Sheets. £
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, theito@étments under our NQDC plan were $16.3 milaod $15.4 million respectively. ,
hypothetical 30% adverse change on the total imvests under the NQDC plan would result in a losthanfair value of $4.9 million and $-
million as of December 31, 2014 and December 31320espectively.

We have also invested in privatdigld companies. Depending on the nature of thes@siments, some can be carried at cost and otaeri¢
carried at fair value. In 2014 , 2013 , and 2012reeorded impairment charges of $1.1 million , $&i8ion , and $20.0 million respectively
on our investments in privately-held companies Wafudged to be other than temporary as discussiBdte 5,Fair Value Measurementsin
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in BewhPart Il of this Report. The aggregate costwfinvestments in private-held companie
was $89.9 million and $57.2 million as of DecemB®&r 2014 and December 31, 2013 , respectively.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Junipetworks, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Juniper Networks, Inc. as of Decel@bef014 and 2013and the relate
consolidated statements of operations, comprehemsdome, changes in stockholders' equity, and ftagls for each of the three years in
period ended December 31, 201@ur audits also included the financial statensefiedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a)2. THesmncia
statements and schedule are the responsibilithefQompany's management. Our responsibility isxfiress an opinion on these finan
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove, present fairly, in all material respetitg, consolidated financial position of Jun
Networks, Inc., aDecember 31, 2014 and 2018nd the consolidated results of its operatiorsiencash flows for each of the three yea
the period ended December 31, 2Qlih conformity with U.S generally accepted accanmtprinciples. Also, in our opinion, the rela
financial statement schedule, when considered latioa to the basic financial statements taken aghale, presents fairly in all matel
respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Juniper Netwol
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting@sDecember 31, 2014 , based on criteria estaddish Internal Controlntegrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafribe Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) andreport dated~ebruary 20, 201
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
February 20, 2015

58




Table of Contents
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Junipetworks, Inc.

We have audited Juniper Networks, Inc.'s intermaitiol over financial reporting as of December 3Q14, based on criteria establishe(
Internal Controlintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSping Organizations of the Treadway Commissidil&Framewort
(the COSO criteria). Juniper Networks, Inc.'s mamagnt is responsible for maintaining effective ing& control over financial reporting, &
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intecaatrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management's Report on Inte
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilit to express an opinion on the company's intermatrol over financial reporting based
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenatteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofriratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahadit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsisurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could hawvaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Juniper Networks, Inc. maintainedall material respects, effective internal cohtreer financial reporting as ddecember 3:
2014 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolida
balance sheets of Juniper Networks, Inc. as of ibbee 31, 2014 , and 2018nd the related consolidated statements of opes
comprehensive income, changes in stockholderstyearid cash flows for each of the three yearhénpgeriod ended December 31, 2014
Juniper Networks, Inc. and our report dated Felyr@@r 2015 , expressed an unqualified opinion there

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
February 20, 2015
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The management of Juniper Networks, Inc. (the “Camyf) is responsible for establishing and maintaininggadée internal control ov
financial reporting for the Company. The Compaiwytsrnal control over financial reporting is a pess designed under the supervision o
Company's principal executive and principal finahoifficers to provide reasonable assurance reggurthie reliability of financial reporting a
the preparation of the Company's financial stateésmfem external purposes in accordance with U.8egaly accepted accounting principles.

The Company's internal control over financial rejpgy includes those policies and procedures thppeftain to the maintenance of recc
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faidffect the transactions and dispositions of thetassf the Company; (ii) provide reason:
assurance that transactions are recorded as necésgzermit preparation of financial statementsagtordance with U.S. generally acce
accounting principles, and that receipts and expems of the Company are being made only in acwed with authorizations of managen
and directors of the Company; and (iii) provides@@able assurance regarding prevention or timekcten of unauthorized acquisition, t
or disposition of the Company's assets that coale:la material effect on the Consolidated Finar@ialements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgtagaternal control over financial reporting as @écember 31, 2014 based on tt
framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsorganizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@")riternal Control -Integratec
Frameworkas published in 2013Based on that assessment, management conclude@gshaft December 31, 2014he Company's interr
control over financial reporting was effective.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal cordver financial reporting as of December 31, 2644 been audited by Ernst & Young L
the independent registered public accounting filat taudits the Company's Consolidated FinancialeSants, as stated in their re|
preceding this report, which expresses an ungedlifipinion on the effectiveness of the Company&rial control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2014 .
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Juniper Networks, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net revenues:
Product $ 3,408 $ 3,519.¢ $ 3,262.:
Service 1,218. 1,149.: 1,103.
Total net revenues 4,627.: 4,669.: 4,365.
Cost of revenues:
Product 1,286.¢ 1,276.¢ 1,204.(
Service 482.1 451.1 452.¢
Total cost of revenues 1,768.¢ 1,727. 1,656.¢
Gross margin 2,858.. 2,941 .. 2,708.¢
Operating expenses:
Research and development 1,006.: 1,043.: 1,101.¢
Sales and marketing 1,023.¢ 1,075.¢ 1,045t
General and administrative 231.] 217.3 206.¢
Restructuring and other charges 167.( 39.1 46.¢
Impairment of goodwiill 850.( — —
Total operating expenses 3,277.¢ 2,375.t 2,400.°
Operating (loss) income (419.9) 565.¢ 308.1
Other income (expense), net 333.¢ (40.9) (16.6)
(Loss) income before income taxes (86.2) 525.k 291t
Income tax provision 248.( 85.7 105.(
Net (loss) income $ (334.0) % 439.6 % 186.5
Net (loss) income per share:
Basic $ (0.79) $ 08¢ $ 0.3¢
Diluted $ (0.79) % 08¢ $ 0.3t
Shares used in computing net income per share:
Basic 457 ¢ 501.¢ 520.¢
Diluted 457 ¢ 510.: 526.2
Cash dividends declared per common stock $ 02C § — § —

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents
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Juniper Networks, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Net (loss) income $ (3349 $ 439.6 $ 186.t
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities,of
tax provision of ($29.5), ($37.9) and ($0.6) &x14, 2013 and
2012, respectively 48.7 65.1 3.2
Reclassification adjustment for realized net gansvailable-for-
sale securities included in net (loss) inconat,af tax provision of
$61.8, $0.4 and $0.2 for 2014, 2013 and 20kheatively (106.5) (1.0 (1.2
Net change in unrealized gains on available-fog-sal
securities, net of taxes (57.9) 64.1 2.C
Cash flow hedges:
Unrealized (losses) gains on cash flow hedgespfrtaix
(provision) benefit of ($0.7), $1.7 and $0.2 2614, 2013 and
2012, respectively (4.2) 0.7 7.4
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gainss&s on cash flow
hedges included in net (loss) income, net oftaxision (benefit)
of $1.1, ($0.8) and ($1.0) for 2014, 2013 aniiZ0espectively (2.9 (1.5) 6.5
Net change in unrealized (losses) gains on cashlferges, net
of taxes (6.4) (0.9 13.¢
Change in foreign currency translation adjustments (14.2) (3.9 6.4
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (78.9 59.¢ 22.5
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (412.5) % 499.7 § 208.¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents
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Juniper Networks, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions, except par values)

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,639.t $ 2,284.(
Short-term investments 3322 561.¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $4.7 and $5.4 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively 598.¢ 578.:
Deferred tax assets, net 147.( 79.¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 254.% 199.¢
Total current assets 2,971.¢ 3,703.¢
Property and equipment, net 904.: 882.:
Long-term investments 1,133.: 1,251.¢
Restricted cash and investments 46.C 89.t
Purchased intangible assets, net 62.4 106.¢
Goodwill 2,981. 4,057.’
Other long-term assets 303.¢ 233.¢
Total assets $ 8,403.. $ 10,326.!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 234.¢ % 200.¢
Accrued compensation 225.( 273.¢
Deferred revenue 780.¢ 705.¢
Other accrued liabilities 287.: 261.C
Total current liabilities 1,527.° 1,441 ..
Long-term debt 1,349.( 999.:
Long-term deferred revenue 294.¢ 363.t
Long-term income tax payable 177.5 114.¢
Other long-term liabilities 134.¢ 105.2
Total liabilities 3,484.( 3,023.¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Stockholders' equity:
Convertible preferred stock, $0.00001 par value) Bbares authorized;
none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 1,000.0 shatd®ared; 416.2 shares and
495.2 shares issued and outstanding as of Dexre®ibh 2014 and 2013, respectively — —
Additional paid-in capital 8,794.( 9,868.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (13.9 64.€
Accumulated deficit (3,861.) (2,631.)
Total stockholders' equity 4,919.: 7,302.:
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 8,403.0 § 10,326.(

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents
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Juniper Networks, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income $ (3349 % 439.¢ % 186.5

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to @sthcprovided by operating activities:

Share-based compensation expense 240.( 244.¢ 242.7
Depreciation, amortization, and accretion 186.1 189.¢ 187.¢
Restructuring and other charges 208.t 47.5 99.7
Deferred income taxes (16.9) 72.2 (18.9)
Impairment of goodwill 850.( — —
Gain on sale of Junos Pulse (19.¢) — —
Gain on investments, net (167.9) (11.9) (26.7)
Gain on legal settlement, net (121.) — —
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (9.9) (2.9 (7.2)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1.7 1.4 0.€

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from acquisitions:

Accounts receivable, net (16.¢) (139.9 139.]
Prepaid expenses and other assets (24.5) (126.0) (11.9
Accounts payable 38.2 (8.9 (133.6)
Accrued compensation (46.0) (5.4) 54.¢
Income taxes payable 51.C (38.5) (7.5)
Other accrued liabilities (100.9) 36.t (15.9)
Deferred revenue 45.1 145.¢ (53.¢)
Net cash provided by operating activities 763. 845.¢ 637.1
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (192.9) (230.0) (347.7)
Proceeds from sale of Junos Pulse 105.7 — —
Purchases of available-for-sale investments (2,440.) (1,776.() (1,496.Y)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investsnen 2,627." 1,167.: 894.:
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale stmeents 337.¢ 334.¢ 559.7
Purchases of trading investments 4.7 3.7 (4.7)
Proceeds from sales of privately-held investments 4.¢ 9.4 36.t
Purchases of privately-held investments (21.%) (41.9) (12.29)
Payments for business acquisitions, net of caslcasid equivalents acquired (27.7) (20.0 (139.9)
Purchase of licensed software — (10.0 (65.9)
Changes in restricted cash 44.¢ 1.2) (20.¢)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 434.( (561.0 (595.¢)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 159.¢ 141.5 99.1
Purchases and retirement of common stock (2,262.Y) (577.9) (650.€)
Issuance of long-term debt, net 346.t — —
Payment for capital lease obligation (0.9) (1.49) (1.9)
Customer financing arrangements 9.C 33.¢ (2.€)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 9.4 1.¢ 7.2
Payment of cash dividends (86.0) — —
Net cash used in financing activities (1,824.) (401.%) (548.9)
Effect of foreign currency exchange rates on cashcash equivalents (17.¢) (7.0 3.€
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (644.9) (123.9) (502.¢)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,284.( 2,407.¢ 2,910.



Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized
Cash paid for income taxes, net

Non-cash investing activities:

Receipt of a promissory note in connection withghke of Junos Pulse

Issuance of common stock and equity awards assimimginess acquisitions

Property and equipment acquired under capital lease

Licensed software acquired

$ 1,639.¢ $ 2,284 $ 2,407.¢
$ 44¢ % 57¢4  $ 50.1
$ 206.C $ 1051 $ 118.7
$ 125 $ — 3 —
$ — 3 —  $ 16.
$ — 3 — 3 3.7
$ — 3 —  $ 19.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents

64




Table of Contents

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSquity
(In millions)

Juniper Networks

Accumulated

Balance at December 31, 2011
Consolidated net income
Other comprehensive income, net

Issuance of common stock

Shares assumed in connection with business
acquisitions

Repurchase and retirement of common stock
Share-based compensation expense
Tax effects from employee stock option plans

Balance at December 31, 2012

Consolidated net income

Other comprehensive income, net

Issuance of common stock

Dissolution of non-controlling interest
Repurchase and retirement of common stock
Share-based compensation expense

Tax effects from employee stock option plans

Balance at December 31, 2013
Net loss

Other comprehensive loss, net
Issuance of common stock

Repurchase and retirement of common stock and
issuances

Share-based compensation expense
Tax effects from employee stock option plans
Payment of cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2014

Additional Other Total
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Noncontrolling Stockholders'

Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Interest Equity
526 $ — $ 10,079. $ (176 $ (29729 $ 0E $ 7,089.°
— — — — 186.t — 186.t
— — — 22.5 — — 22
12.2 — 99.2 — — — 99.2
5.€ = 16.5 = = = 16.5
(36.0 — (525.7) — (125.%) — (650.6)
= = 242.5 = = = 242,
— — (6.9 — — — (6.9
508.4 — 9,905." 4.7 (2,911.) 0.t 6,999.!
— — — — 439.¢ — 439.¢
— — — 59.¢ — — 59.¢
16.C — 142.% — — — 142.2
— — — — — 0.5 0.5
(29.2) — (418.7) — (159.9 — (577.9
= = 244.¢ = = = 244 ¢
— — (59 — — — (59
495.7 = 9,868.¢ 64.¢ (2,631.) = 7,302.:
— — — — (334.9 — (334.9)
— — — (78.9) — — (78.9)
17.7 — 159.1 — — — 159.1
(96.7) — (1,367.0) — (895.5) — (2,262.9)
— — 240.( — — — 240.(
= = (21.0 = = = (21.0
— — (86.0 — — — (86.0
4162 $ — $ 8,794 % (13.¢) $ (3,861 $ — 5 4,919.:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Finantaa¢®ents
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Juniper Networks, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Presation
Description of Busines:

Juniper Networks, Inc. (the “Company” or “Junipedgsigns, develops, and sells products and serfacesigh-performance networks,
enable customers to build scalable, reliable, seand coseffective networks for their businesses, while aging agility, efficiency and val
through automation. The Company serves the pggtiermance networking requirements for global menproviders, cloud environmer
enterprises, governments, and research and puldtorsorganizations that view the network as a@itio their success. In addition to
Company's products, the Company offers technicapeud and professional services, as well as edutadind training programs to
customers. Together, the higlerformance product and service offerings helpGbenpany's customers convert legacy networks thatige
commoditized services into more valuable assetspittvide differentiation, value, and increasedfgenance, reliability, and security to end-
users.

Basis of Presentatiol

The Consolidated Financial Statements, which ireltlie Company and its wholbywned subsidiaries, are prepared in accordance
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GBAP”). All intercompany balances and transactions haven lgninated. Certa
amounts in the prior years' Consolidated Finarigiatements have been reclassified to conform touhent year presentation.

In 2014, the Company realigned its organization mtOneJduniper structure which includes consolidating eafcthe Company's research .
development ("R&D") and go-torarket functions to reduce complexity, increaseitglaf responsibilities, and improve efficiencysA resu
of these changes, the Company's consolidated mssise€onsidered to be oreportable segment. In fiscal 2013, the Companyaipd unde
two reportable segments: Platform Systems Division P'B%nd Software Solutions Division ("SSD"). Thisamge did not impact previou
reported consolidated results of operations. See W8 Segmentsfor further discussion of the Company's segmeotganization.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements analtedl disclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP ragsithe Company to make judgme
assumptions, and estimates that affect the amaepisrted in the Consolidated Financial Statements the accompanying notes. ~
Company bases its estimates and assumptions oentdiacts, historical experience, and various ofhetors that it believes are reason
under the circumstances, to determine the carryahges of assets and liabilities that are not tgagiparent from other sources. To the e
there are material differences between the Compastimates and the actual results, the Compamylsefconsolidated results of opera
may be affected.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on kangand deposits with banks, highly liquid investtaén money market funds, commer
paper, government securities, certificates of diépand corporate debt securities, which are rgadinvertible into cash. All highly liqu
investments purchased with original maturitieshoé& months or less are classified as cash andecasbalents.

Investments in Availak-for-Sale and Trading Securities

The Company's investments in publicly-traded defot equity securities are classified as availabtestde. Available-forsale investments ¢
initially recorded at cost and periodically adjust® fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheetwealized gains and losses on tl

investments are reported as a separate componantwomulated other comprehensive income. Realiagts @nd losses are determined b
on the specific identification method and are régubin the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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The Company periodically evaluates its investmémidetermine if impairment charges are requirece Tompany considers various factor
determining whether to recognize an impairment g@daincluding the length of time the investment haen in a loss position, the exter
which the fair value has been less than the Conipagt basis, the investment's financial conditamd neaterm prospects of the investee
the Company determines that the decline in an tmwst's fair value is other than temporary, théedénce is recognized as an impairment
in its Consolidated Statements of Operations. Tom@any's norgualified compensation plan is invested in mutwalds which are classifi
as trading securities and reported at fair valuéhen Consolidated Balance Sheets. The realizeduanshlized holding gains and losses
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Opersitio

Privately-Held Investments

The Company has privately-held investments, whioh iacluded in other lonterm assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsse
investments include debt and redeemable prefetoadk securities that are carried at fair value, and+redeemable preferred stock secur
that are carried at cost. The investments cartiedst are adjusted for any impairment, as the Gompmoes not have a controlling interest
does not have the ability to exercise significariluence over these companies. These investmeatsiberently high risk as the market
technologies or products manufactured by these aamp are usually in their early stages at the tifnthe investment by the Company
such markets may never be significant. The Compaegsures the fair value of privatdigld investments using an analysis of the fina
conditions and near term prospects of the investrelsiding recent financing activities and theapital structure. Realized gains and losst
any, are reported in the Consolidated Statemern®pefations.

Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would beeireed upon sale of an asset or paid to transfexbdity in an orderly transaction betwe
market participants at the measurement date. Watmnrdining fair value, the Company considers thegpal or most advantageous marke
which it transacts, and considers assumptionsritaaket participants would use when pricing the tassdiability. The Company applies t
following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizehé inputs used to measure fair value into threeldeand bases the categorization withir
hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that isitable and significant to the fair value measureme

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for itdEitassets or liabilities.

Level 2 —Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieqdtive markets or inputs that are observableHerasset or liability, either directly
indirectly through market corroboration, for sulmsially the full term of the financial instrumerithese inputs are valued using market b
approaches.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable inputs baseth@Cbmpany’s assumptions. These inputs, if anywaeed using internal financial models.
Derivatives

The Company uses derivatives to partially offsetiiarket exposure to fluctuations in certain fanaigrrencies. The Company does not ¢
into derivatives for speculative or trading purpose

The Company uses foreign currency forward or optiontracts to hedge certain forecasted foreigneogy transactions relating to opera
expenses. These derivatives are designated adloashedges. Execution of these cash flow hedgévaléves typically occurs every mot
with maturities of one yeanr less. These derivatives are carried at fairevalod the effective portion of the derivative'sngaii loss is initiall
reported as a component of accumulated other cdrapséve income, and upon occurrence of the foredagansaction, is subseque
reclassified into the costs of services or opegagxpense line item to which the hedged transaatidates. The Company records

ineffectiveness of the hedging instruments in otheome (expense), net, on its Consolidated Statesraf Operations. Cash flows from s
hedges are classified as operating activitiesafklbunts within other comprehensive income are @ggddo be reclassified into earnings wi
the next twelve months.

The Company also uses foreign currency forwardrectg to mitigate variability in gains and lossenegrated from the remeasuremer
certain monetary assets and liabilities denominatefreign currencies. These derivatives are edrat fair value with changes recorde
other income (expense), net in the Consolidatett®nts of Operations. Changes in the fair
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value of these derivatives are largely offset byweasurement of the underlying assets and liakilit@ash flows from such derivatives
classified as operating activities. These foreigchange forward contracts have maturities of orse ge less.

Inventory

Inventory consists primarily of component partdb#used in the manufacturing process and finisleedgintransit, and is stated at the lo
of cost or market. Cost is computed using standastl, which approximates actual cost, on a firsfiiet-out basis. A charge is recorded to
of product when inventory is determined to be iness of anticipated demand or considered obsdltiwe point of loss recognition, a ne
lower-cost basis for that inventory is established, arsquent changes in facts and circumstances deswit in the restoration or increas
the newly established cost basis.

Property and Equipmen

Property and equipment are recorded at cost lessradated depreciation. Depreciation is calculateithg the straighline method, over tf
estimated useful lives of the following assets:

Estimated Useful Life (years)

Computers, equipment, and software 3to7

Furniture and fixtures 5

Building and building improvements 710 40

Land improvements 5t040

Leasehold improvements Lease term, not to exceed 10 years

Construction in progress is related to the consitncor development of property and equipment tieate not yet been placed in service
their intended use. Depreciation for equipment cemces once it is placed in service and depreciatiwnbuildings and leasehc
improvements commences once they are ready farithended use.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill represents the future economic benefitsirag from other assets acquired in a business gw@tibn or an acquisition that are
individually identified and separately recorded.eTéxcess of the purchase price over the estimaied/dlue of net assets of busine:
acquired in a business combination is recognizedoaslwill. Goodwill is tested for impairment annlyatluring the fourth quarter or mc
frequently if certain circumstances change thatld/onore likely than not indicate that the fair valaf a reporting unit is below its carry
value. An impairment loss is recognized to the mixtdat the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds #sset's implied fair value. Otl
intangible assets acquired in a business combimatim determined to have an indefinite useful dife not amortized but are assesse:
potential impairment annually or when events otwinstances indicate that their carrying amounttbg impaired.

Longived assets, such as property, plant, and equipraed purchased intangible assets subject to @aton, are reviewed for impairme
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the carrying amount of an asset may notbeverable. Recoverability of assets t
held and used is measured by a comparison of thgirgg amount of an asset, or asset group, to estichundiscounted future cash flc
expected to be generated by the asset, or assgi.gkao impairment charge is recognized by the arhbynwhich the carrying amount of 1
asset, or asset group, exceeds its fair value.

The Company amortizes intangible assets with eslienaseful lives on a straight-line basis overrtlseful lives.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenue is recognized when all of the followingeria have been met:

« Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exThe Company generally relies upon sales contractagoeements, and custor
purchase orders to determine the existence ofrangegment.

» Delivery has occurred The Company uses shipping terms and related douismar written evidence of customer acceptancesr
applicable, to verify delivery or performance.
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» Sales price is fixed or determinabl&@he Company assesses whether the sales priceed dr determinable based on the payi
terms and whether the sales price is subject todebr adjustment.

» Collectability is reasonably assured:he Company assesses collectability based onteadhiness of customers as determined &
credit checks, their payment histories, or chanmgegcumstances that indicate that collectabiltyot reasonably assured.

When sales arrangements contain multiple eleméetsCompany allocates revenue to each element lmasedselling price hierarchy. T
selling price for a deliverable is based on eith@rdor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) if akadule, third-party evidence (“TPEf) VSOE
is not available, or estimated selling price (“EpP"neither VSOE nor TPE is available. The Compahgnt recognizes revenue on €
deliverable in accordance with its policies forguot and service revenue recognition. VSOE ofrsglfirice is based on the price charged v
the element is sold separately. In determining VS@IE Company requires that a substantial majaftthe selling prices fall within
reasonable range based on historical discountemd$ for specific products and services. TPE dingeprice is established by evaluat
largely interchangeable competitor products orisesrin standilone sales to similar situated customers. Howeasethe Company's produ
contain a significant element of proprietary tedbgy and its solutions offer substantially diffetrdeatures and functionality, the compar:
pricing of thirdparty products with similar functionality typicallgannot be obtained and therefore TPE is not uE&R is establish
considering multiple factors including, but not iied to pricing practices in different geographésl through different sales channels, ¢
margin objectives, internal costs, competitor mgcstrategies, and industry technology lifecycles.

In multiple element arrangements where softwarevelelbles are included, revenue is allocated th saparate unit of accounting for eac
the nonsoftware deliverables and to the software deliviesalas a group using the relative selling pricegaxdh of the deliverables in-
arrangement based on the aforementioned sellinge grierarchy. If the arrangement contains more tbae software deliverable, 1
arrangement consideration allocated to the softwlatverables as a group is then allocated to esaftware deliverable using the resic
method when VSOE of fair value of the undelivertsinis exists. Under the residual method, the amotinévenue allocated to delive:
elements equals the total arrangement considerd®s the aggregate fair value of any undeliverednents. If VSOE of one or mc
undelivered items does not exist, revenue frometitee arrangement is deferred and recognizedeagdlier of: (i) delivery of those eleme
or (ii) when fair value can be established unlesintenance services is the only undelivered elenienthich case, the entire arrangemen
is recognized ratably over the maintenance sepécd.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognmifr delivered elements to the amount that isawttingent on the future delivery
products or services or subject to customer-smefurn or refund privileges.

The Company records reductions to revenue for astidhproduct returns and pricing adjustments, sischebates and price protection, in
same period that the related revenue is recordeelamount of these reductions is based on hist@atas returns and price protection cre
specific criteria outlined in rebate agreementsl, @her factors known at the time.

A portion of the Company's sales is made througdtriditors under agreements allowing for pricingdits or rights of return. As relial
estimates of these credits or returns cannot beenpadduct revenue on sales made through thes#dtsts is recognized upon séfirough a
reported by the distributors to the Company. Defmevenue on shipments to distributors refleasefifects of distributor pricing credits gi
and the amount of gross margin expected to bezeshlupon selthrough. Deferred revenue is recorded net of thegee@ product costs
revenue.

Service revenues include revenue from maintenamaiming, and professional services. Maintenanceffiered under renewable contra
Revenue from maintenance service contracts is @efeand recognized ratably over the contractuapsuperiod, which is generally one
three years Revenue from training and professional serviseeecognized as services are completed or rataldy the contractual peric
which is generally one year or less.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based onGbmpany's assessment of the collectability ofarust accounts. The Company regul
reviews its receivables that remain outstanding {hesr applicable payment terms and establishesllawance by considering factors sucl

historical experience, credit quality, and agehe&f &ccounts receivable balances, and current e¢ormmmnditions that may affect a custom
ability to pay.
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Warranty Reserves

The Company generally offers a one -year warrantynost of its hardware products, and a 88y-warranty on the media that contains
software embedded in the products. Warranty castsexognized as part of the Company's cost osdadsed on associated material ¢
logistics costs, labor costs, and overhead atitine tevenue is recognized. Material costs are estichprimarily based upon the historical ¢
to repair or replace product returns within the namaty period. Labor, logistics and overhead costseatimated primarily based upon histol
trends in the cost to support customer cases wiltiginwarranty period.

Contract Manufacturer Liabilities

The Company establishes a liability for non-cangelanonreturnable purchase commitments with its contraahufacturers for carryir
charges, quantities in excess of its demand fotgcas obsolete material charges for componentshased by the contract manufacture
meet the Compang’ demand forecast or customer orders. The demamedafsts are based upon historical trends and amdtysn the
Company's sales and marketing organizations, ajdst overall market conditions.

Research and Developme
Costs to research, design, and develop the Congpproducts are expensed as incurred.
Software Development Cos

Capitalization of software development costs foitveare to be sold, leased, or otherwise marketeginsewhen a product's technolog
feasibility has been established and ends wherodupt is available for general release to custont@eserally, the Company's products
released soon after technological feasibility hasnbestablished. As a result, costs incurred betwaegieving technological feasibility &
product general availability have not been sigaific

The Company capitalizes costs associated withriaterse software systems that have reached the appficdevelopment stage and
primarily attributable to the Company's enterprisgource planning ("ERP") implementation. Suchtediped costs include external direct ¢
utilized in developing or obtaining the applicasoand payroll and payrotklated costs for employees, who are directly aasssgt with th
development of the applications.

Advertising

Advertising costs are charged to sales and marketkpense as incurred. Advertising expense wa2$hélion , $20.1 million , ands20.(
million , for 2014 , 2013, and 2012 , respectively

Foreign Currency

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations wittnAJ.S. Dollar functional currency are translated t&Dollars using exchange rates in el
at the end of the period. Revenue and expensesrarslated to U.S. Dollars using average exchamggesrfor the period. The result
translation adjustments are included in the Comjsa@pnsolidated Balance Sheets in the stockholdsgsity section as a componen
accumulated other comprehensive income. For thep@aags international subsidiaries in which the functiooarency is the U.S. dollar, t
Company records foreign exchange gains and lossesstets and liabilities denominated in mé-dollar currencies. These remeasure
adjustments are recorded in other income (expense)n the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Loss Contingencie

The Company is subject to the possibility of vasidass contingencies arising in the ordinary cowfsbusiness. Management considers
likelihood of loss related to an asset, or the irence of a liability, as well as its ability toasonably estimate the amount of los:
determining loss contingencies. An estimated lasgingency is accrued when it is probable that sseahas been impaired or a liability
been incurred and the amount of loss can be rebgoestimated. The Company regularly evaluatesetitrinformation available to determ
whether such accruals should be adjusted and whethieaccruals are required.
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Share-Based Compensation

The Company measures and recognizes compensatbriocall shardsased awards made to employees and directorsdinglemploye
stock options, stock awards, stock units, and eygalcstock purchases related to the Employee Staoth&se Plan ("ESPP"). Shdrase
compensation expense is based on the fair valtreeainderlying awards and amortized on a straigletidasis, net of estimated forfeitures.

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes-Merton (“B$Mption-pricing model to estimate the fair value of itscét@ptions and Employ:
Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") shares. The BSM mmdglires various highly subjective assumptions tlegresent management's |
estimates of volatility, riskree interest rate, expected life, and dividenddyi#he Company estimates expected volatility basethe implie
volatility of markettraded options, on the Company's common stockstatjufor other relevant factors including historiealatility of the
Company’s common stock over the most recent pec@mdmensurate with the estimated expected life efGompanys stock options ai
ESPP. The expected life of a stock option is bageHdistorical experience of employee exercisespstivesting termination behavior as v
as the potential effect from options that havebe®n exercised. The expected life of ESPP appraasithe offering period.

The Company determines the fair value of its ret&d stock units ("RSUs"), restricted stock awdfeRSAs"), and performance share awi
("PSAs") based on the closing market price of thenanys common stock on the date of grant, adjusted &ypthsent value of the expec
dividend.

For marketbased RSUs, the Company estimates the fair valdielerived service period using the Monte Carlo &iton option pricing mod:
("Monte Carlo model"). The determination of the rgrdate fair value and derived service periodsgidlire Monte Carlo model is affected
our stock price as well as various highly subjectagsumptions that represent management's besatesiof volatility, riskree interest rat
and dividend yield. The Company estimates expeet#dtility based on the implied volatility of markeaded options, on the Compat
common stock, adjusted for other relevant factoctuding historical volatility of the Compars/common stock over the contractual life of
Company's market-based RSUs.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaethe expected tax consequences of temporargrdifites between the tax bases of asse
liabilities and their reported amounts. Valuatidiowances are recorded to reduce deferred taxsassdéhe amount that will more likely tr
not be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income dax@ng a twastep approach to recognize and measure uncertajpositions. The fir
step is to evaluate the tax position for recognitly determining if the weight of available eviderindicates that it is more likely than not
the position will be sustained on audit, includiegolution of related appeals or litigation proesssf any. The second step is to measur
tax benefit as the largest amount that is more &@#b likely of being realized upon settlement. The Compalassifies the liability fc
unrecognized tax benefits as current to the exteaitt the Company anticipates payment (or receiptjash within one year Interest an
penalties related to uncertain tax positions ategrized in the provision for income taxes.

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments that subject the Companyottcentrations of credit risk consist primarily @fst and cash equivalents, investments
accounts receivable. The Company invests onlygh-gjuality credit instruments and maintains itshcassh equivalents and available-$ate
investments in fixed income securities with sevaigh-quality institutions. Deposits held with banks,lirting those held in foreign brancl
of global banks, may exceed the amount of insuranoceided on such deposits. These deposits magdeemed upon demand and, there
bear minimal credit risk.

The Companys derivatives expose it to credit risk to the ektidrat counterparties may be unable to meet thestesf the agreement.
mitigate concentration of risk related to its datives, the Company establishes counterparty lititaajor creditworthy financial institution:
In addition, the potential risk of loss with anyeocounterparty resulting from this type of credikris monitored and the derivatives transa
with these entities are relatively short in dumatid’herefore, the Company does not expect matéssdes as a result of defaults
counterparties.

Generally, credit risk with respect to accountsereable is diversified due to the number of entittemprising the Company's customer
and their dispersion across different geographiations throughout the world. The Company perfoomgoing
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credit evaluations of its customers and generadlgschot require collateral on accounts receivdbleing the years ended December 31, :
and December 31, 2013 , single customer accounted for 10% or more of netmaes. During the year ended December 31, 20112204
Communications, Inc. ("Verizon") accounted for 2@.8f net revenues.

The Company relies on sole suppliers for certaiitso€omponents such as applicatgpecific integrated circuits ("ASICs") and custohes
metal. Additionally, the Company relies primarily @ limited number of significant independent caotrmanufacturers and outside de
manufacturers for the production of its productse Tnability of any supplier or manufacturer tofiusupply requirements of the Compse
could negatively impact future operating results.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In January 2015, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upd@feSU”) No. 201501 (Subtopi
225-20) -Income Statement - Extraordinary and Unusual Itemvkich eliminates the concept of extraordinarynise ASU 201591 is effectiv:
for fiscal years, and interim periods within thdseal years, beginning after December 15, 2015lyEadoption is permitted. The adoptior
this standard is not expected to have an impatt®Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 20147Dbpic 805) -Business Combinationavhich provides an acquired entity with an op
to apply pushdown accounting in its separate firdrstatements upon occurrence of an event in whithacquirer obtains control of -
acquired entity. ASU 20147 is effective on November 18, 2014. The adoptibrthis standard is not expected to have an impacthe
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-Ti@p{c 815) -Derivatives and Hedgingwhich provides clarification on how curr
guidance should be interpreted in evaluating thenemic characteristics and risks of a host contira@t hybrid financial instrument that
issued in the form of a share. Specifically, theeadments clarify that an entity should considerel#vant terms and features in evaluating
host contract and that no single term or featurelvmecessarily determine the economic charadtesisind risks of the host contract A
2014416 is effective for fiscal years, and interim pesawithin those fiscal years, beginning after Delserni5, 2015. The amendment shoul
applied on a modified retrospective basis to exgstiybrid financial instruments issued in the fayfra share as of the beginning of the yea
which the amendments are effective. Early adopg8guermitted. The adoption of this standard isexqiected to have a material impact or
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting StandaBdsird (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Updd#eSU”) No. 2014-15 (Subtopi
205-40) -Presentation of Financial Statements—Going ConcBisclosure of Uncertainties about an EntgyAbility to Continue as a Goi
Concern("ASU 2014415") which provides guidance about managementjsoresbility to evaluate whether or not there isstahtial dout
about the Company's ability to continue as a geimgcern and to provide related footnote disclostiBJ 201445 is effective for fiscal yeal
and interim periods within those fiscal years, bagig after December 15, 2016. Early applicatiopaamitted. The adoption of this standai
not expected to have an impact on the Company'sdlidated Financial Statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12 (@ @ai8) -Compensation - Stock Compensaf{ohSU 201412") which provides guidan
that a performance target that affects vesting sharebased payment and that could be achieved aftereteaisite service period is
performance condition. As a result, the targetasreflected in the estimation of the awardrant date fair value. Compensation cost for
an award would be recognized over the requiredaeperiod, if it is probable that the performacoadition will be achieved. ASU 2011 i<
effective for all entities for annual periods bagirg after December 15, 2015 and interim periodbiwithose annual periods. ASU 2012-
should be applied on a prospective basis to avthadsare granted or modified on or after the effectiate. The adoption of this standard i<
expected to have an impact on the Company's Calasetl Financial Statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 (Topi®) —Revenue from Contracts with Custom@isSU 2014909") which provide
guidance for revenue recognition. This ASU affedtcontracts that the Company enters into witht@uers to transfer goods and service
for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. This ASIl) supersede the revenue recognition requiremienipic 605, and most industry spec
guidance. This ASU also supersedes some cost gigdacluded in Subtopic 605-35, Revenue Recognifionstruction-Type and Production-
Type Contracts. The standard's core principle as thvenue is recognized when promised goods wicssrare transferred to customers i
amount that reflects the consideration to which @menpany expects to be entitled in exchange fosehgoods or services. In doing so,
Company will need to use additional judgment anihedes than under the existing guidance. These imayde identifying performan
obligations in the contract,
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estimating the amount of variable considerationindude in the transaction price and allocating trensaction price to each sepa
performance obligation. ASU 2018 is effective for annual and interim periods begig after December 15, 2016. Early adoption it
permitted. Accordingly, the ASU will be effectiverfthe Company beginning fiscal year 2017. The Camggs currently evaluating the imp
of the adoption on its Consolidated Financial Stegsts.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-0&esentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) &moperty, Plant, and Equipme
(Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations ddidclosures of Disposals of Components of an EtApU 201408") which raises tf
threshold for a disposal to qualify as a discordgthwperation and requires new disclosures of btodtinued operations and certain o
disposals that do not meet the definition of a alidiued operation. ASU 20188 is effective for annual periods beginning onadtel
December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitteddmly for disposals that have not been reportedhiaiicial statements previously issued.
Company has determined that this pronouncementdamotl have a material impact on the Company's i@iposition or results of operatiol

Note 3. Business Combinations

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statementadacthe operating results of acquired businesses fthe date of each acquisition.
forma results of operations for these acquisitibase not been presented as the financial impath@éoCompany's consolidated result
operations, both individually and in aggregateds material. Additional information, if any, exisg as of the acquisition dates but unknow
the Company may become known during the remaintidreomeasurement period, not to exceed 12 mdnons the acquisition date, whi
may result in changes to the amounts and allocatiecorded.

The Company completed one business combinatio®1d 2 one business combination in 2013 , and thusiness combinations in 201&
cash consideration including the fair value of gdsshare-based awards assumed, if any, of appr®tin28.7 million , $10.0 million anc
$187.3 million , respectively.

The following table presents the purchase consiiderallocations for these acquisitions based upayuisitiondate fair values, including ce
and cash equivalents acquired (in millions):

2014 Acquisitions 2013 Acquisitions 2012 Acquisitions

Net tangible assets acquired $ — 3 01 $ L
Net liabilities acquired (2.7) — —
Intangible assets acquired 17.¢ 9.9 54.1
Goodwill 13.€ — 129.7
Total $ 287 $ 10C $ 187.:

The goodwill recognized for the 2014 and 2Gk2juisitions was primarily attributable to expecsytiergies and was not deductible for |
federal income tax purposes.

2014 Acquisition

On January 7, 2014, the Company acquired 100%eo€tjuity securities of WANDL, Inc. ("WANDL"), for2B.7 million of cash and stox
consideration. WANDL, a provider of software sodus for advanced planning, management, design gtimdi@ation of next-generation multi-
layer networks, provides the Company with technplagd experience in traffic engineering, midtyer optimization and path computatior
help service provider customers optimize the petforce and cost of their networks.

Under the terms of the purchase agreement, the @ayngssumed share-based awards for employees fathvalue of $34.9 million whick

were granted in contemplation of future servicesd il be expensed as share-based compensatiortteveemaining service period.
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Intangible Assets Acquire:

The following table presents details of the Compaintangible assets acquired through the busio@sbination completed during tieelve
months ended December 31, 2014 (in millions, exgeats):

Weighted

Average

Estimated

Useful
Life

(In Years) Amount
Existing technology 7 $ 10.7
Customer relationships 7 6.C
Trade name 4 0.€
Backlog 1 0.2
Non-compete agreements 2 &

Total 7 $ 17.

2013 Acquisition

During 2013, the Company completed a business auatibn for approximately $10.0 million in cash ciolesation of which $0.1 milliorwas
allocated to net tangible assets acquired and $8li@n to intangible assets. Intangible assets acquiredisted of existing technology witl
weighted-average estimated useful life of five gear

2012 Acquisitions
Contrail

On December 14, 2012, the Company acquired theingmaownership interest in Contrail, increasing awnership from 12% to 100%n &
cash and stock transaction for approximately $&dillfon . Contrail, a privately-held software netikong company, provides softwadkefinec
networking solutions technology that augments Jensgportfolio of products and services.

The aggregate consideration of $91.7 million wéscated as follows: net tangible assets acquirefi3o® million, including cash and ca
equivalents of $8.6 million ; intangible asset$a¥.4 million ; and recognized goodwill of $70.7llan .

The Company previously accounted for its investmier@ontrail at cost, which was $3.0 milligmior to the acquisition. As of the acquisit
date, the fair value of the Company's previous tgqgaterest in Contrail was remeasured to its f@ilue of $17.7 million, which was base
upon adjustments market participants would considesn estimating the fair value of the previousychinterest in Contrail. This resulted i
$14.7 million gain, which was reported within otlirecome (expense), net in the Consolidated StatemérOperations.

Mykonos Software, Ini

On February 13, 2012, the Company acquired 100%eoequity securities of Mykonos Software, Inc. ylhdnos") for $82.6 milliorin cash
In connection with this acquisition, the Company#ced net tangible liabilities of $0.2 million ntangible assets of $24.3 millignanc
recognized goodwill of $58.5 million .

BitGravity, Inc.

On March 8, 2012, the Company acquired a source ¢ieeénse and patent jointwnership related to the service management la§

BitGravity, Inc.'s ("BitGravity") Content Deliveridetwork ("CDN") technology for $13.0 milliom cash. In connection with this acquisiti
the Company acquired net tangible assets of $dlibmj intangible assets of $12.4 million , andagnized goodwill of $0.5 million .
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Intangible Assets Acquire:

The following table presents details of the intéfgiassets acquired for the business combinatiompleted during 201as of their respecti
acquisition dates (in millions, except years):

Contrall Mykonos BitGravity
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Useful Useful Useful
Life Life Life
(In Years) Amount (In Years) Amount (In Years) Amount
Existing technology — $ — 6 $ 19.2 3 $ 12.4
Trade name and trademarks — — 7 1.C — —
In-process research and development N/A 17.¢ N/A 4.C — —
Total — $ 17.2 6 $ 24.% 3 $ 12.4

Acquired in-process research and development (“IBR&onsists of existing research and development giop the time of the acquisitis
Projects that qualify as IPR&D assets represergdiibat have not yet reached technological feégibihd have no alternative future use. A
initial recognition, acquired IPR&D assets are acted for as indefinitéived intangible assets. Development costs incuaféet acquisition ¢
acquired development projects are expensed asr@itudpon completion of development, acquired IPR&d3ets are considered amortiz
intangible assets. If the IPR&D project is abandbrike related purchased intangible asset is writféin the period abandoned.
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Investments in Availabl-for-Sale and Trading Securities

The following tables summarize the Company's uizedlgains and losses and fair value of investmeesignated as available-fsale an
trading securities as of December 31, 2014 and@bee 31, 2013 (in millions):

Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
As of December 31, 2014
Fixed income securities:
Asset-backed securities $ 269.: — (0.3 269.(
Certificates of deposit 10.€ — — 10.€
Commercial paper 20.2 — — 20.3
Corporate debt securities 738.¢ 0.t (1.2 738.(
Foreign government debt securities 24.¢ — — 24.¢
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 162.2 — (0.7 162.]
U.S. government securities 246.1 — (0.7) 246.(
Total fixed income securities 1,471 0.t (1.€) 1,470.¢
Money market funds 594.2 — — 594.;
Mutual funds 3.6 0.1 — 4.C
Publicly-traded equity securities 2.1 — (0.2 2.C
Total available-for-sale securities 2,071 0.€ 2.7 2,070.¢
Trading securities in mutual funés 16.2 — — 16.2
Total $ 2,088.: 0.€ 1.7 2,087.:
Reported as:
Cash equivalents $ 576.€ — — 576.¢
Restricted investments 45.2 — — 45.2
Short-term investments 332.2 0.2 (0.2 332.C
Long-term investments 1,134 0.4 (1.5 1,133
Total $ 2,088.: 0.€ 2.7 2,087.:

@ Balance includes the Company's rorelified deferred compensation plan as
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Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

As of December 31, 2013

Fixed income securities:
Asset-backed securities $ 249¢ % 01 $ 0.1 $ 249.¢
Certificates of deposit 27.€ — — 27.€
Commercial paper 6.9 — — 6.S
Corporate debt securities 813.¢ 2.C 0.3 815.:
Foreign government debt securities 10.7 — — 10.7
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 306.2 0.1 (0.7 306.2
U.S. government securities 303.: 0.1 (0.2 303.:
Total fixed income securities 1,718.: 2 (0.€) 1,719.¢
Money market funds 1,043.° — — 1,043,
Mutual funds 3.8 0.1 — 4.C
Publicly-traded equity securities 12.C 104.t (1.9 114.¢
Total available-for-sale securities 2,777.¢ 106.¢ (2.5) 2,882.:
Trading securities in mutual funés 15.4 — — 15.4
Total $ 2,793.. % 106.¢ $ 25 $ 2,897.¢

Reported as:

Cash equivalents $ 996.2 $ — — 3 996.2
Restricted investments 87.t 0.1 — 87.€
Short-term investments 459.( 104.¢ (2.0 561.¢
Long-term investments 1,250.t 1.¢ (0.5 1,251.¢
Total $ 2,793 $ 106.¢ $ 25 % 2,897.¢

@ Balance includes the Company's ripralified deferred compensation plan as

The following table presents the contractual méasiof the Company's total fixed income securitis®f December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Due in less than one year $ 337t % 01 $ 0.2) % 337.¢
Due between one and five years 1,134 0.4 (1.9 1,133.:
Total $ 1,471 $ 05 $ (16 $ 1,470.¢

The Company had 437 and 178 investments in uneghlizss positions as of December 31, 2014 and Disee®1, 2013 respectively. Tt
gross unrealized losses related to these invessmearte primarily due to changes in market interat#s and stock prices. The Comg.
periodically reviews its investments to identifydamevaluate investments that have an indication adsiple impairment. The Comps
aggregates its investments by category and lenfjtime the securities have been in a continuougalimed loss position to facilitate
evaluation.

For available-forsale debt securities that have unrealized loskesCbmpany evaluates whether (i) it has the irdentdo sell any of the:
investments and (ii) whether it is not more likéyan not that it will be required to sell any oédle investments before recovery of the €
amortized cost basis. As of December 31, 2014 Cinmpany anticipates that it will recover the entimortized cost basis of such available
for-sale debt securities and has determined thabther-thantemporary impairments associated with credit lossese required to |
recognized during the year ended December 31, 20043 , and 2012 .

For available-for-sale equity securities that hameealized losses, the Company evaluates whetber th an indication of other-thaemporar
impairments. This determination is based on sevabrs, including the financial condition and réarm prospects of the issuer and
Company’s intent and ability to hold the publi¢hgded equity securities for a period of time sidfint to allow for any anticipated recoven
market value. During the year ended December 314 2@he Company determined that certain availfdiesale equity securities were other
than temporarily impaired, resulting in an impaimneharge of $1.1
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million that was recorded within other income (expense}, ime the Consolidated Statement of Operations.iguthe years end
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 the Compgahynot recognize other-thaamporary impairments associated with tl
investments.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , gro$igedagains from available-for-sale securities wt€6.8 millionand gross realized los:
were not material, excluding the impairment changted above. There were nmaterial gross realized gains or losses from tadiecuritie
during the year ended December 31, 2014 , and thvere no material gross realized gains or losses favailable-forsale and tradir
securities during the years ended December 31, 2848 December 31, 2012 .

The following tables present the Company's avastdbi-sale securities that were in an unrealizess fposition as of December 31, 2Cdk
December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
As of December 31, 2014
Fixed income securities:
Asset-backed securities $ 221¢ % 0.3 $ — — $ 221¢ 3 0.3
Corporate debt securities 515.¢ (1.7 — — 515.¢ (1.7
Foreign government debt securiti8s 24.¢ — — — 24.¢ —
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 113.¢ (0.7 — — 113.¢ (0.2
U.S. government securities 189.( (0.7 — — 189.( (0.7
Total fixed income securities 1,065.: (1.6) — — 1,065.: (1.6
Publicly-traded equity securities 2.C (0.7 — — 2.C (0.2)
Total available-for sale securities $ 1067.. $ 17 $ — $ — $ 1067 $ 1.7

®Balances less than 12 months include investmeatsaére in an immaterial unrealized loss positismBDecember 31, 2014 .

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
As of December 31, 2013
Fixed income securities:
Asset-backed securitiés $ 153.C % 0.1 $ 0.€ $ — $ 153¢ % 0.2
Corporate debt securiti€s 156.1 0.3 9.7 — 165.¢ 0.3
Foreign government debt securiti@s 10.C — — — 10.C —
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 123.1 (0.7 — — 123.1 (0.7
U.S. government securities 119.5 (0.7 — — 119.5 (0.2
Total fixed income securities 561.¢ (0.6) 10.z — 572.2 (0.6)
Publicly-traded equity securities 6.€ (1.9 — — 6.8 1.9
Total available-for-sale securities $§ 5680 § (25 $ 105§ — $§ 579.C § (2.9

@ Balances 12 months or greater include investméatsiere in an immaterial unrealized loss positisrof December 31, 2013
@ Balances less than 12 months include investmeatsatére in an immaterial unrealized loss positismBDecember 31, 2013

Restricted Cash and Investmer

The Company classifies certain cash and investnamntsstricted cash and investments on its CorsetidBalance Sheets for: (i) amounts

in escrow accounts, as required in connection eétttain acquisitions completed between 2005 and 2@} the India Gratuity Trust and Isri
Retirement Trust, which cover statutory severar@ations in the event of termination of any oé tGompany's India and Israel employ
respectively; and (iii) the Directors and Officemdemnification trust ("D&O Trust"). The restrictéavestments are designated as available-fc
sale securities.
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Privately-Held Investments

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 ¢ahging values of the Company's privately-heldestments of $89.9 million argb7.z
million , respectively, were included in other letegm assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsf Becember 31, 2014the carrying valt
of the privately-held investments includes debt asdktemable preferred stock securities of $47.5amil For the year endedecember 3:
2014 , the Company recorded $15.0 million in othemprehensive income for unrealized gains assatiatéh its privatelyheld dek
securities. During the year ended December 31, 261&re were $102.7 million unrealized gains as¢ed with its privatelyreld securities |
other comprehensive income.

The Company reviews its investments to identify emdluate investments that have an indication ekjbe impairment. The Company adji
the carrying value for its privatelyeld investments for any impairment if the fairuals less than the carrying value of the respecssets ¢
an other-than-temporary basis.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2048 2812 , the Company determined that certain faiydneld investments were other-than

temporarily impaired, resulting in impairment chesgf $1.1 million , $2.8 million , and $20.0 nolli, respectively, that were recorded wi
other income (expense), net in the Consolidateté@kents of Operations.
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Note 5. Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value orRecurring Basis

The following tables provide a summary of asset$ labilities measured at fair value on a recuriyagis and as reported in the Consolic
Balance Sheets (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014 Using:

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant Other
Active Markets For Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Remaining Inputs Remaining Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets measured at fair value:
Available-for-sale securities:
Asset-backed securities $ — 269.C $ — ¢ 269.(
Certificates of deposit — 10.€ — 10.€
Commercial paper — 20.3 — 20.3
Corporate debt securities — 738.( — 738.(
Foreign government debt securities — 24.¢ — 24.¢
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations — 162.1 — 162.]
Money market fund$’ 594.2 — — 594.;
Mutual funds® 4.C — — 4.C
Publicly-traded equity securities 2.C — — 2.C
U.S. government securities 246.( — — 246.(
Total available-for-sale securities 846.2 1,224.¢ — 2,070.¢
Trading securities in mutual funéfs 16.2 — — 16.2
Privately-held debt securities — — 47.t 47.F
Derivative assets:
Foreign exchange contracts — 0.1 — 0.1
Total assets measured at fair value $ 862.f % 1,224, $ 475 % 2,134
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative liabilities:
Foreign exchange contracts $ — (B9 $ — 3 3.9
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — 39 $ —  $ (3.9
Total assets measured at fair value, reported as:
Cash equivalents $ 552.¢ $ 237 $ — ¢ 576.¢
Restricted investments 45.2 — — 45.2
Short-term investments 87.C 245 — 332.:
Long-term investments 177.¢ 955.% — 1,133.:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets — 0.1 — 0.1
Other long-term assets — — 47.c 47.F
Total assets measured at fair value $ 862 $ 1,224, $ 475 % 2,134.
Total liabilities measured at fair value, reporsesd
Other accrued liabilities $ — (39 % — ¢ (3.9
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — $ B9 % — $ (3.9

@) Balance includes $41.3 millioaf restricted investments measured at fair markdtey related to the Company's D&O trust and adipns relate
escrows

@ Balance relates to the restricted investments nedsu fair market value of the Company's Indiat@ta Trust
(@) Balance relates to the investments measured atdhie related to the Company's -qualified deferred compensation plan as
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013 Using:

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant Other
Active Markets For Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Remaining Inputs Remaining Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets measured at fair value:
Available-for-sale securities:
Asset-backed securities $ — 3 249.¢ % — % 249.¢
Certificates of deposit — 27.€ — 27.€
Commercial paper — 6.S — 6.S
Corporate debt securities — 815.: — 815.:
Foreign government debt securities — 10.7 — 10.7
Government-sponsored enterprise obligations — 306.2 — 306.2
Money market funds$® 1,043, — — 1,043."
Mutual funds® 4.C — — 4.C
Publicly-traded equity securities 114.¢ — — 114.¢
U.S. government securities 197.2 106.1 — 303.:
Total available-for-sale securities 1,359t 1,522, — 2,882.:
Trading securities in mutual funéfs 15.4 — — 15.¢
Privately-held debt securities — — 28.1 28.1
Derivative assets:
Foreign exchange contracts — 3.C — 3.C
Total assets measured at fair value $ 1,374.¢  $ 1,525.. $ 28.1 $ 2,928."
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative liabilities:
Foreign exchange contracts $ — 0.7 % — 3 (0.7
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — 3 (0.7 $ — (0.7)
Total assets measured at fair value, reported as:
Cash equivalents $ 965.1 $ 311 $ — 3 996.2
Restricted investments 87.€ — — 87.¢
Short-term investments 246.5 315.¢ — 561.¢
Long-term investments 75.7 1,176.: — 1,251.¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets — 3.C — 3.C
Other long-term assets — — 28.1 28.1
Total assets measured at fair value $ 1,374.¢ % 1525 $ 281 $ 2,928.°
Total liabilities measured at fair value, reporsed
Other accrued liabilities $ — ¢ 0.7 $ — 3 0.7
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — % 07 $ — ¢ (0.7

@) Balance include$83.6 millionof restricted investments measured at fair mar&te; related to the Company's D&O trust and adiprisrelated escrow
@ Balance relates to the restricted investments medst fair market value of the Company's Indiat@ty Trust
(4 Balance relates to the investments measured atdhie related to the Company's -qualified deferred compensation plan as
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The Company's Level 2 available-for-sale fixed imeosecurities are priced using quoted market pfimesimilar instruments or nobindinc
market prices that are corroborated by observaldeket data. The Company uses inputs such as athad data, benchmark vyiel
broker/dealer quotes, or alternative pricing sosinwéh reasonable levels of price transparency whie obtained from quoted market pri
independent pricing vendors, or other sourceseterthine the ultimate fair value of these assefte Company's derivative instruments
classified as Level 2, as they are not activelgddhand are valued using pricing models that userghble market inputs. The Compa
policy is to recognize asset or liability transfemsiong Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 at the begignf the quarter in which a change
circumstances resulted in a transfer. During ther yaded December 31, 2014 , the Company hédanefers between levels of the fair vi
hierarchy of its assets or liabilities measureéaatvalue. During the year ended December 31, 2ah®8 Company transferred approxima
$287.4 millionof government agency bonds within government spaasenterprise obligations from Level 1 to Levgbrimarily due to th
use of additional valuation inputs more appropljatéassified as Level 2 inputs. During the yeadesh December 31, 2013he Company h:
no transfers to Level 3.

All of the Company's privatelfreld debt securities are classified as Level 3tashge to the absence of quoted market prices arndharer
lack of liquidity. The Company estimates the faalue of its privatelyheld debt investments on a recurring basis usingralysis of th
financial condition and nederm prospects of the investee, including recerdrfcing activities and the investee's capital ftirec During th
year endeDecember 31, 2014 , there were purchases of $3li0mrelated to privately-held debt securities.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value orNonrecurring Basis

Certain of the Company's assets, including intdegiissets, goodwill, and privatefeld equity investments, are measured at fair vahue
nonrecurring basis, only if impairment is indicat&tivatelyheld equity investments, which are normally car@éédost, are measured at
value on a nonrecurring basis due to events armurostances that the Company identified as sigmfigzaimpacting the fair value
investments. The Company estimates the fair valus privately-held equity investments using amlgsis of the financial condition and near
term prospects of the investee, including recerarfcing activities and the investee's capital strec

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company recordedoawitl impairment charge of $850.0 millidior its Security reporting unit measures
fair value on a nonrecurring basis. The remeasuneroé goodwill is classified as Level 3 value assesnt due to the significance
unobservable inputs developed using compgmaeific information. Refer to Note 7 Goodwill aRdirchased Intangible Assets for fun
information on the goodwill impairment charge ahd tinobservable inputs used.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no samifi privatelyheld equity investments measured at fair value noraecurring basis. /
of December 31, 2013 , the Company had $2.0 millibprivatelyheld equity investments measured at fair value apraecurring basis a
were classified as Level 3 assets due to the absehquoted market prices and inherent lack ofifiifn The impairment charges &R.¢
million , representing the difference between the net bamlke and the fair value, are recorded to otheorime (expense), net in i
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As of December 31, 2012, certain purchased intdmgibsets with a carrying value of $5.4 millionerevimpaired and were writtefown tc
their fair value of zero . The impairment charge$af4 million was recorded within cost of revenues on the Codatd Statement
Operations and was classified as Level 3. The Comp#easured the fair value of these assets priynasihg discounted cash flow projectic
As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no impaitsnassociated with purchased intangible assets.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Companyrmtabilities measured at fair value on a nonrgng basis.

Assets and Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Val

The carrying amounts of the Company's accountdvaoke, financing receivables, accounts payabld, @her accrued liabilities approxim
fair value due to their short maturities. As of Betber 31, 2014, the estimated fair value of the @omg's promissory note in connection \
the sale of Junos Pulse recorded in other long &msets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet wasGhilbion classified as Level 3 assets
to the absence of quoted market prices and inh&ekof liquidity. As of December 31, 2014 and Betber 31, 2013the estimated fair val
of the Company's long-term debt in the Consolid®Bathnce Sheets was approximately $1,395.2 milliod $1,023.5 million respectively
based on observable market inputs (Level 2).
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Note 6. Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivatives to partially offsetritarket exposure to fluctuations in certain faneayrrencies and does not enter
derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.

The notional amount of the Company's foreign clayeterivatives are summarized as follows (in mil8jx

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Cash flow hedges $ 160.7 $ 137.€
Non-designated derivatives 78.C 144.¢
Total $ 238.71 $ 282.(

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company uses foreign currency forward or optontracts to hedge the Company's planned cosemfces and operating expen
denominated in foreign currencies. These derivatiaee designated as cash flow hedges. Executidhese cash flow hedge derivati
typically occurs every month with maturities of oyear or less.

See Note 5Fair Value Measurementfgr the fair values of the Company’s derivativetinments in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company recogniziedsof $3.4 millionin accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incoméhi® effectivi
portion of its derivative instruments and reclassifa gain of $3.4 million during the year ended:&uaber 31, 201from other comprehensi
income to operating expense in the Consolidatetei®tents of Operations. As of December 31, 2018 Gbmpany recognized a loss&if.C
million in accumulated other comprehensive incooetlie effective portion of its derivative instrunmig and reclassified a gain .7 millior
during the year ended December 31, 2fid8 other comprehensive income to operating expémshe Consolidated Statements of Operat
As of December 31, 2012 , the Company recognizgairaof $7.2 millionin accumulated other comprehensive income for tfeetéve portior
of its derivative instruments and reclassified sslof $7.5 million during the year ended Decemier2®12from other comprehensive inco
to operating expense in the Consolidated Statenoéi@perations.

The ineffective portion of the Company's derivatinstruments recognized in its Consolidated Statgsnef Operations was not materikiring
the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013, and.2012

Non-Designated Derivatives

During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 20h8 2812 , the Company recognized a net loss of ®#libn , a net gain of $0.9 million
and a gain of $1.0 million , respectively, on rdesignated derivative instruments within other meo(expense), net, in its Consolid:
Statements of Operations.

Offsetting of Derivatives

The Company presents its derivative assets andatieé liabilities on a gross basis in the Consaikdl Balance Sheets. However, ul
agreements containing provisions on netting withiade counterparties of foreign exchange contramibject to applicable requirements,
Company is allowed to net-settle transactionshensame date in the same currency, with a sirgflamount payable by one party to the o
As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 201f8e potential effect of rights of setoff assoethtwith derivative instruments was

material. The Company is neither required to plenigreentitled to receive cash collateral relateth&se derivative transactions.
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Note 7. Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The following table presents the goodwill activiily millions):

Total
December 31, 2012 $ 4,057.¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment (0.3
December 31, 2013 4.,057."
Additions due to business combination 13.¢
Impairment (850.0)
Divestiture (239.9)
December 31, 2014 $ 2,981t

In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company perfatrite annual goodwill impairment test for the Comyla threereporting units: Routini
Switching, and Security. The Company compared eapbrting units’fair value to their current value to determine wieetan impairme
exists. The fair value was determined by usingralination of the income approach and the marketagm.

Under the income approach, the fair value of eagonting unit was based on the present value oktttienated future cash flows that
reporting unit is expected to generate over itsaiaig life. Cash flow projections were based omagement's estimates of revenue gr
rates and operating margins, taking into consid@randustry and market conditions. The discoutésaused were based on the weighte
average cost of capital adjusted for the relevisktassociated with businespecific characteristics and the uncertainty relatethe reportin
unit's ability to execute on the projected cash flowadé&r the market approach, the Company estimatedaithevalue based on marl
multiples of revenue and earnings derived from carabple publiclytraded companies with similar operating and investintharacteristics
the reporting units. The income approach and théenapproach were equally weighted to derive #ievialue of each reporting unit.

The fair value of the Compars/Routing and Switching reporting units signifidgrexceeded their carrying value. However the ¥ailue of th
Security reporting unit did not exceed its carryivejue and therefore the Company determined therBgaeporting units goodwill wa
impaired. In 2014, the Company re-aligned its gonatarket and research and development resourceso@tisr with the highest potential
growth and continued to leverage its engineerifigrisf across its Routing, Switching, and Securitydoicts. In the fourth quarter of 2014,
Company began to implement a new Security strafiegysed on network resiliency and performance basethe SRX platform. As a resi
the Company rationalized its Security product mbidf including developing a new product roadmap axiting certain point produc
including the divestiture of Junos Pulse. Thes¢ofacdecreased the Company's short term and nearéyenue and profitability forecasts
the Security reporting unit.

In determining the impairment amount, the fair eahf the Security reporting unit was allocatedttodssets and liabilities, including
unrecognized intangible assets, based on theiectisp fair values. Assumptions used in measuriregvalue of these assets and liabil
included the discount rates, customer renewal rated technology obsolescence rates used in vathimgntangible assets, and pricing
comparable transactions in the market in valuirg tdngible assets. Based on this allocation, tleair8g reporting unit's carrying value
goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of goodwiésulting in a goodwill impairment charge of $8% million which was recorded in t
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

There were no impairments to goodwill during thangeended December 31, 2013, and 2012 .
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Purchased Intangible Asse!

The Company’s purchased intangible assets weralag/é (in millions):

Accumulated Impairments and
Gross Amortization Other Charges Net
As of December 31, 2014
Intangible assets with finite lives:
Technologies and patents $ 567.7 $ (466.0) $ (49.9 $ 51.7
Customer contracts, support agreements, and
related relationships 78.1 (65.2) (2.9 10.1
Other 1.1 (0.5) — 0.€
Total purchased intangible assets $ 646.¢ $ (531.¢) $ (52.79) $ 62.£
As of December 31, 2013
Intangible assets with finite lives:
Technologies and patents $ 581.¢ $ (453.9) % (305 % 97.t
Customer contracts, support agreements, and
related relationships 74.3 (62.7) (2.2 9.4
Total purchased intangible assets $ 655.7 $ (516.) $ (32.7) $ 106.¢

The following table presents the amortization a¢éirgible assets included in the Consolidated Sttésrof Operations (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cost of revenues $ 30¢ $ 27.2  $ 27.€
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 4.2 3.4 BE
General and administrative 1.2 1.2 1.2
Total operating expenses 5.4 4.€ 4.7
Total $ 36.5 % 31¢ % 32.2

In connection with the restructuring plan in 2011 2012 discussed in Note Restructuring and Other Chargegshe Company determin
certain intangible assets of $20.0 million and $1dillion , respectively, were no longer utilized. Additidgain 2012 the Company recorde
$5.4 million impairment charge as a result of the fair valuesswent. During the year ended December 31, 26&4Company record
charges of $19.3 million in cost of revenues and $0illion in restructuring and other charges in the Constddi&tatements of Operatic
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynpenorded charges of $16.1 milliam cost of revenues in the Consolidated Stater
of Operations. There were no impairment charggmitohased intangible assets during the years ebdeember 31, 2013 .

As of December 31, 2014 , the estimated future tinadion expense of purchased intangible assetsfimite lives is as follows (in millions):

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2015 $ 24.%
2016 13.¢
2017 8.C
2018 5.2
2019 4.6
Thereafter 54
Total $ 62.4
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Note 8. Other Financial Information
Inventories

The Company purchases and holds inventory to peoaitbquate component supplies over the life ofitfterlying products. The majority
the Company's inventory is production componentsetised in the manufacturing process and finigfoedls inventory in transit. Inventor
are reported within prepaid expenses and otheewuassets and other loterm assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheetal ihoentorie
consisted of the following (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Production materials $ 38 % 51.c
Finished goods 24.2 1.4
Inventories $ 62.5 $ 52.7

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , the Coyngcorded $15.5 million to cost of revenues,tegldo the acceleration of the endhéé-
of certain products in connection with the 2014 tReturing Plan discussed Mote 9, Restructuring and Other ChargeBhere were nsuct
charges during the year ended December 31, 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynpenorded charges of $44.3 millioho cost of revenues, representing inventory e
excess of forecasted demand, of which $36.3 milli@s in connection with the restructuring plan 012 discussed in Note Restructurin
and Other Charges.

Property and Equipment, Ne

Property and equipment, net, consisted of theiaiig (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013

Computers and equipment $ 806.1 $ 794.¢
Software 161.2 108.4
Leasehold improvements 179.t 202.¢
Furniture and fixtures 33.7 42.F
Building and building improvements 238.¢ 242.¢
Land and land improvements 241.( 238.¢
Construction-in-process 70.3 79.t

Property and equipment, gross 1,730.: 1,709.:
Accumulated depreciation (825.9 (826.¢)

Property and equipment, net $ 904.: $ 882.:

Depreciation expense was $141.9 million , $148.Hani, and $154.7 million in 2014 , 2013 , and 2QXespectively. Property and equiprr
is periodically reviewed for impairment wheneveeets or changes in circumstances indicate thatahging amount of an asset may no
recoverable.
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Other Long-Term Assets

Other long-term assets consisted of the followingr(illions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013

Privately-held investments $ 89.¢ $ 57.2
Licensed software 8.€ 90.£
Federal income tax receivable 20.C 20.C
Customer financing receivable 16.¢ 19.¢
Inventory 8.C 15.2
Prepaid costs, deposits, and other 35.t 31.1
Promissory note in connection with the sale of duPolse? 125.C —

Other long-term assets $ 303¢ $ 233.¢

™ Refer to Other Income (Expense), net below foherinformation on the promissory ne

In connection with the 2014 Restructuring Plan uésed in Note 9Restructuring and Other Chargeshe Company reviewed its prod
portfolio and determined to cease development efahplication delivery controller software techmpidicensed in July 2012 as well
development of another technology, for which thenpany has a prepaid license. As a result, the Coynpecognized a total charge $85.¢
million recorded within operating expenses in trengblidated Statements of Operations during the gieded December 31, 201ZFhere wer
no revenues associated with this technology.

Warranties
The Company accrues for warranty costs based oociagsd material, labor for customer support, amdrizead at the time revenue
recognized. This accrual is reported as accruedanwir within current liabilities in the ConsoliddtB8alance Sheets. Changes in the Coman

warranty reserve were as follows (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 28.C $ 29.7
Provisions made during the period, net 28.€ 28.¢
Adjustments related to pre-existing warranties — (2.2
Actual costs incurred during the period (27.9) (28.9)
Ending balance $ 287 % 28.(
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Deferred Revenu
Details of the Company's deferred revenue, as teghan the Consolidated Balance Sheets, were bsvi®l(in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013

Deferred product revenue:
Undelivered product commitments and other prodeéttmals $ 180.2 $ 184.¢
Distributor inventory and other sell-through items 103.7 118.7
Deferred gross product revenue 284.( 303.¢
Deferred cost of product revenue (58.9 (58.6€)
Deferred product revenue, net 225.¢ 245.(
Deferred service revenue 850.1 824.:
Total $ 1,075.0 $ 1,069.:

Reported as:

Current $ 780.6 $ 705.¢
Long-term 294.¢ 363.t
Total $ 1,075.0 $ 1,069.:

Deferred product revenue represents unrecognizeenue related to shipments to distributors thatehawt sold through to engsers
undelivered product commitments, and other shipm#hret have not met all revenue recognition cateieferred product revenue is recol
net of the related costs of product revenue. Defeservice revenue represents billable amountsefvice contracts, which include techn
support, hardware and software maintenance, piofedsservices, and training, for which servicesehaot been rendered.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net consisted of the fatigwin millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Interest income $ 10.C $ 87 $ 11.C
Interest expense (66.9) (58.9 (52.9
Net gain on legal settlement 196.1 — —
Gain on investments 167.¢ 11.z 26.7
Gain on sale of Junos Pulse 19.¢ — —
Other 6.7 (2.0) (1.9

Other income (expense), net $ 333.¢ $ (4049 $ (16.6

Interest income primarily includes interest earnadhe Company cash, cash equivalents, and investments. Intexpshse primarily includ
interest, net of capitalized interest expense, ftongterm debt and customer financing arrangements. rQyipécally consists of investme
and foreign exchange gains and losses and otheopenational income and expense items.

Interest Expens
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar@t] ZQé&rest expense included $57.5 million , ne$af7 million capitalized, $45.2 million

net of $1.9 million capitalized, and $40.0 millipmet of $7.1 million capitalized, respectivelylated to the Company's outstanding |ldegy
debt issued in March 2011 and in February 2014udsed in Note 1Q,ong-Term Debt and Financing
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Gain on Legal Settlement

During the year ended December 31, 201 Company entered into a settlement agreemigmtRalo Alto Networks, Inc. ("PAN") resolvii
a patent litigation between the two companies, Wwhesulted in a realized gain on legal settlemeandt subsequent sale of related securitic
$196.1 million , net of legal fees.

Gain on Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , the Coynprorded a gain of $163.0 milligrprimarily related to the sale of investments v
were converted from privately-held investmentsubljzly-traded equity upon IPO and subsequentlg.sol

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , netg@ainvestments was primarily comprised of a gai®afl millionrelated to the Compan
privately-held investments.

Gain on Sale of Junos Pulse

On October 1, 2014, the Company completed thedfate Junos Pulse product portfolio. The Compasneived total consideration $230.°
million , of which $105.7 million was in cash, ngta $19.3 million working capital adjustment, ait5.0 million was in the form of an 18-
month non-contingent interest bearing promissore mesued to the Company. As a result of the shéie Company recorded a gain %if9.¢
million in other income (expense), net in the Consolid&edement of Operations. The Company's sale ofsJ®udse is driven by prodt
rationalization in connection with the Companyisidive to focus on projects with the highest puial for growth.

Note 9. Restructuring and Other Charges

The following table presents restructuring and otiarges included in cost of revenues and restrinct and other charges in the Consolid
Statements of Operations under the Company's odsting plans (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Severance $ 52 $ 22¢ % 36.7
Facilities 14.4 10.C 5.€
Contract terminations and other .3 14.¢ 57.2
Asset impairments and write-downs 139.2 — —
Total $ 208t $ 475 $ 99.7
Reported as:
Cost of revenues $ 415 $ 84 $ 52.¢
Restructuring and other charges 167.( 39.1 46.¢
Total $ 208t % 475 % 99.7

Restructuring and other charges noted above amdbais the Company's 2014 Restructuring Plan an@rQRestructuring Plans that w
committed to by management. Any changes in thenastis of executing the approved plans are refléntdte Company's results of operatic

2014 Restructuring Plan

In the first quarter of 2014, the Company initia@destructuring plan (the “2014 Restructuring Plastesigned to refocus the Compa
strategy, optimize its structure, and improve openal efficiencies. The 2014 Restructuring Plamsists of workforce reductions, facil
consolidations and closures, asset write-downgraciterminations and other charges.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , the Coynperorded $52.0 million of severance costs, $idiRon of facility consolidation an
closures costs, $85.4 million of impairment changgated to licensed software, $12.3 million ofedssrite-downs, and $2.3 millioof charge
related to contract terminations, which were reedrdo restructuring and other charges in the Cateseld Statements of Operations
connection with the facility consolidation and aloss charge of $14.2 million , the

89




Table of Contents
Juniper Networks, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

Company, with the consent of its landlord and tmiaistrative agent for the holder of certain liesezured upon the buildings on the lei
premises, assigned certain of its real propertgdsatotaling approximately 0.4 millisguare feet, to a third party. Concurrently witle
assignments, the Company executed a subleasehgitissignee for one of the properties of approxiyd1 millionsquare feet, for a peri
of two years , with one -time right to extend tkem for up to six months . Under these arrangemémsCompany paid $12.3 millido the
landlord and was released from all future leaségabbns following the date of the assignments. Tmnpany also incurred $5.3 milliaf
transaction fees, which were recorded to restrirguaind other charges in the Consolidated StatesrafnDperations. Offsetting these cha
was an adjustment relating to deferred rent ligbittlating to these premises of $9.8 million .

The Company also recorded inventory write-down$1d.5 million , intangibles write-downs of $19.3llioh , and a charge related to prodi
with contract manufacturers of $6.7 million for atgration of the end-ddervice life of certain products to cost of reveiirethe Consolidatt
Statements of Operations during the year endedieee31, 2014 .

The 2014 Restructuring Plan has been substantiatiypleted as of December 31, 2014, and the Comga@y not expect to record signific
future charges under this restructuring plan.

2013 Restructuring Plan

During 2013, the Company initiated a restructugten (the "2013 Restructuring Plan™) to continuénprove its cost structure and rationa
its product portfolio and rebalance its investmeiitse 2013 Restructuring Plan consists of workfaeductions, contract terminations,
project cancellations. The Company recorded $0Ilomiin severance costs related to the 2013 Restrugti®lan during the year enc
December 31, 2014 . Under the 2013 Restructuriag,Rbtal costs incurred through December 31, 20d4re $28.9 million , of whicl$3.2
million was recorded within cost of revenues and.62million was recorded within restructuring and other chaigethe Consolidate
Statements of Operations. The restructuring a#/itelated to this plan are substantially complatel the Company does not expect to re
significant future charges under this plan.

2012 Restructuring Plan

During 2012, the Company initiated a restructugpan (the "2012 Restructuring Plan®) to bring itsicstructure more in line with its desi
longterm financial and strategic model. The 2012 Restiring Plan consists of workforce reductions, lfgcconsolidations or closures, &
supply chain and procurement efficiencies. During year ended December 31, 2Q1#he Company continued to implement restructt
activities under the 2012 Restructuring Plan armbméed $0.2 millionin charges for facility consolidations or closurénder the 201
Restructuring Plan, total costs incurred througleddeber 31, 2014 were $112.8 million , of which $5&illion was recorded within cost
revenues, primarily related to certain inventoryg artangible asset impairment charges, and $54l&mivas recorded within restructuring ¢
other charges in the Consolidated Statements ofafipas. The restructuring activities related tis thlan are substantially complete, and
Company does not expect to record significant Rittirarges under this plan.

Restructuring Liability
Restructuring liabilities are reported within otheecrued liabilities and other lorigkm liabilities in the Consolidated Balance She@&tse

following table provides a summary of changes i fisstructuring liability related to the Comparpglans during the year end@gcember 3:
2014 (in millions):

Non-cash
December 31, Cash Settlements and December 31,
2013 Charges Payments Other 2014
Severance $ 5€ $ 52.¢ % 479 $ (1.4 % 9.4
Facilities 5.1 14.2 (20.2) 8.1 7.4
Contract terminations and other 7.1 2.3 (8.9 0.9 0.2
Total $ 176 69.2 % (7159 $ 58 ¢ 17.C

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company's restrugjuiability was $17.0 million , of which $9.6 mih is related to severance and o
charges expected to be settled by the first quaftef15. The remaining $7.4 milliaelated to facility closures is expected to be ghrdugt
March 2018.

90




Table of Contents
Juniper Networks, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

Note 10. Long-Term Debt and Financing
Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the Company's largatdebt (in millions, except percentages):

As of December 31, 2014
Effective Interest

Amount Rates
Senior notes:
3.10% fixed-rate notes, due 2016 $ 300.( 3.25%
4.60% fixed-rate notes, due 2021 300.( 4.69%
4.50% fixed-rate notes, due 2024 350.( 4.63%
5.95% fixed-rate notes, due 2041 400.( 6.03%
Total senior notes 1,350.(
Unaccreted discount (1.0
Total $ 1,349.(

In March 2011, the Company issued $300.0 milliogragate principal amount of 3.10% senior notes2046 ("2016 Notes")$300.0 millior
aggregate principal amount of 4.60% senior notes 2021 ("2021 Notes"), and $400.0 million aggregaiacipal amount of 5.95%enio
notes due 2041 ("2041 Notes"). In February 2014,Gbmpany issued $350.0 million aggregate princgmabunt of 4.50%enior notes dt
2024 ("2024 Notes" and, collectively the "Notes").

The 2024 Notes are senior unsecured obligationsrankl equally with all of the Company's other e@rgtand future senior unsecu
indebtedness. Interest on the Notes is payablash semiannually. The Company may redeem the Natesy time in whole or from time
time in part, subject to a makehole premium, and, in the event of a change irtrobrthe holders of the Notes may require the Canyptc
repurchase for cash all or part of the Notes atrahmse price equal to 10186the aggregate principle amount, plus accrueduspaid interes
if any. The indenture that governs the Notes atsttains various covenants, including limitationstbea Company's ability to incur liens
enter into sale-leaseback transactions over cettalar thresholds.

The effective interest rates for the Notes incltitke interest on the Notes, accretion of the distoamd amortization of issuance costs. A
December 31, 2014 , the Company was in compliantteall of its covenants in the indentures govegrtine Company's notes.

Revolving Credit Facility

On June 27, 2014, the Company entered into a CAggléement ("Credit Agreement”) with certain ingtibnal lenders and Citibank, N.A.,
administrative agent, that provides for a $500.0ioni unsecured revolving credit facility, with an optiofi the Company to increase
amount of the credit facility by up to an additibi$200.0 million, subject to certain conditions. Proceeds of loayasle under the Cre
Agreement may be used by the Company for workingtalaand general corporate purposes. Revolvingdaaay be borrowed, repaid
reborrowed until June 27, 2019, at which time allbants borrowed must be repaid. Borrowing may beodenated, at the Company's op
in U.S. dollars, Pounds Sterling or Euro.

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement will beaenest, at either i) a floating rate per annum etusthe base rate plus a margin of betv
0.00% and 0.50% , depending on the Company's pdbébt rating or ii) a per annum rate equal to #serve adjusted Eurocurrency rapmus
margin of between 0.90% and 1.50% , depending @eiCttmpany's public debt rating. Base rate is ddfasthe greatest of (ACitibank's bas
rate , (B) the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% oit{€JCE Benchmark Administration Settlement Ratelicable to dollars for a period of ¢
month plus 1.00% The Eurocurrency rate is determined for U.S.atelland Pounds Sterling as the rate at which dispiassuch currency &
offered in the London interbank market for the égadle interest period and for Euro as the rateifipd for deposits in Euro with a matui
comparable to the applicable interest period.

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company was in canpé with all covenants in the Credit Agreemend, am amounts were outstanding.
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Customer Financing Arrangements

The Company provides certain distribution partraarsess to extended financing arrangements foricentauser customers that require lor
payment terms than those typically provided by @empany through factoring accounts receivable fodparty financing provide
("financing providers"). The program does not amdnot intended to affect the timing of the Compsmgvenue recognition. Under

financing arrangements, proceeds from the finanpioyider are due to the Company within 30 tod2@s from the sale of the receivable
these transactions with the financing provider,@wenpany surrenders control over the transferredtasThe factored accounts receivabli
isolated from the Company and put beyond the redde Company's creditors, even in the event aikhgptcy. The Company does

maintain effective control over the transferredeégsshrough obligations or rights to redeem, transér repurchase the receivables after
have been transferred. In 2014, the Company tiansit certain distribution partners from the thpatty financing program to the Compai
commercial payment terms. As a result the Compamgtomer financing activities significantly dedahfrom fiscal year 2013 to 2014.

Pursuant to the financing arrangements for the stleceivables, the Company sold net receivableb4d0.3 million , $898.4 millioranc
$677.8 million during the years ended Decembe£814 , 2013, and 2012 , respectively.

The Company received cash proceeds from the fingmmiovider of $602.1 million , $843.9 million ,&8679.8 millionduring the years end
December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectivedyof December 31, 2014 and December 31, 20th&® amounts owed by the financ
provider were $28.0 million and $189.8 million spectively, and were recorded in accounts recedvabl the Compang’ Consolidate
Balance Sheets.

The Company has provided guarantees to third-fiaaycing companies for certain third-party finargiarrangements extended to certain en

user customers, which have terms of up to foursyeBine Company is liable for the aggregate unpaghents to the thirgarty financin
company in the event of customer default. As ofddelser 31, 2014 the Company has not been required to make anmeatg under the
arrangements. Pursuant to these arrangements,dimpa@y has guarantees for third-party financingregements of $22.2 millioas o
December 31, 2014 .

The portion of the receivable financed that haslbmesn recognized as revenue is accounted for emi@cing arrangement and is include
other accrued liabilities and other long-term lidileis in the Consolidated Balance Sheefs of December 31, 201dnd 2013, the estimal
cash received from the financing provider not retogd as revenue from distributors was $67.5 nmilaond $62.3 million , respectively.

Note 11. Equity
Cash Dividends on Shares of Common Stock

During 2014, the Company declared two quarterlyhcdisidends of $0.1(er share on July 22, 2014 and on October 23, 204i, or
September 23, 2014 and on December 23, 2014 t&hsitaters of record as of the close of business epteédnber 2, 2014 and Decembe
2014, respectively, in the aggregate amount of &dillion . Any future dividends, and the establishment aord and payment dates,
subject to approval by the Board of Directors (tBeard") of Juniper Networks or authorized comngtthereof. See Note 18ubseque
Eventsfor discussion of the Company's dividend declaratiobsequent to December 31, 2014 .

Stock Repurchase Activitie
In February 2014, the Company's Board approvedak sepurchase program that authorized the Comfmargpurchase up to $2.1 billia its

common stock, including $1.2 billiopursuant to an accelerated share repurchase prdg2®i4 Stock Repurchase Program”). In Oct
2014, the Board authorized a $1.3 billimerease to the 2014 Stock Repurchase Programtfiiakof $3.4 billion. As of December 31, 20

there was $1.2 billion of authorized funds remagnimder the 2014 Stock Repurchase Program. Iniaddd repurchases under the Company

stock repurchase program, the Company also repsesteommon stock from certain employees in conmegtith the net issuance of share
satisfy minimum tax withholding obligations uporethesting of certain stock awards issued to sugbl@raes.
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The following table summarizes the Company's remses and retirements of its common stock undestitsk repurchase programs
accelerated share repurchase, and repurchasegéssgadth minimum tax withholdings (in millionsxeept per share amounts):

Shares Average price Amount
Repurchased per share Repurchased

2014

Repurchases under stock repurchase program 46.¢ $ 22.4; % 1,050.(

Accelerated share repurchége 49.: % 243 $ 1,200.(

Repurchases for tax withholding 0€ $ 19.6¢ $ 12.5
2013

Repurchases under stock repurchase program 28¢ §% 19.7¢  $ 570.¢

Repurchases for tax withholding 04 $ 20.20 % 7.2
2012

Repurchases under stock repurchase program 3B.E $ 18.0¢ % 645.¢

Repurchases for tax withholding 0z $ 23.4C $ 5.C

@ As part of the 2014 Stock Repurchase Program, thepgany entered into tweeparate accelerated share repurchase agreenwhstifely, the "ASR"
with two financial institutions to repurchase $bilion of the Company's common stock. The Comparagde an up-front payment of $1.2 billiporsuar
to the ASR to repurchase the Company's common stdekaggregate number of shares ultimately puezhass determined based on a volume weit
average repurchase price, less an agreed uporudisdde shares received with respect to the ASR baen retired. Retired shares return to authd
but unissued shares of common st

The Company intends to repurchase $1.0 bilbbits common stock by the end of the second quaft@015, as part of its three year ca|
return program. Future share repurchases undeCahgpanys stock repurchase programs will be subject toveeweof the circumstances
that time and will be made from time to time invatie transactions or open market purchases as tpeainbly securities laws and other le
requirements. The Company's stock repurchase pregnaay be discontinued at any time. See Not&uBsequent Eventer discussion of tt
Company's stock repurchase activity subsequeneteidber 31, 2014 .
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income, NETax

The components of accumulated other comprehensoarie, net of related taxes, for the years endexbibber 31, 2014 andecember 3:
2013 were as follows (in millions):

Unrealized Unrealized Foreign
Gains (Losses) Gains (Losses) Currency
on Available-for- on Cash Flow Translation
Sale Securities® Hedges® Adjustments Total
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 21 % 3C $ 0.9 $ 4.7
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassidioa 65.1 0.7 (3.9) 62.4
Amount reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (2.0 (1.5 — (2.5)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) 64.1 (0.9 (3.9 59.¢
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 66.2 $ 22 $ (3. $ 64.€
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifica 48.7 4.7 (14.2) 30.4
Amount reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (106.5) (2.9 — (108.¢)
Other comprehensive loss, net (57.9) (6.4) (14.2) (78.9)
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 84 $ (42 % (18.0 $ (13.9

@ The reclassifications out of accumulated other aaingnsive income during the years ended Decembhe03# and December 31, 20ft3 realized gair
on available-for-sale securities of $104.3 millenmd $1.0 million, respectively, are included in other income (exg@@nnet, in the Consolidated Statem
of Operations.

@ The reclassifications out of accumulated other aamgnsive income during the year ended Decembet@HUfor realized gains on cash flow hedges
included within research and development of $1.4ioni, sales and marketing of $0.3 million , anehgral and administrative of $0.7 milliamd fo
realized losses within cost of revenues of $0.lignilfor which the hedged transactions relate in the SOlidated Statements of Operations.
reclassifications out of accumulated other compmsive income during the year ended December 313 &f¥lrealized gains on cash flow hedges
included within cost of revenues of $1.1 milliondasales and marketing of $4.3 million and for =di losses within research and developme$3of
million and general and administrative of $0.5 il for which the hedged transactions relate inGbaesolidated Statements of Operations.
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Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans
Equity Incentive Plans

The Company’s equity incentive plans include the&gquity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plantfie 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan
“2000 Plan™), the Amended and Restated 1996 Stéak @he “1996 Plan”)various equity incentive plans assumed through iaitiuns, an
the 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESRIRYer these plans, the Company has granted (theicase of acquired plans, assur
stock options, restricted stock units ("RSUs")fnieted stock awards ("RSAs"), and performance slaavards ("PSAs").

As of December 31, 2014 , a total of approxima&y3 million shares of common stock were reserved for futungaisse upon exercise
stock options and vesting of RSUs, RSAs, and P8Ad,for the future grant of shalbased compensation awards under the Company'y
incentive plans.

The 2006 Plan was adopted and approved by the Quoyigpstockholders in May 2006. To date, the Compastg'skholders have approve
share reserve of 149.5 milli@hares of common stock plus the addition of anyeshaubject to options under the 2000 Plan and 986 Pla
that were outstanding as of May 18, 2006, and gbbsequently expire unexercised, up to a maximuanaidditional 75.0 millioshares. A
of December 31, 2014 , the 2006 Plan had 27.1anilthares subject to currently outstanding equitsirds and 47.8 millioshares availab
for future issuance. Options granted under the 20@6 have a maximum term of sewsrars from the date of grant, and generally ved
become exercisable over a foyear period. Subject to the terms of change ofrobseverance agreements, and except for a limiteeber o
shares allowed under the 2006 Plan, RSUs or PSswést solely based on continuing employment ovipion of services will vest in full 1
earlier than thregears from the grant date, or in the event vessngased on factors other than continued futureigian of services, su
awards will vest in full no earlier than one yeamfi the grant date.

During 2012 through 2014, the Company completedattguisitions of Mykonos, Contrail, and WANDL anssamed their respective pla
Mykonos Software, Inc. 2010 Stock Plan; Contraikt8yns Inc. 2012 Stock Plan, and WANDL, Inc. 2013tReed Stock Unit Plan.

connection with these plans, the Company assunuak siptions, RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs and exchangedgsfigmed awards for Juni
Networks' stock options, RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs.easpely. No additional awards can be granted utidese plans. The Company assu
an aggregate of 8.5 millioghares of stock options, RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs mmexiion with the acquisitions of Mykonos, Contraihc
WANDL. As of December 31, 2014 stock options, RSRSAs, and PSAs representing approximately 4.liani$hares of common stock w
outstanding under all awards assumed through timep@oy's acquisitions.

The ESPP was adopted in May 2008. To date, the @oy'g stockholders have approved a share reseni®.6f million shares of tt
Company's common stock for issuance under the ESR® ESPP permits eligible employees to acquirgeshaf the Compang’ commo
stock at a 15% discount to the offering price (&ednined in the ESPP) through periodic payroll utéidns of up to 10%of bas
compensation, subject to individual purchase liroft§,000 shares in any twelve -month period or,8@8worth of stock, determined at the
market value of the shares at the time the stoc&hase option is granted, in one calendar yeaofA3cember 31, 2014 , approximatély.i
million shares have been issued and 3.3 milliomesheemain available for future issuance undeEtBEP.
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Stock Option Activities

Since 2006, the Company has granted stock opti@dsathat have a maximum contractual life of sexears from the date of grant. Prio
2006, stock option awards generally had a ten -geatractual life from the date of grant.

The following table summarizes the Company’s stoplon activity and related information as of aod the three years end&kcember 3:
2014 (in millions, except for per share amounts yewts):

Outstanding Options

Weighted Average

Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Price Contractual Term Intrinsic
Number of Shares per Share (In Years) Value
Balance as of December 31, 2011 38.t $ 23.9¢ 3.7 % 75.%
Granted 3.1 22.81
Assumed(*) 0.¢ 0.57
Canceled (2.9 26.6¢
Exercised (3.6 11.71
Expired (2.7 26.97
Balance as of December 31, 2012 341 $ 24.1: 3.1 % 52.t
Canceled 1.3 29.5¢
Exercised (5.6 15.5¢
Expired 4.7 28.3¢
Balance as of December 31, 2013 231 $ 25.1¢ 24 % 44.¢
Canceled (0.6) 30.1¢
Exercised (5.4 19.7¢
Expired (7.2 29.11
Balance as of December 31, 2014 9¢ $ 24.87 2.0 $ 245
As of December 31, 2014:
Vested and expected-to-vest options 98 $ 25.0( 20 % 23.€
Exercisable options 91 $ 25.8¢ 1.7 $ 15.¢

®  Stock options assumed in connection with the adépisof Contrail

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the differenesveen the Compars/closing stock price on the last trading day ef pleriod, which we
$22.32 per share as of December 31, 2014 and #reisa price, multiplied by the number of relatgdians. The praax intrinsic value ¢
options exercised, representing the difference betvthe fair market value of the Compangbmmon stock on the date of the exercise ar
exercise price of each option, was $33.4 milli&29.4 million , and $27.9 million for 2014 , 2013nd 2012 respectively. Total fair value
options vested during 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 was3%aillion , $45.2 million , and $70.9 millionespectively.
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The following table summarizes additional informatregarding outstanding and exercisable optiord Becember 31, 2014 :

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average

Remaining Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Price Number Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
(In dollars) (In millions) (In years) (In dollars) (In millions) (In dollars)
$0.03 - $15.09 1.7 36 $ 9.5¢ 1.3 % 12.2:
$16.39 - $22.59 14 15 20.3¢ 1.2 20.3¢
$22.74 - $24.61 1.1 2.0 23.8¢ 0.¢ 23.81
$24.73 - 24.73 0.1 0.4 24.7: 0.1 24.7:
$25.16- $25.16 1.2 0.2 25.1¢ 1.2 25.1¢
$25.19 - $26.90 1.C 1.3 26.2¢ 1.C 26.2¢
$26.97 - $29.89 1.€ 1.8 28.71 1.€ 28.7(
$30.01 - $38.93 0.7 2.9 33.5i 0.7 33.6(
$40.26 - $40.26 0.7 2.8 40.2¢ 0.7 40.2¢
$44.00 - $44.00 04 3.0 44.0C 04 44.0C
$0.03 - $44.00 9.6 20 $ 24.81 91 s 25.8¢

Restricted Stock Unit, Restricted Stock Award, @efrformance Share Award Activitie
RSUs and RSAs generally vest over a period of ttodeur years from the date of grant and PSAs gaiyevest over a period of two three

years provided that certain annual performanceetargnd other vesting criteria are met. Until vés®®SUs and PSAs do not have the vc
and dividend participation rights of common stookl he shares underlying the awards are not carsidsesued and outstanding.
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The following table summarizes the CompanRSU, RSA, and PSA activity and related informatés of and for the three years er
December 31, 2014 (in millions, except per sharewarts and years):

Outstanding RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs
Weighted Average

Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Grant-Date Fair Contractual Term Intrinsic
Number of Shares Value per Share (In Years) Value

Balance as of December 31, 2011 196 $ 30.2 15 $ 400.t

RSUs granted 9.¢ 20.7¢

RSUs assumed® 0.2 22.21

PSAs granteé? 2.2 23.07

RSAs assumed 5.8 19.5¢

RSUs vestet (3.1 27.0¢

PSAs veste® 1.9 18.21

RSAs vested) (0.7 19.5¢

RSUs canceled (2.9 27.7

PSAs canceled 2.3 29.71
Balance as of December 31, 2012 26.6 % 27.7¢ 1.7 $ 565.(

RSUs granted 10.2 20.3:2

PSAs granteé 2.2 21.2i

RSUs vestet (6.1) 26.1¢

PSAs veste® 1.1 28.5:2

RSAs vested) (1.6) 19.5¢

RSUs canceled (3.9 22.9¢

PSAs canceled .7 29.1(
Balance as of December 31, 2013 254 $ 23.4¢ 11 $ 573.t

RSUs grante®® 10.C 22.5:

RSUs assume@ 0.4 22.6¢€

RSAs assume® 0.¢ 22.6¢

PSAs grante® 1.4 24.2¢

PSAs assume@ 0.2 22.6¢

RSUs vestet (7.9 22.9¢

RSAs vested (1.4 19.5¢

PSAs veste® 1.1 36.1¢

RSUs canceled (4.0 21.6:

PSAs canceled 3.2 30.4:
Balance at December 31, 2014 21:  $ 22.0¢ 1.1 $ 475.(
As of December 31, 2014

Vested and expected-to-vest RSUs, RSAs,

and PSAs 177 $ 21.9¢ 10 $ 395.2

@ RSUs assumed in connection with the acquisitioklyfonos

2 RSUs and RSAs assumed in connection with the aitiguief Contrail

® The number of shares subject to PSAs granted mmethe aggregate maximum number of shares thabm#ssued pursuant to the award over its
term. The aggregate number of shares subject s tR8As that would be issued if performance gaaterohined by the Compensation Committee
achieved at target is 0.9 milli@hares. Depending on achievement of such perforengoals, the range of shares that could be issueer these awar
is 0 to 2.2 million shares.

@ The number of shares subject to PSAs granted mmethe aggregate maximum number of shares thabmassued pursuant to the award over its
term. The aggregate number of shares subject s& tRE€As that would be issued if performance gaatisrohined by the Compensation Committee
achieved at target is 1.1 millighares. Depending on achievement of such perforengoals, the range of shares that could be issoéer these awar
is 0 to 2.2 million shares.

® Includes service-based and markased RSUs granted under the 2006 Plan accorditgjteyms

6 RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs assumed in connection withdbeisition of WANDL
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(m  The number of shares subject to PSAs granted mmethe aggregate maximum number of shares thabméssued pursuant to the award over its
term. The aggregate number of shares subject s tRE€As that would be issued if performance gaatisrohined by the Compensation Committee
achieved at target is 0.9 millishares. Depending on achievement of such perforengoals, the range of shares that could be issoeer these awar
is 0 to 1.4 million shares.

® Total fair value of RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs vestethdu2014, 2013, and 2012 was $210.1 million , $224illion , and $132.0 million respectively

© On February 20, 2014, the Company announced g&stion to initiate a quarterly cash dividend ofl#per share of common stock in the third quart
2014. As a result of the Company's announcemeatgthnt date fair value of RSUs and PSAs grantent #fe announcement date were reduced &
present value of the dividends expected to be gaithe underlying shares of common stock duringeieiisite and derived service period as theseds
are not entitled to receive dividends until vestede Company paid quarterly cash dividends in tiel tand fourth quarter of 2014 of $0.pér shar
totaling $86.0 million. The declaration and amount of any future casideids are at the discretion of the Board of Doeciand will depend on t
Company's financial performance, economic outl@wki any other relevant considerations.

Shares Available for Gran

The following table presents the stock activity dihe total number of shares available for grantenride 2006 Plan as &fecember 31, 20:
(in millions):

Number of Shares

Balance as of December 31, 2013 49.1
RSUs and PSAs grantéd (24.7)
RSUs and PSAs canceléd 15.C
Options cancele® 0.€
Options expired® 7.2

Balance as of December 31, 2014 47.¢

@M RSUs and PSAs with a per share or unit purchase piver than 100%f the fair market value of the Company's commalsn the day of the gre
under the 2006 Plan are counted against shareerietth under the plan as two and one-tesithres of common stock for each share subjectdk
award. The number of shares subject to PSAs graeprdsents the maximum number of shares that mé#ssbed pursuant to the award over its full te

@ Includes canceled or expired options under the P86 and the 2000 Plan that expired after May2086, which become available for grant unde
2006 Plan according to its tern

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

The Company's ESPP is implemented in a seriedefind periods, each simonths in duration, or a shorter period as detezthlyy the Boar

Employees purchased approximately 2.9 million ,r8iion , and 3.5 millionshares of common stock through the ESPP at ange/esaercis
price of $19.30 , $16.53 , and $16.26 per sharind@014 , 2013, and 2012 , respectively.
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Valuation Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used and theingsabktimates of fair value for stock options, PSRnd markebased RSUs were
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock Optiong?:
Volatility — — 45%
Risk-free interest rate — — 0.7%
Expected life (years) — — 4.2
Dividend yield — — —
Weighted-average fair value per share — — $8.47
ESPPY:
Volatility 30% 36% 47%
Risk-free interest rate 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Expected life (years) 0.5 0.5 0.5
Dividend yield 0% - 1.8% — —
Weighted-average fair value per share $5.72 $5.54 $5.53
Market-based RSU3
Volatility 36% — —
Risk-free interest rate 1.6% — —
Dividend yield 0% - 2.0% — —
Weighted-average fair value per share $16.89 — —

@ The Blacl-Schole-Merton optior-pricing model is utilized to estimate the fair valof stock options and ESI

@ The fair value of markdbased RSUs utilizes the Monte Carlo simulationasppricing model. The Company amortizes the falu@af these awards o
the derived service period adjusted for estimageféitures for each separately vesting tranchdefaward. Provided that the derived service ises
the total fair value of the markbased RSUs at the date of grant is recognized mpeamsation expense even if the market conditiomotsachievec
However, the number of shares that ultimately eastvary significantly with the performance of gpecified market criteri

Share-Based Compensation Expense

Sharebased compensation expense associated with staan®pRSUs, RSAs, PSAs, and ESPP was recordebeirfallowing cost an
expense categories in the Company's ConsolidatgdrS¢nts of Operations (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cost of revenues - Product $ 5 % 47 $ 4.€
Cost of revenues - Service 14.2 15.4 17.C
Research and development 134.t 127.¢ 109.1
Sales and marketing 60.2 70.€ 81.€
General and administrative 26.1 26.C 31.1
Total $ 240.C $ 244¢  $ 243.¢
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The following table summarizes share-based compiensaxpense by award type (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock options $ 14¢ % 31t 58.¢
RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs 209.7 196.¢ 163.5
ESPP 15.4 16.5 20.€
Total $ 240.C $ 244¢ $ 243.¢

The following table presents unrecognized compémsatost, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, redingd over a weightedverage peric
related to unvested stock options, RSUs, RSAsP&8#k as of December 31, 2014 (in millions, exceptrs):

Weighted Average

Unrecognized Period
Compensation Cost (In Years)
Stock options $ 11.4 1.3
RSUs, RSAs, and PSAs $ 257.¢ 1.7

401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a savings and retirement gulatified under Section 401(k) of the Internal Bewe Code of 1986, as amended
"IRC"). Employees meeting the eligibility requirentg, as defined under the IRC, may contribute ughéostatutory limits each year. 1
Company currently matches 30% of all eligible ergplo contributions which vest immediately. The Compa matching contributions to t
plan totaled $20.2 million , $20.7 million , and®2 million during the years ended December 3142013 , and 2012 , respectively.

Deferred Compensation Pla

The Company’s non-qualified deferred compensatifiQOC") plan is an unfunded and unsecured deferred comji@msarangement. Unc
the NQDC plan, officers and other senior employmay elect to defer a portion of their compensatiad contribute such amounts to on
more investment funds. The NQDC plan assets atedad within shorterm investments and offsetting obligations aréuighed within accrue
compensation in the Consolidated Balance SheetsinMestments are considered trading securitiesaamdeported at fair value. The reali
and unrealized holding gains and losses relatéuege investments are recorded in other incomee(esq), net, and the offsetting compensi
expense is recorded as operating expenses in theolltated Statements of Operations. The defervetpensation liability under the NQI
plan was approximately $16.3 million and $15.4 imillas of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2fHspectively.
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Note 13. Segments

In 2014, the Company realigned its organization atOne-Juniper structure which includes consadtigagach of the Company's R&D and go
to-market functions to reduce complexity, increaseitglaof responsibilities, and improve efficiency.sfa result of these changes,
consolidated business is considered to be onetedpersegment, consistent with how the Compsichief operating decision maker ("CODI

views the business, allocates resources, and assbssperformance of the Company.

The Company continues to sell its higarformance network products and service offerimg®ss routing, switching, and security to sel
provider and enterprise markets.

The following table presents net revenues by prbdod service (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Routing $ 2,223¢ $ 2,318.( $ 2,037.¢
Switching 721.% 638.( 554.¢
Security 463.¢ 563.¢ 669.7
Total product 3,408.° 3,519.¢ 3,262.:
Total service 1,218. 1,149.; 1,103.:
Total $ 4,627.. $ 4,669.. $ 4,365.

The Company attributes revenues to geographic melggsed on the customer’s shiplocation. The following table presents net raxenb
geographic region (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Americas:
United States $ 2,410t $ 2,381 $ 2,067.!
Other 219.7 232.( 218.¢
Total Americas 2,630.: 2,613t 2,285.¢
Europe, Middle East, and Africa 1,263.: 1,256.¢ 1,266.:
Asia Pacific 733.t 798.7 813.:
Total $ 4,627.. $ 4669.. $ 4,365.

During the years ended December 31, 28td 2013, no customer accounted for greater théf dfthe Company's net revenues. During
year ended December 31, 2012, Verizon accounte10.3% of the Company's net revenues.

The following table presents geographic informafimnproperty and equipment, net and purchasedgilide assets, net (in millions):

As of December 31,
2014 2013
United States $ 8717 $ 885.¢
International 95.C 103.¢
Property and equipment, net and purchased intanggsets, net $ 966.71 $ 989.2

The Company tracks assets by physical location.mjerity of the Companyg’ assets, excluding cash and cash equivalentsiaestinents,
of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 , weilbuable to U.S. operations.
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Note 14Income Taxe!

The components of pretax (loss) income and nonclling interest are summarized as follows (in roifis):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Domestic $ (509.7) $ 248.7 $ 114.1
Foreign 423.¢ 276.¢ 177.¢
Total pretax (loss) income $ (86.9 $ 5258 § 291t
The provision for income taxes is summarized dsvid (in millions):
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Current provision (benefit):
Federal $ 180.1 $ (12,9 $ 94.:
States 15.2 (5.0 8.4
Foreign 33.7 32.t 37.1
Total current provision (benefit) 229.( 14.¢ 139.¢
Deferred provision (benefit):
Federal 17.2 51.2 (28.8)
States 1.2 2.7 (1.5
Foreign 0.t 22.€ 3.t
Total deferred provision (benefit) 19.C 71.1 (26.¢)
Income tax benefits attributable to employee stgek activity — — (8.0
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 2480 85.7 § 105.(

The provision for income taxes differs from the amibcomputed by applying the federal statutory tatpretax (loss) income as follows

millions):
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Expected (benefit) provision at 35% rate $ (30.2) $ 184.C $ 102.(
State taxes (benefit), net of federal benefit 9.t (3.6) 2.C
Foreign income at different tax rates (90.2) (37.7) (11.¢
Research and development credits (17.3) (32.5) (0.5
Share-based compensation 25.8 25.¢ 22.4
Non-deductible goodwill impairment 297.t — —
Gain on sale of Junos Pulse 75.€ — —
Release of valuation allowance (22.9) — (3.9
Settlement with tax authorities — (28.9) —
Domestic production activities (6.9 (26.9) —
Non-deductible compensation 3.2 1.5 0.€
Equity investment gain on acquisition — (5.3
Other 4.C 3.C (1.9

Total provision for income taxes $ 248.C  $ 857 § 105.(

In 2014, the Company has provided tax on a prdess primarily due to the nosieductible goodwill charge. In 2013, the Compargorde(
$64.2 million of net income tax benefit relatedtems unique to the year. These amounts includ&drdiillion for a multiyear claim relate
to the U.S. production activities deduction, $28llion for a tax settlement with the IRS, and . éillion of U.S. federal R&D tax crec
resulting from the American Taxpayer Relief Actaif12 signed on January 2, 2013, which retroactiveiystated the U.S. federal R&D
credit from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2013.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettsw carryforward items and temporary differences betweenctreying amounts of ass
and liabilities for financial reporting purposegdahe amounts used for income tax purposes. Segmificomponents of the Company's defe
tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in roiik):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carry-forwards $ 12 $ 1.1
Foreign tax credit carry-forwards 69.7 63.£
Research and other credit carry-forwards 122.t 106.€
Deferred revenue 104.¢ 71.C
Stock-based compensation 55.¢ 86.1
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible 129.¢ 153.¢
Other 19.¢ 13.7
Total deferred tax assets 503.¢ 495.¢
Valuation allowance (1445 (155.7)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 359.: 340.1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment basis differences (35.6 (3.2
Purchased intangibles (16.7) (10.0)
Unremitted foreign earnings (260.¢) (258.9
Deferred compensation and other (5.0 (38.7)
Other — (0.9
Total deferred tax liabilities (318.0 (311.2)
Net deferred tax assets $ 415 % 28.¢

The breakdown between current and long-term defdee assets and deferred tax liabilities are Bsvis (in millions):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Current deferred tax assets $ 147.C % 79.€
Long-term deferred tax assets 1.7 2.4
Long-term deferred tax liabilities (107.9 (53.9)
Total net deferred tax assets $ 41§ 28.¢

As of December 31, 2014 , and 2013 , the Compadyahzaluation allowance on its U.S. domestic defétax assets of approximatdi§44.t
million and $155.7 million , respectively. The hade at December 31, 2014 consisted of approxim&Ehds.2 million and $9.7 millioagains
the Company's California and Massachusetts deféaedssets, respectively, which the Company besieare not more likely than not to
utilized in future years. The remaining deferreddasets on which the Company recorded a valuatlowance are approximate$g.6 millior
related to losses that are capital in nature ang caary forward to offset future capital gains anfhe valuation allowance decreaskidl.z
million in 2014 related to utilization of losses that aaital in nature offset by the increase in the fGatia R&D credit. Valuation allowan
increased in 2013 by $14.7 million related to aréase in the California R&D credit.

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had fedemlGalifornia net operating loss carry-forwardsapproximately $1.6 million ani27.¢
million , respectively. The Company also had Califa tax credit carry-forwards of approximately $28 million . Approximately$16.z
million of the benefit from the California tax ciedarry-forwards will be credited to additionaligan capital when realized on the Compa
income tax returns. Unused net operating loss darwyards will expire at various dates beginninghe year 2021. The California tax cre
carry-forwards will carry forward indefinitely.

The Company provides U.S. income taxes on the mgsnof foreign subsidiaries unless the subsidiagamings are considered indefini
reinvested outside of the United States. The Compas made no provision for U.S. income taxes grapmately $1.9 billiorof cumulative
undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidmthrough December 31, 2014 . These earnings are
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considered indefinitely invested in operations mig®f the U.S., as the Company intends to utiimse amounts to fund future expansion «
international operations. If these earnings westributed to the United States in the form of dérids or otherwise, or if the shares of
relevant foreign subsidiaries were sold or othesvtiansferred, the Company would be subject totmddil U.S. income taxes (subject tc
adjustment for foreign tax credits) and foreignhhiblding taxes. Determination of the amount of aagmized deferred income tax liabi
related to these earnings is not practicable.

As of December 31, 2014 , 2013, and 2012 the sotedunt of gross unrecognized tax benefits was 2198lion , $137.6 million , an$136.:
million , respectively. As of December 31, 2014ppeoximately $164.9 million of the $199.2 milliogross unrecognized tax benefits
recognized, would affect the effective tax rate.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amaoointhe Company's total gross unrecognized taxfiisiveas as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of year $ 137.¢ $ 136.1 $ 132.2
Tax positions related to current year:

Additions 62.t 15.¢ 8.8
Tax positions related to prior years:

Additions 0.€ 22.€ 0.¢

Reductions — (2.2 —
Settlements — (31.7) (1.2
Lapses in statutes of limitations (1.5 (3.6) (4.€)
Balance at end of year $ 199.2 $ 137.¢ $ 136.1

As of December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 the Campad accrued interest and penalties related tecognized tax benefits &22.:
million , $18.4 million , and $16.7 million , respesely, within other longerm liabilities in the Consolidated Balance She&tse Compan
recognized an expense for net interest and pesalti€s2.8 million and $0.6 million , and a benedit $0.6 million in its Consolidate
Statements of Operations during the years endedrbieer 31, 2014 , 2013, and 2012 , respectively.

The Company engages in continuous discussions egatiations with tax authorities regarding tax mtin various jurisdictions. There i
greater than remote likelihood that the balancéhefgross unrecognized tax benefits will decregsapdproximately $3.2 milliowithin the
next twelve months due to lapses of applicableittatof limitations and the completion of tax revieycles in various tax jurisdictions.

In 2013, the Company executed a closing agreeméht the Appeals Division of the IRS related to itsercompany R&D cost shari
arrangement for the license of intangibles acquire@004, 2005, and 2006. The Company reacheda fesolution with the IRS on
proposed adjustments for all tax years through 2@®&ch resulted in a settlement of approximatel®.$ million , including interest.

The Company conducts business globally and, asudtrduniper Networks or one or more of its sulasids files income tax returns in
U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state aneifgm jurisdictions. In the normal course of busstee Company is subject to examinatiol
taxing authorities throughout the world, includisgch major jurisdictions as the Netherlands, UBfance, Germany, Japan, China, Austr
India, and the U.S. With few exceptions, the Conyp#n no longer subject to U.S. federal, state amchl| and nonJ.S. income ta
examinations for years before 2004.

The Company is currently under examination by fR8 for the 2007 through 2009 tax years and thef@@aia Franchise Tax Board for
2004 through 2006 tax years. The Company is albfesuto separate ongoing examinations by the Itadisauthorities for the 2004 tax ye
2004 through 2008 tax years, and the 2008 throlg!® 2ax years. The Company is not aware of anyrakaminations by tax authorities
any other major jurisdictions in which it files imme tax returns as of December 31, 2014 .

In 2008, the Company received a proposed adjustifnent the India tax authorities related to the 2Q84 year. In 2009, the India 1
authorities commenced a separate investigatioruo2004 through 2008 tax returns and are disputisgCompany's determination of taxe
income due to the cost basis of certain fixed asSdte Company accrued $4.6 millionpenalties and interest in 2009 related to thidtem
The Company understands that in accordance withdhenistrative and judicial process

105




Table of Contents
Juniper Networks, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

in India, the Company may be required to make paymthat are substantially higher than the amooortueed in order to ultimately settle t
issue. The Company strongly believes that any assad it may receive in excess of the amount adoneild be inconsistent with applica
India tax laws and intends to defend this positigorously.

The Company is pursuing all available administeati#medies relative to these matters. The Compaligvies that it has adequately provi
for any reasonably foreseeable outcomes relatéliese proposed adjustments and the ultimate résolat these matters is unlikely to hay
material effect on its consolidated financial cdiodi or results of operations; however there i atpossibility that an adverse outcome of tl
matters could have a material effect on its codsddid financial condition and results of operations

Note 15. Net Income per Share

The Company computed basic and diluted net (loex)me per share attributable to Juniper Networkangon stockholders as follows
millions, except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Numerator:

Net (loss) income $ (334.9) $ 439.¢ $ 186.t
Denominator:

Weighted-average shares used to compute basinawahe per share 457 ¢ 501.¢ 520.¢

Dilutive effect of employee stock awards — 8.5 .3

Weighted-average shares used to compute diluteidiceane

per share 457 . 510.: 526.2

Net (loss) income per share attributable to Jurijegwvorks common

stockholders:

Basic $ (0.79) % 0.8t $ 0.3¢

Diluted $ (0.79) % 0.8¢ $ 0.3t
Anti-dilutive:

Potential anti-dilutive shares 20.¢ 13.2 32.¢

Basic net income per share is computed using as$)income available to common stockholders aaavitightedaverage number of comm
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net mme@er share is computed using net (loss) incoradadle to common stockholders and
weightedaverage number of common shares outstanding pltentoly dilutive common shares outstanding durthe period. Dilutiv
potential common shares consist of common shasealide upon exercise of stock options, issuanc&SeP, and vesting of RSUs, RSAs,
PSAs. The Company includes the common shares yimgrPSAs in the calculation of diluted net incomer share when they beca
contingently issuable and excludes such shares tiggnare not contingently issuable. Potentiallytdie common shares were excluded f
the computation of diluted net loss per share bee#heir effect would be anti-dilutive.
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Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

The following table summarizes the Company’s futtiaimum payments under naancelable operating leases for each of the nextygar
and thereafter as of December 31, 2014 (in millions

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2015 $ 41.2
2016 30.1
2017 22.C
2018 14.:
2019 7.5
Thereafter 22.C
Total $ 137.1

The Company leases its facilities and certain egeigt under non-cancelable operating leases thateeapvarious dates throu@bctober 31
2024. Certain leases require the Company to pay variabbts such as taxes, maintenance, and insuradcm@ude renewal options &
escalation clauses. Rent expense for 2014 , 2848 2012 was approximately $46.0 million , $52.8iom , and $63.2 million , respectively.

Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers appliers

In order to reduce manufacturing lead times andurensidequate component supply, the Company eni&sagreements with contr.
manufacturers and certain suppliers to procurenitorg based on the Company's requirements. A sogmif portion of the Company's purch
commitments arising from these agreements consfsfsm and non-cancelable commitments. These @msehlcommitments totaleg476.:
million as of December 31, 2014 .

The Company establishes a liability in connectiatihygurchase commitments related to quantitiesxeess of its demand forecasts or obs:
materials charges for components purchased byahieact manufacturers based on the Compgadgmand forecast or customer orders. /
December 31, 2014 , the Company had accrued $28i8mbased on its estimate of such charges. Tigtudes $9.4 milliorrelated to ne
losses on firm and non-cancelable purchase commtsne

Long-Term Debt and Interest Payment on Long-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company held longrtdebt consisting of senior notes with a carryiadue of $1,349.0 million Of thes
Notes,$300.0 million will mature in 2016 and bears intdrat a fixed rate of 3.10% , $300.0 million wilatare in 202land bears interest a
fixed rate of 4.60% , $350.0 million will mature 2024 and bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.5@%gd,$400.0 million will mature in 204dnc
bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.95% . Intepesthe Notes is payable semiannually. See Notédilg-Term Debt and Financingfor furthe
discussion of the Company's long-term debt.

Other Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2014 , other contractual obiligest primarily consisted of $46.0 million in indeityarelated and service related escrow
required in connection with certain asset purchasebacquisitions completed between 2005 and 2€H@pus build-out obligations &3.5
million , and $19.2 million of agreements that diren, noncancelable and specify terms, including: fixed dnimum quantities to
purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price promis; and the approximate timing of payment.

Tax Liabilities
As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had $177llmincluded in longterm income taxes payable in the Consolidated Bal&heets fi

unrecognized tax positions. At this time, the Compi unable to make a reasonably reliable estimfathe timing of payments related to 1
amount due to uncertainties in the timing of tagiaautcomes.
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Guarantees

The Company enters into agreements with custorhatscontain indemnification provisions relatingpiotential situations where claims co
be alleged that the Company’s products infringeititellectual property rights of a thigarty. The Company also has financial guarai
consisting of guarantees of product and servicéopaance, guarantees related to third-party custdimancing arrangementgustom an
duty guarantees, and standby letters of creditéotain lease facilities. As of December 31, 20td Becember 31, 201,3the Company h
$26.2 million and $40.1 millionrespectively, in financing arrangements, bankgu@es, and standby letters of credit relatetigsd financi:
guarantees, of which $22.2 million in financing artees was recorded in other accrued liabilitied ather longerm liabilities in th
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, .28&d Note 10,ong-Term Debt and Financingfor further discussion of the Compal
third-party customer financing arrangements thataio guarantee provisions.

Legal Proceeding:
Investigations

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEG@)tlee U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) are comuiyighvestigations into possit
violations by the Company of the U.S. Foreign Cptiaractices Act (FCPA). The Company is cooperatiiy these agencies regarding tt
matters. The Company’Audit Committee, with the assistance of indepahdalvisors, has been investigating and condudairtforoug
review of possible violations of the FCPA, and hzsde recommendations for remedial measures, imgueinployee disciplinary actions
foreign jurisdictions, which the Company has impéerted and continues to implement. The Companyaslerto predict the duration, scop:
outcome of the SEC and DOJ investigations, butlel that an adverse outcome is reasonably pasdiesver, the Company is not abl
estimate a reasonable range of possible loss. H@:a&hd/or DOJ could take action against us or wedcagree to settle. In such event,
could be required to pay substantial fines andtgame and/or implement additional remedial measureaddition, it may be determined t
we violated the FCPA.

Other Litigation

In addition to the investigations discussed abtive,Company is involved in other disputes, litigatiand other legal actions. The Compai
aggressively defending these current litigationterat and while there can be no assurances anoutheme of these matters is currently
determinable, and the Company currently believasibne of these existing claims or proceedingdikeé/ to have a material adverse ef
on its financial position. There are many uncettamassociated with any litigation and these astior other thirgparty claims against t
Company may cause the Company to incur costlyalitign and/or substantial settlement charges. litiaddthe resolution of any intellectt
property litigation may require the Company to matgalty payments, which could adversely affectsgrmargins in future periods. If any
those events were to occur, the Company's busifiraacial condition, results of operations, andtcfiows could be adversely affected.

actual liability in any such matters may be mathridifferent from the Company's estimates, if amnich could result in the need to adjust
liability and record additional expenses.

We record an accrual for loss contingencies foallpgoceedings when we believe that an unfavorabteome is both (a) probable and (b)
amount or range of any possible loss is reasoredilgnable. We have not recorded any accrual fardostingencies associated with such |
proceedings or the investigations discussed above.
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Note 17. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudéd)

The tables below set forth selected unaudited &izdmlata for each quarter of the two years endeceihber 31, 201¢n millions, except pe

share amounts):

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Net revenues:

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

Product $ 876.C % 929.. % 809.f % 794.(
Service 294.] 300.: 316.¢ 307.¢
Total net revenues 1,170.: 1,229.! 1,125.¢ 1,101.¢
Cost of revenues:
Product 326.¢ 359.: 290.( 310.¢
Service 123.¢ 122.( 121.1 115.¢
Total cost of revenue® 450.( 481.: 411.1 426.F
Gross margin 720.1 748.2 714.¢ 675.1
Operating expenses:
Research and development 264.( 255t 253.2 233t
Sales and marketing 273. 258.( 249.2 243.(
General and administrative 74.€ 60.€ 55.C 40.€
Restructuring and other (credit) charées 114.( 58.Z (15.0 9.8
Impairment of goodwill® — — — 850.(
Total operating expenses 726.3 632.3 542.¢ 1,376.¢
Operating (loss) income (6.2 115.¢ 172.¢ (701.9
Other income (expense), &t 154.2 178.¢ (6.9 7.4
Income (loss) before income taxes 148.( 294 165.¢ (694.9
Income tax provision 37.4 73.4 62.C 75.2
Net income (loss) $ 1106 % 2211 $ 103.¢ % (769.6
Net income (loss) per shafé:
Basic $ 0.2: $ 047 $ 02: $ (1.8))
Diluted $ 02z $ 0.4¢ $ 02: $ (1.8))
Cash dividends declared per common stéick $ — 3 — 3 0.1C $ 0.1C

@ In the first quarter of 2014, the company initiated2014 Restructuring Plan, which consisted of B8illion asset write-downs, $28.0 millioof
severance costs, and $0.8 millioh contract terminations that were recorded inruestiring and other charges. In addition, the Camgpeecorde
inventory write-downs related to the acceleratidrthe end-of-service life of certain products totgl $8.4 millionto cost of revenues. In the sec
quarter, the Company recorded $9.9 million of sewee costs, $37.6 million of facility consolidatiand closures, $8.9 million of asset writewns, an
$1.5 million of contract terminations that were aomted to restructuring and other charges. The Cagnpiso recorded inventory write-downs %if1.£
million and a charge related to products with cacttmanufacturers of $2.3 million for accelerattrihe end-oflife service of certain products to cos
revenues. In the third quarter, the Company recb&¥e1 million of severance costs, a benefit of.82aillion of facility consolidation and closures &
result of a lease assignment, and $2.9 millionsseawritedowns, that were recorded to restructuring andrdttredit) charges. In the fourth quarter,
Company recorded $6.9 million in severance costs; #illion of facility consolidation and closuremnd $20.6 million in asset impairment and write
downs.

@ During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company réed an $850.0 milliogoodwill impairment charge related to its Securégorting unil

® In the first quarter of 2014, the Company recordeghin of $163.0 million related to the sale ofdstments which were converted from privategfe
investments to publiclyraded equity upon IPO. In the second quarterGbmpany entered into a settlement agreement witN, Rhich resulted in
realized gain on legal settlement of $195.3 milljoret of legal fees. All such PAN securities wesklsn the third quarter, and the Company recoralk
additional $0.8 million gain. In the fourth quartdre Company recorded a gain of $19.6 millionlmngale of Junos Pulse.

@ Net income (loss) per share is computed indepetydditierefore, the sum of the quarterly net incqree share may not equal the total computed fc
year or any cumulative interim period.

®  On July 22, 2014 and October 23, 2014 the companiarted a quarterly cash dividend of $0pED share of common stock to stockholders on reasi
the close of business September 2, 2014 and Decednb@14, respectively.
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Year Ended December 31, 2013
Net revenues:
Product
Service
Total net revenues
Cost of revenues:
Product
Service
Total cost of revenue?
Gross margin
Operating expenses:
Research and developméht
Sales and marketiri)
General and administratiyg
Restructuring and other chardés
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax (benefit) provision
Net income

Net income per shafé
Basic
Diluted

Juniper Networks, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

$ 7816 $ 863. $ 900.6 $ 973.f
277. 286.¢ 284.¢ 300.1

1,059.: 1,150. 1,185.¢ 1,273.¢

278.: 321. 325. 351.¢

110. 108.¢ 113.€ 118.

388. 430.: 439.1 470.(C

670.¢ 720.F 746.F 803.¢€

262.: 257.7 264.¢€ 258.7

256.1 267.1 269.F 283.:

58.E 49.2 61.4 48.2

7. 8.C 6.C 18.1

583.¢ 582.( 601.5 608..

87.C 138.F 145.( 195.

(10.1) (12.6) (7.5) (10.2)

76.¢ 125.¢ 137.F 185..

(14.1) 28.C 38.4 33.4

$ 91.C $ 97.c $ 99.1 $ 151.€
$ 0.1 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2C $ 0.3¢
$ 0.1 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3¢

@ In the second quarter of 2013, the Company exterideduseful lives of certain computers and equigrbased on actual historical usage, w
demonstrated longer useful lives, as well as tlenmed use of these assets. The change was accdontad a change in estimate and ap)
prospectively. This change in accounting estimaerehsed depreciation expense within research emelapment expense by approximat&l/1.(
million or $0.01 per diluted share for the secondrter of 2013, $9.4 million or $0.01 for the thgdarter of 2013, and $7.9 million or $0 .t the fourtt

quarter of 2013.

@ In the third quarter of 2013, the Company impleradnthe 2013 Restructuring Plan for workforce reidmst, contract terminations, and pro
cancellations and recorded restructuring charge®7af million and $3.7 milliorio operating expenses and cost of revenues, résggctin the fourtl
quarter of 2013, the Company continued to implenrestructuring activities under the 2013 RestruntuPlan and primarily recorded charge:

operating expenses of $17.6 million .

@ Net income per share is computed independentlyreftie, the sum of the quarterly net income pereshzay not equal the total computed for the ye

any cumulative interim period.

@ Certain amounts in the prior quarters' Condensets@imated Statements of Operations have beerssifotal to conform to the current year presents
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Note 18. Subsequent Events
Dividend Declaration

On January 27, 2015, the Company announced thaiditdeclared a quarterly cash dividend of $@é&0Oshare of common stock payable
March 24, 2015 to stockholders of record as ofctbse of business on March 3, 2015.

Stock Repurchase Activitie
Subsequent to December 31, 2014, through the fdfndpis Report, the Company repurchased 10.9 onihares of its common stock, for
aggregate purchase price of $248.1 million at arage price of $22.7per share, under the 2014 Stock Repurchase Pragmdmvere settle

prior to the filing of this Report. Under the 20%tbck Repurchase Program, the Company has $926i8nmauthorized funds remaining as
the filing date.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcédunting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovrancial Reporting: See "Management's Annual Report on Internal Cbuotrer
Financial Reporting" under Item 8 of Part Il ofgliReport, which is incorporated herein by reference

(b) For the “Report of Independent Registered RuBlccounting Firm,”see the report under Item 8 of Part Il of this Rgpahich is
incorporated herein by reference.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Attached, as exhibits to this Report are certifara of our principal executive officer and pringiffinancial officer, which are required
accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Actfi)s TControls and Procedureséctior
includes information concerning the controls arldtesl evaluations referred to in the certificatiansl it should be read in conjunction with
certifications for a more complete understandintheftopics presented.

We carried out an evaluation, under the superviaiwhwith the participation of our management,udalg our principal executive officer 8
principal financial officer, of the effectiveneskthe design and operation of our disclosure cdsimod procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-
(e) and 15dt5(e) under the Exchange Act. Based upon that atiahy our principal executive officer and prindifiaancial officer conclude
that, as of the end of the period covered in taport, our disclosure controls and procedures wHeetive to ensure that information requ

to be disclosed by us in reports that we file dimsit under the Exchange Act is recorded, process@gdmarized, and reported within the t
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Cosionisrules and forms and is accumulated and contated to our management, incluc
our principal executive officer and principal fircaal officer, as appropriate to allow timely deoiss regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control direancial reporting that occurred during the fougbarter of 2014hat have material
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B. Other Information

On February 20, 2015, the Company entered into difred form of its standard form severance agrednweth Robyn Denholm, tt
Company's Executive Vice President and Chief Firzand Operations Officer (the "Severance Agredfyewhich will expire on January
2017. The modifications are consistent with Ms. BeEm's prior severance agreement as describeci@tmpany's current report on Form 8
K filed on July 25, 2013, which expired per itsnsron January 1, 2015. The foregoing descriptioth@fSeverance Agreement is a sumt
and is qualified in its entirety by the terms of theverance Agreement, which is filed as ExhibiéZ@o this Report.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

For information with respect to our Executive Offis, see Part |, Item 1 of this Annual Report omF0-K, under Executive Officers of tt
Registrant.”

Information concerning our directors, includingeitor nominations, and our audit committee andtazanmittee financial expert, appeai
in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed witte SEC in connection with the 2015 Annual Meetifiggtockholders (the “Proxy Statement”
under “Corporate Governance Principles and Boarttdvig” “Director Compensation” and “Election ofrBctors”is incorporated herein
reference.

Information concerning Section 16(a) beneficial evahip reporting compliance appearing in the Pr&tgtement underSection 16(c
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” is irqparated herein by reference.

Information concerning our Worldwide Code of BusiseConduct and Ethics that applies to our princgadcutive officer and all oth
employees appearing in the Proxy Statement undampt@@ate Governance Principles and Board Mattéssiicorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

Information concerning executive compensation appgan the Proxy Statement under “Executive Congagion”is incorporated herein
reference.

Information concerning compensation committee lotds and insider participation appearing in thexiyrStatement underCompensatic
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participationinisorporated herein by reference.

Information concerning the compensation committegort appearing in the Proxy Statement under “Caorsgiion Committee Reporis
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aibnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Information concerning the security ownership attai@ beneficial owners and management appearitigeirProxy Statement, undeBécurity
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managdraed Related Stockholder Matters,” is incorpatdterein by reference.

Information concerning our equity compensation plaformation appearing in the Proxy Statement, uritequity Compensation Pl
Information,” is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abtector Independence

The information appearing in the Proxy Statemeenrthe heading “Certain Relationships and Rel@tadsactionsis incorporated herein
reference.

The information appearing in the Proxy Statemeweuthe heading “Board Independence” is incorpdragrein by reference.
ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information concerning principal accountant feed aarvices and the audit committee's preapprovadiee and procedures appearing in
Proxy Statement under the heading “Principal ActaninFees and Services” is incorporated hereirefarence.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as partho$ Report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statementgit 8 herein.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedule is ingd as part of this Report:

Schedule Page
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Account 117

All other schedules have been omitted as the reduimformation is not applicable or the informatisnpresented in the Consolida
Financial Statements or notes thereto under ltém@r8in.

3. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index in this Report.
(b) Exhibits

See Exhibit Index in this Report.

(c) None

JUNIPER NETWORKS, JUNOS, MYKONOS, and QFABRICegistered trademarks of Juniper Networks, Inchim Wnited States and otk
countries.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 186{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

Juniper Networks, Inc.

February 20, 201 By: /s/ Robyn M. Denholm
Robyn M. Denholm

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial ané&f@gions
Officer

(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal

Financial Officer)

February 20, 201 By: /s/ Terrance F. Spidell
Terrance F. Spidell

Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Agating
Officer

(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pensbose signature appears below hereby constitutgsappoints Mitchell |
Gaynor and Robyn M. Denholm, and each of them iddaldly, as his or her attorney-fact, each with full power of substitution, for hion he

in any and all capacities to sign any and all ammerds to this Annual Report on Form KQand to file the same with, with exhibits theratu
other documents in connection therewith, with tieewities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifgind confirming all that said attorney-
in-fact, or his or her substitute, may do or catasee done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed belpihe following persons on behall
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Rami Rahim Chief Executive Officer and Director February 20, 2015
Rami Rahim (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Robyn M. Denholm Executive Vice President and Chief Financial and February 20, 2015
Operations Officer '
Robyn M. Denholm (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl Terrance F. Spidell Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief February 20, 2015
Accounting Officer ’
Terrance F. Spidell (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Scott Kriens Chairman of the Board February 20, 2015

Scott Kriens

/s/ Pradeep Sindhu Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief Technical February 20, 2015
Pradeep Sindhu Officer
Is/ Robert M. Calderoni Director February 20, 2015

Robert M. Calderoni
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Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Mary B. Cranston

Mary B. Cranston

/sl Mercedes Johnson

Mercedes Johnson

/sl Kevin DeNuccio

Kevin DeNuccio

/s/ Gary Daichendt

Gary Daichendt

/s/ David Schlotterbeck

David Schlotterbeck

/s/ William R. Stensrud

William R. Stensrud

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Juniper Networks, Inc.

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Account
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

(In millions)
Charged to
Balance at (Reversed from) Write-offs, Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Net of End of
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Year Expenses Recoveries Year
2014 $ 54 $ 0.7 $ — 3 4.7
2013 $ 95 $ (3.8 $ 0.3 $ 5.4
2012 $ 95 $ 01 $ (0.1) $ 9.5
Additions
Balance at Charged as a Balance at
Beginning of Reduction in Charged to End of
Sales Return Reserve Year Revenues Other Accounts Used Year
2014 $ 49.C $ 532z $ 80.¢ $ (132.9 $ 50.2
2013 $ 527 $ 3L $ 615 $ (1009 $ 49.C
2012 $ 52.C $ 40.C $ 48.€ $ (87.9 $ 52.7
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Exhibit Index
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
No. Exhibit Filing Exhibit No. File No. File Date
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Junipetideks, Inc. 10-K 3.1 001-34501 2/26/2014
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Juniper Netwanks, 8-K 3.2 001-34501 12/31/2013
4.1 Indenture, dated March 3, 2011, by and betweerpdulNetworks, Inc. and 8-K 4.1 001-34501 3/4/2011
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,tasstee
4.2 First Supplemental Indenture, dated March 3, 26%Jand between Juniper 10-Q 4.8 001-34501 3/4/2011
Networks, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Tr@mpany, N.A.,
as trustee
4.3 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated March 4, 2)1dnd between 8-K 4.1 001-34501 3/4/2014
Juniper Networks, Inc. and The Bank of New York
4.4 Form of Note for Juniper Networks, Inc.'s 3.100%i8eNotes due 2016 10-Q 4.9 001-34501 3/4/2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 hereto)
4.5 Form of Note for Juniper Networks, Inc.'s 4.600%iS8eNotes due 2021 10-Q 4.10 001-34501 3/4/2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 hereto)
4.6 Form of Note for Juniper Networks, Inc.'s 5.950%i8eNotes due 2041 10-Q 411 001-34501 3/4/2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 hereto)
4.7 Form of Note for Juniper Networks, Inc.’s 4.5009%mi®e Notes due 2024  10-Q 4.1 001-34501 5/8/2014
10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into g Registrant with 10-Q 10.1 000-26339 11/14/2003
each of its directors, officers and certain empésye
10.2 Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Plan++ 8-K 10.1 000-26339 11/9/2005
10.3 Form of Stock Option Agreement for the Juniper Nwks, Inc. Amended  10-Q 10.16 000-26339 11/2/2004
and Restated 1996 Stock Plan++
104 Form of Notice of Grant and Restricted Stock Urirdement for the 8-K 10.2 000-26339 11/9/2005
Juniper Networks, Inc. Amended and Restated 1986kRRlan++
105 Juniper Networks 2000 Nonstatutory Stopkidh Plan++ S-8 10.1 333-92086 12092
10.6 Form of Option Agreement for the Juniper NetworR&@ Nonstatutory 10-K 10.6 000-26339 3/4/2005
Stock Option Plan++
10.7 Juniper Networks, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plasamended October 2, 10-Q 10.9 001-34501 11/10/2014
2014++
10.8 Form of Stock Option Agreement for the Juniper Neks, Inc. 2006 8-K 10.2 000-26339 5/24/2006
Equity Incentive Plan++
10.9 Form of Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreeirfen the Juniper 8-K 10.3 000-26339 5/24/2006
Networks, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan++
10.10 Form of Notice of Grant and Restricted Stock Urgrdement for the 10-K 10.20 000-26339 2/29/2008
Juniper Networks, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan++
10.11 Form of Notice of Grant and Performance Share Agesd for the Juniper  10-K 10.21 000-26339 2/29/2008
Networks, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan++
10.12 Form of India Stock Option Agreement under the genNetworks, Inc. 10-Q 10.2 000-26339 5/9/2008
2006 Equity Incentive Plan++
10.13 Form of India Restricted Stock Unit Agreement unither Juniper Network  10-Q 10.3 000-26339 5/9/2008
Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan++
10.14 Unisphere Networks, Inc. Second Amended and Reki®89 Stock S-8 10.1 333-92090 719/2002
Incentive Plan++
10.15 NetScreen Technologies, Inc. 1997 Edaitgntive Plan++ S-1+ 10.2 333-71048 10/5/2001
10.16 NetScreen Technologies, Inc. 2001 Edaitgntive Plan++ S-1+ 10.3 333-71048 12/10/2001
10.17 NetScreen Technologies, Inc. 2002 Stquio® Plan++ S-8 4.7 333-114688 14204
10.18 Neoteris 2001 Stock Plan++ S-8+ 4.1 333-110709 11/24/2003
10.19 Kagoor Networks, Inc. 2003 General StOpkion Plan++ S-8 4.1 333-124572 3/3305
10.20 Kagoor Networks, Inc. 2003 Israel Stogki@nh Plan++ S-8 4.2 333-124572 /3185
10.21 Redline Networks 2000 Stock Plan++ 8S- 41 333-124610 5/4/2005
10.22 Peribit Networks 2000 Stock Plan++ 8 S- 99.1 333-126404 7/6/2005
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit

No. Exhibit Filing Exhibit No. File No. File Date

10.23 8-K 10.2 001-34501 5/24/2012
Juniper Networks, Inc. 2008 Employee Stock PaselPlan, as amended++

10.24 Sub-plan to the Juniper Networks, Inc. 2008 Empo$tock Purchase Plan 10-K 10.25 000-26339 3/2/2009
For Employees Located in the European Economic Area

10.25 Juniper Networks, Inc. Deferred Compeosd®lan++ S-8 4.4 333-151669 62068

10.26 Tolling Agreement by and between Juniper Netwoltks, and Scott 10-Q 10.3 000-26339 11/10/2008
Kriens++

10.27 Agreement for ASIC Design and Purchase of Prochetiween IBM S-1 10.8 333-76681 6/18/1999
Microelectronics and the Registrant dated Augustl287

10.28 Lease between Mathilda Associates LLC and the Reagisdated June 18, S-1 10.10 333-76681 6/23/1999
1999

10.29 Lease between Mathilda Associates LLC and the Regisdated 10-K 10.9 000-26339 3/27/2001
February 1, 2000

10.30 Lease between Mathilda Associates Il LLC and thgifeant dated 10-Q 10.15 000-26339 11/2/2004
August 15, 2000

10.31 First Amendment to Lease between Suney®éfice Park, L.P. and the 10-K 10.47 000-34501 2/26/2010
Registrant dated January 24, 2002

10.32 First Amendment to Lease between Sunaey®ffice Park, L.P. and the 10-K 10.48 000-34501 2/26/2010
Registrant dated February 28, 2000

10.33 First Amendment to Lease between Suney®éfice Park, L.P. and the 10-K 10.49 000-34501 2/26/2010
Registrant dated October 14, 2009

10.34 Second Amendment to Lease between Sulen@ffice Park, L.P. and the 10-K 10.50 000-34501 2/26/2010
Registrant dated October 14, 2009

10.35 Amendment No. 2 to Lease between Suney@éice Park, L.P. and the 10-K 10.51 000-34501 2/26/2010
Registrant dated October 14, 2009

10.36 Ankeena Networks, Inc. 2008 Stock Plan++ S-8 4.3 333-166248 4/23/2010

10.37 Altor Networks, Inc. 2007 Stock Plan and 2009 IBriaquity Incentive Sub
Plan++ S-8 10.1 333-171299 12/21/2010

10.38 Australian Addendum to the Juniper Networks, Ir@& Equity Incentive 10-Q 10.2 000-34501 11/5/2010
Plan, as amended++

10.39 Australian Addendum to the Juniper Networks, Ir@& Employee Stock  10-Q 10.3 000-34501 11/5/2010
Purchase Plan, as amended++

10.40 Description of 2012 Annual Incentive Plan++ 8-K Item 5.02 001-34501 2/21/2012

10.41 Form of Severance Agreement for Certain Officenst fiised in April 10-Q 10.2 001-34501 5/9/2012
2012++

10.42 Form of Change of Control Agreement for Certaini€ffs first used in 10-Q 10.3 001-34501 5/9/2012
April 2012++

10.43 Juniper Networks, Inc. Performance Bonus Plan++ 8-K 10.56 001-34501 5/23/2011

10.44 Consulting Agreement by and between Juniper Netsydric. and Stefan 10-Q 10.2 001-34501 11/8/2012
Dyckerhoff++

10.45 Service Agreement by and between Juniper Netwdmks and Stefan 10-K 10.55 001-34501 2/26/2013
Dyckerhoff++

10.46 Amended and Restated Contrail Systems Inc. 201&kRtan dated 10-K 10.56 001-34501 2/26/2013
December 2, 2012++

10.47 Employment Offer Letter between Juniper Networks, Bnd Shaygan 8-K 10.1 001-34501 11/13/2013
Kheradpir++

10.50 Amended and Restated Severance Agreement betweigedNetworks, 8-K 001-34501 7/25/2013
Inc., and Robyn Denholm++

10.51 WANDL, Inc. 2013 Restricted Stock Unit Plan++ S-8 4.4 333-193906 2/12/2014

10.52 Form of Change of Control Agreement for Certaini€ffs first used in 10-Q 10.2 001-34501 11/8/2013
November 2013++

10.53 Share Repurchase Transaction Agreement, dateddfgttid, 2014 10-Q 10.1 001-34501 5/8/2014

between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Barclays Bang,Rhc., through its
agent Barclays Capital, Inc.
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
No. Exhibit Filing Exhibit No. File No. File Date
10.54 Share Repurchase Transaction Agreement, dateddfgtta, 2014, 10-Q 10.2 001-34501 5/8/2014
between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Goldman, SacG®&
10.55 Settlement, Release and Cross-License Agreemeant 8ay 27, 2014, by 8-K 10.1 001-34501 5/29/2014
and between Juniper Networks, Inc. and Palo Alttwieks, Inc.
10.56 Credit Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2014, byaamzhg Juniper 8-K 10.1 001-34501 6/27/2014
Networks, Inc., the lenders from time to time pahtgreto and Citibank,
N.A., as administrative agent
10.57 Assignment and Assumption of Lease by and betweeipdr Networks, 10-Q 10.1 001-34501 11/10/2014
Inc., as Assignor, and Google Inc., as Assigneteddaugust 18, 2014 -
1194 N. Mathilda Avenue, Sunnyvale, California (Birg 1)
10.58 Assignment and Assumption of Lease by and betweripdr Networks, 10-Q 10.2 001-34501 11/10/2014
Inc., as Assignor, and Google Inc., as Assigneteddaugust 18, 2014 -
1184 N. Mathilda Avenue, Sunnyvale, California (Birg 2)
10.59 Assignment and Assumption of Lease by and betweeipdr Networks  10-Q 10.3 001-34501 11/10/2014
Inc., as Assignor, and Google Inc., as AssigneteddAugust 18, 2014 -
1220 N. Mathilda Avenue, Sunnyvale, California (Birg 3)
10.60 Consent to Assignment and Third Amendment to Légsand between 10-Q 10.4 001-34501 11/10/2014
Juniper Networks, Inc., FSP-Sunnyvale Office PAEC and Google Inc.,
dated August 18, 2014 - 1194 N. Mathilda Avenuerywale, California
(Building 1)
10.61 Consent to Assignment and Second Amendment to Lmaaad between 10-Q 10.5 001-34501 11/10/2014
Juniper Networks, Inc., FSP-Sunnyvale Office PRHC and Google Inc.,
dated August 18, 2014 - 1184 N. Mathilda Avenuerwale, California
(Building 2)
10.62 Consent to Assignment and Amendment No. 3 to Lbgsnd between 10-Q 10.6 001-34501 11/10/2014
Juniper Networks, Inc., FSP-Sunnyvale Office PREKC and Google Inc.,
dated August 18, 2014 - 1220 N. Mathilda Avenuerywale, California
(Building 3)
10.63 Sublease by and between Juniper Networks, InGubtenant, and Google 10-Q 10.7 001-34501 11/10/2014
Inc., as Sublandlord, dated August 18, 2014 - IN9Mlathilda Avenue,
Sunnyvale, California (Building 1)
10.64 Consent to Sublease by and between Juniper Networks FSP- 10-Q 10.8 001-34501 11/10/2014
Sunnyvale Office Park, LLC and Google Inc., datedyAst 18, 2014 - 1194
N. Mathilda Avenue, Sunnyvale, California (Builditgy
10.65 Form of Severance Agreement for Certain Officenst fised in November  10-Q 10.10 001-34501 11/10/2014
2014++
10.66 Employment Offer Letter, dated November 18, 201vben Juniper 8-K 10.1 001-34501 11/24/2014
Networks, Inc. and Rami Rahim++
10.67 Severance Agreement, dated February 20, 2015, eertieniper Networks,
Inc. and Robyn Denholm*++
12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges*
211 Subsidiaries of the Company*
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered PuldanAnting Firm*
241 Power of Attorney (included on the signatpage to the Report)
311 Certification of Chief Executive Officeafsuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934*
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officeupsuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934*
321 Certification of the Chief Executive Officpursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**
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Exhibit
No.

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Filing

Exhibit No.

File No.

File Date

101

101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

*%

++

The following materials from Juniper Networks Isdnnual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201#atted in XBRL
(Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) tbesdlidated Statements
of Operations, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Caghpnsive Income, (iii)
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the Consolidgtatements of Cash
Flows, and (v) Consolidated Statements of Chang&idckholders' Equity,

and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeatged as blocks of
text

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Do@nt
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Dosent
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbaseuboent

Filed herewith
Furnished herewith

Filed by NetScreen Technologies, Inc.

Indicates management contract or compensatory etartract or arrangement.
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EXHIBIT 10.67
JUNIPER NETWORKS, INC.
SEVERANCE AGREEMENT

This Severance Agreement (the “Agreement”) is natkentered into by and between Robyn Denholm‘Bheployee”) and Juniper
Networks, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (“Company”), effective on the last date signed below

RECITALS

The Compensation Committee believes that it is napee to provide the Employee with certain seveeabenefits upon certain
terminations of employment. These benefits willyide the Employee with enhanced financial secuaitgl incentive and encouragement to
remain with the Company.

Certain capitalized terms used in the Agreementiafimed below.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual ceugs contained herein, the parties hereto agrédlaws:
1. _Term of AgreementThis Agreement shall terminate upon the latgf)afanuary 1, 2017 or (ii) if Employee is termigekt

involuntarily by Company without Cause prior to dary 1, 2017, the date that all of the obligatiohthe parties hereto with respect to this
Agreement have been satisfied.

2. _AtWill Employment. The Company and the Employee acknowledge tha&thgloyee’s employment is and shall continue to b
at-will, as defined under applicable law, exceptray otherwise be specifically provided by applledaw or under the terms of any written
formal employment agreement or offer letter betwienCompany and the Employee (an “Employment Agesd”). This Agreement does n
constitute an agreement to employ Employee forspagific time.

3. _Severance Benefits

(a) Inthe event the Employee voluntarily terates employment for “Good Reasoay defined below, or is terminated involunta
by Company without Cause, as defined below, andiged in either such case the Employee executeslaasl not revoke a full release of
claims with the Company (in a form satisfactorgite Company) (the “Release”), the Employee wileinétled to receive the severance
benefits set out in subsections (i), (i) and (i#pr purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” is defias: (i) willfully engaging in gross misconduct
that is demonstrably injurious to Company; (i) ful act or acts of dishonesty or malfeasance ua#ten by the individual; (iii) conviction of
or a plea of nolo contendere to a felony; or (ivjful and continued refusal or failure to substally perform duties with Company (other than
incapacity due to physical or mental illness); pded that the action or conduct described in cldivdeabove will constitute “Cause” only if
such failure continues after the Company’s CEO @l of Directors has provided the individual watkvritten demand for substantial
performance setting forth in detail the specifispects in which it believes the individual has fullly and not substantially performed the
individual's duties thereof and has been providedasonable opportunity (to be not less than 3@)daycure the same. “Good Reason” mean
Employee’s termination of employment following tiepiration of any cure period (discussed belowpfeing the occurrence, without
Employee’s express written consent, of one or mbthe following: (x) a material reduction of thenloyee’s duties, title, authority or
responsibilities, relative to the Employee’s duttitke, authority or responsibilities as in effécimediately prior to such reduction; or (y) a
reduction by the Company in the base compensatitoial target cash compensation of the
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Employee as in effect immediately prior to suchuatibn; or (z) the relocation of the Employee t@a@ility or a location more than forty
(40) miles from such Employee's then present loratEmployee will not resign for Good Reason withfinst providing the Company with
written notice within sixty (60) days of the eveéhat Employee believes constitutes “Good Reasoetifipally identifying the acts or
omissions constituting the grounds for Good Reasaha reasonable cure period of not less thaty {t8€) days following the date of such
notice.

(i) A cash paymentin a lump sum (less any wattimg taxes) equal to 15 months of base salaryn(affect immediately
prior to the termination).

(i) In lieu of continuation of benefits, Empleg shall receive $18,000 (whether or not Employeet£ COBRA).

(iii)  Any portion of the Restricted Stock Univard granted to Employee on July 19, 2013 thatloasested prior to the
date of termination of employment shall immediatedgt in full on the last day of Employee’s empl@mh

(b) _Release Effectivenes§he receipt of any severance pursuant to Sectianv@({l be subject to Employee signing and not
revoking the Release and further subject to thed¥s becoming effective within fifty-two (52) ddgowing Employee’s termination of
employment.

(c) _Timing of Severance Paymen#ny cash severance payment to which Employeastided shall be paid by the Company to
Employee in a single lump sum in cash on the fifyd (53" day after Employee’s termination of employment.

(d) _Change of Control Benefité$n the event the Employee receives severanceid benefits pursuant to a change in control
agreement that are greater than or equal to thertmpayable hereunder, then the Employee shabaentitled to receive severance or any
other benefits under this Agreement.

(e) _Section 409A

(i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrarytimis Agreement, if Employee is a “specified emplkgywithin the meaning ¢
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188Gmended (the “Code”) and the final regulatiosany guidance promulgated
thereunder (“Section 409A”) at the time of Emplogdermination (other than due to death) or redigmathen the severance payable to
Employee, if any, pursuant to this Agreement, wbamsidered together with any other severance paggoerseparation benefits that are
considered deferred compensation under Section 4e@ther, the “Deferred Compensation Separatiemelits”) that are payable within the
first six (6) months following Employeg’termination of employment, will become payableoomithin ten days following the first payroll @
that occurs on or after the date six (6) monthsarel(1) day following the date of Employee’s taration of employment. All subsequent
Deferred Compensation Separation Benefits, if anlybe payable in accordance with the payment daleeapplicable to each payment or
benefit. Notwithstanding anything herein to thetcary, if Employee dies following his terminationtiprior to the six (6) month anniversary
his termination, then any payments delayed in atzomre with this paragraph will be payable in a llsum as soon as administratively
practicable after the date of Employee’s deathahother Deferred Compensation Separation Benefitdhe payable in accordance with the
payment schedule applicable to each payment orfibeBach payment and benefit payable under thiss@ment is intended to constitute
separate payments for purposes of Section 1.40B2)(of the Treasury Regulations.

(i) Any amount paid under this Agreement traisfies the requirements of the “short-term defémule set forth in
Section 1.409A-1(b)(4) of the Treasury Regulatishall not constitute Deferred Compensation Sepmar&enefits for purposes of clause
(i) above.

(i)  Any amount paid under this Agreement thaglifies as a payment made as a result of anumt@ty separation from
service pursuant to Section 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iiitloé Treasury Regulations that do not exceed thed®et09A Limit shall not constitute
Deferred Compensation Separation Benefits for pepof
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clause (i) above. “Section 409A Limit” will meanethesser of two (2) times: (i) Employee’s annualizempensation based upon the annual
rate of pay paid to Employee during the Employéssble year preceding the Employee’s taxable geBmployee’s termination of
employment as determined under, and with such Bdgrgs as are set forth in, Treasury RegulatioQ9441(b)(9)(iii))(A)(1) and any Internal
Revenue Service guidance issued with respect theyefii) the maximum amount that may be takeo Extcount under a qualified plan
pursuant to Section 401(a)(17) of the Code forydwm in which Employee’s employment is terminated.

(iv) The foregoing provisions are intended tonply with the requirements of Section 409A so thae of the severance
payments and benefits to be provided hereundeb@iiubject to the additional tax imposed undeti@ed09A, and any ambiguities herein
will be interpreted to so comply. The Company angployee agree to work together in good faith tosider amendments to this Agreement
and to take such reasonable actions which are segesppropriate or desirable to avoid impositibany additional tax or income recogniti
prior to actual payment to Employee under Secti@@

4. Successors

(a) _The Comparng SuccessorsAny successor to the Company (whether direchdiréct and whether by purchase, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to allsubstantially all of the Company’s business andésets shall assume the obligations under th
Agreement and agree expressly to perform the didigeunder this Agreement in the same manneratitetsame extent as the Company
would be required to perform such obligations ia éifosence of a succession. For all purposes umdekgreement, the term “Company” shall
include any successor to the Company’s businesemassets which executes and delivers the assumggireement described in this Section
(a) or which becomes bound by the terms of thise&grent by operation of law. The term “Company” kalgb include any direct or indirect
that is majority owned by Juniper Networks, Inc.

(b) The Employés SuccessorsThe terms of this Agreement and all rights of Hmeployee hereunder shall inure to the benefit of,
and be enforceable by, the Employee’s person@gal Irepresentatives, executors, administratocsessors, heirs, distributees, devisees and
legatees.

5. Notice All notices and other communications requiregr@mitted hereunder shall be in writing, shall Heaive when given,
and shall in any event be deemed to be given upogipt or, if earlier, (a) five (5) days after dsjpavith the U.S. Postal Service or other
applicable postal service, if delivered by firsisd mail, postage prepaid, (b) upon delivery, liivdeed by hand, (c) one (1) business day after
the business day of deposit with Federal Expresénaifar overnight courier, freight prepaid or @)e (1) business day after the business d
facsimile transmission, if delivered by facsimilartsmission with copy by first class mail, postpgepaid, and shall be addressed (i) if to
Employee, at his or her last known residential adsliiand (ii) if to the Company, at the addresssagrincipal corporate offices (attention:
Secretary), or in any such case at such other ssldiea party may designate by ten (10) daggance written notice to the other party purs
to the provisions above.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

(&) _No Duty to Mitigate The Employee shall not be required to mitigageamount of any payment contemplated by this
Agreement, nor shall any such payment be reducethipyearnings that the Employee may receive froynodéimer source.

(b) _Waiver. No provision of this Agreement shall be modifiadived or discharged unless the modification, waiw discharge is
agreed to in writing and signed by the Employee landn authorized officer of the Company (othentttee Employee). No waiver by either
party of any breach of, or of compliance with, @eyndition or provision of this Agreement by theatiparty shall be considered a waiver of
any other condition or provision or of the samedition or provision at another time.
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(c) Headings All captions and section headings used in thissagent are for convenient reference only and ddonm a part of
this Agreement.

(d) _Entire AgreementThis Agreement constitutes the entire agreemgthisoparties hereto and supersedes in their éntiteprior
representations, understandings, undertakingsreeawents (whether oral or written and whether esqee or implied) of the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof.

(e) _Choice of Law The validity, interpretation, construction andfpemance of this Agreement shall be governed leylélws of the
State of California. The Superior Court of Santar€ICounty and/or the United States District Céarthe Northern District of California shi
have exclusive jurisdiction and venue over all coversies in connection with this Agreement.

()  Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any prowsi or provisions of this Agreement shall not affiset validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof, whitall remain in full force and effect.

(g) _Withholding. All payments made pursuant to this Agreementpélsubject to withholding of applicable income and
employment taxes.

(h) _CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in counterpaats) ef which shall be deemed an original, but &ibich
together will constitute one and the same instrumen

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has exettitis Agreement, in the case of the Company bgiutg authorized officer,
as of the day and year set forth below.

COMPANY JUNIPER NETWORKS, INC.
By: /sl Mitchell Gaynor
Name:  Mitchell Gaynor
Title: Executive Vice President

Date: February 18, 2015

EMPLOYEE /s/ Robyn Denholm
Name: Robyn Denholm
Date: February 20, 2015




EXHIBIT 12.1
Juniper Networks, Inc.

Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to iked Charges
(In millions, except ratios)

Years Ended December 31,

20149 2013% 20129 20119 2010°
Earnings for computation of ratio:
Pre-tax (loss) income from continuing operations
before adjustment for noncontrolling
interests in consolidated subsidiaries or
income from equity investees $ (86.9) % 518.. $ 266.C % 572.C % 769.
Fixed charges 83.2 76.1 72.C 69.2 16.¢
Amortization of capitalized interest 0.t 0.4 — — —
Less:
Interest capitalized 2.7 (1.9 (7.2 (1.2 —
Noncontrolling interest in pre-tax income
of subsidiaries that have not incurred
fixed charges — — — — 1.3
Total (loss) earnings $ 5.2 $ 593.C $ 330.¢ % 640.C $ 785.(
Fixed charges:
Interest expense $ 66.C $ 58.1 $ 52z % 48.¢ % —
Interest capitalized 0.8 1.¢ — — —
Amortized premiums, discounts, and
capitalized expenses relating to
indebtedness 2.7 0.2 0.6 0.€ —
Estimate of interest within rental expense 13.¢ 15.¢ 19.C 19.7 16.¢
Total fixed charges $ 83.5 % 76.1 $ 72.C $ 69.2 $ 16.¢
Ratio of (loss) earnings to fixed charges (0.7 7.€ 4.€ 9.2 46.¢

© For these ratios, "earnings” represents (loss)nirecbefore taxes before adjustment for noncontiliterests in equity investments and fixed cha
adjusted for interest capitalized and noncontrgliimterest in pr-tax (loss) income of subsidiaries that have natiired fixed charge:



SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

NAME

JN International C.V.
Juniper Networks International B.V.
Juniper Networks (US), Inc.

*

All other subsidiaries would not in the aggregabnstitute a “significant subsidiary” as definedRegulation SX.

EXHIBIT 21.1

JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION

The Netherland
The Netherland
California, USA



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference infthlewing Registration Statements (Form S-8 Na33-383165, 333-180634, 33%1669
333-176171, 333-171299, 333-168734, 333-166248-133211, 333-132260, 333-126404, 333-124610, 33512, 333-118340, 333-
114688, 333-92086, 333-92088, 333-92090, 333-85383;32412, 333-44148, 333-52258, 333-57860, 3EHB,7333-186884, 33893906
333-57864, and 333-75770 and Form S-3 No. 333-1B0dRJuniper Networks, Inc. of our reports datedfaary 20, 2015with respect to tt
consolidated financial statements and schedulesoipdr Networks, Inc., and the effectiveness oérin&l control over financial reporting
Juniper Networks, Inc., included in this Annual BegForm 10-K) of Juniper Networks, Inc., for thear ended December 31, 2014.

/ s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
February 20, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a),
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Rami Rahim, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL@f Juniper Networks, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cormjnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#tede a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period cove
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andirke responsible for establishing and maintainirgcldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13¢
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finahorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slalsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tlvatcurred during the registrant's v
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasone
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imait control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafianternal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ws persons performing the equival
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize, and ntefprancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant's interi
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2015
/s/ Rami Rahim

Rami Rahim
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a),
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Robyn M. Denholm, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL@f Juniper Networks, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cormjnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#tede a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period cove
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andirke responsible for establishing and maintainirgcldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13¢
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finahorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slalsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tlvatcurred during the registrant's v
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatrhaterially affected, or is reasone
likely to materially affect, the registrant's imait control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafianternal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ws persons performing the equival
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize, and ntefprancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant's interi
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 20, 2015
/s/ Robyn M. Denholm

Robyn M. Denholm
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Opena Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Rami Rahim, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sactl350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 db#nbane®xley Act of 2002, that tt
Annual Report of Juniper Networks, Inc. on FormKLer the fiscal year ended December 31, 201dlly complies with the requirements
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangé & 1934 and that information contained in suamial Report on Form 1R-fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of Juniper Neksplnc.

/s/ Rami Rahim

Rami Rahim

Chief Executive Officer
February 20, 2015



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Robyn M. Denholm, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS&ction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section B@tdarbane®xley Act of 200z
that the Annual Report of Juniper Networks, Inc. form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31142, fully complies with th
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationteamed in such Annual Report on Fc
10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations whiper Networks, Inc.

/s/ Robyn M. Denholm
Robyn M. Denholm

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Opens Officer
February 20, 2015




